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PEOPLESOFT YEAR END AND QUERY
INFORMATION

OMB has developed additional reports and queries to assist agencies with the fiscal year
end. A trial balance by fund will be run for every agency as of June 30 and at the end of
the apply back period. In addition to the trial balance by fund, trial balances will be run
for an agency’ s total federal funds rolled into one trial balance. Also, al the regular
monthly reports that agencies have been receiving from the PeopleSoft system will be run
as of June 30 and at the end of the apply back period as well. You will find all of these
reports, including trial balances in PeopleSoft Report Manager. You will need to save the
reports you need.

Several different queries have been developed to assist agencies in verifying the
transactions they processed in July and applied back to June. The queries will help
agencies identify the transaction they applied back when completing closing packages.
The queries have been broken down based on the source of the transaction. This was
done to limit the size of the queries and to identify cash that was applied back. Some of
the transactions applied back in PeopleSoft not only apply back the revenue or
expenditure, but also apply back cash.

The following are the various sources in the General Ledger that are used depending on
the type of transaction:

ALO: cost allocation transactions. Cost is always applied back and that includes
cash applied back.

AP: for expenditures and journal vouchers. When expenditures are applied back,
only the accounts payable is applied back. Cash is not recorded until the day the
expenditure is paid. However, for journal vouchers done in the Accounts Payable
module, cash would be applied back if the journal was applied back and cash was
moved from one fund to the other.

Bl: these are from the Accounts Receivable module. When billing is done,
accounts receivable is used and when the receivable is paid, the cash is recorded.
The receivable will be applied back if the billing is applied back. Cash is not
recorded until paid.

DEP: for deposits. If revenue is applied back, the cash is also applied back.

IDB: for IDB revenues. When revenues are applied back, only the
interdepartmental receivable is applied back, not the Cash.

ONL.: for journal vouchers done in General Ledger and for system interest
allocation. For journal vouchers that change the fund for revenues or
expenditures, the cash account is used also in the transaction. Journals to record
interest revenue will record cash also. If these journals are applied back, the
cash, along with the revenue or expenditure is applied back.



PEOPLESOFT QUERIES FOR THE CAFR

The following is a list of queries available for agencies to run for June transactions
processed in July:

Customize | Find | view All | B8 First [ 4118 0p18 [ Last
) Runto Runto
Select Query Name Descr Owner Folder Edit HTML  Excel Schedule
Fl NDSCAFR_AP AF Trans Applied Back Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule
FI MDSCAFR_AR AR Trans Applied Back Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule
| MDSCAFR_CA Cost Alloc Trans Applied Back Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule
F MDSCAFR_DEP Deposit Trans Applied Back Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule
O MDSCAFR_IDBREY IDB Revenue Trans Applied Back Public Edit HTWML Excel Schedule
FI MDSCAFR_JVAP AP Journals Applied Back Public Edit HTWML Excel Schedule
[l NDSCAFR_OML On-line Trans Applied Back Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule
O MDSCAFR_PAY Payroll Trans Applied Back Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule
[] NDSCAFR_PYM gg;;Tlme Payments Applied o p e Edit HIML Excel Schedule

Agencies need to run these queries after the apply back period in order to have all apply
back information.

There are additional queries for agencies to run in order to complete the closing packages
Accounts Payable Accrual Summary Form, Journal Voucher Accrual Summary Form,
and Payments to Other State Agencies Form. The queries are set up to run transactions
over $1000 recorded in July and August not applied back to June. You can run them at
the end of July, mid-August, etc to get a start on your closing packages. But you will
need to run a final query the first working day in September. All transactions for July and
August will show up on the queries whenever you run them. You can just sort by date to

pick up later ones if you have run the queries prior to September. You need to run each
query for EACH of your accounts payable Business Units.

Customize | Find | View Al First El 1-2 of 2 [¥] Last

. Runto Runto
Select Query Name Descr Owmner Folder Edit HTML  Excel Schedule
il MODSCAFR_PYMTSADJ_OVER_1000 Adjustin July and Aug = $1000  Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule
| MODSCAFR_PYMTS_OVER_1000 FPymts in July and Aug = 51000  Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule

[] NDSCAFR_STATE_PYMTS_OVER_1000 Pymts inJuly and Aug = $1000  Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule

There is also a query that agencies can run to find payments made under the accounts for

rental/lease payments for a certain time period. This may be useful when completing the
Lease Summary Closing Package.

Fl MNDSCAFR_LEASE _PAYMENTS Paymentto Lease/Rent Accts Public Edit HTML Excel Schedule
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GENERAL INFORMATION

This section includes overview information for agencies regarding Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) closing procedures for the State of North Dakota.
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GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (GAAP)

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for governments consist of written authoritative
standards issued by officially designated standard-setting organizations. Currently in the United States,
the designated organizations are:

e The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) created in 1984.

e The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) created in 1973.

The industry audit guides, issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) are
also part of GAAP. The AICPA has played a key role in setting accounting standards for the last one
hundred years.

THE CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Government Finance Officers' Association (GFOA) has been involved for many years in encouraging
governments to adhere to high standards of financial reporting. The GFOA awards its prestigious
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (Certificate) to governments who meet its
standards.

To apply for the Certificate, a government must issue an audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
no later than six months after the end of its fiscal year. Recipient governments must meet many other
stringent reporting standards as well.

The GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of
North Dakota for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the previous fiscal year ended
June 30. We believe our current CAFR continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program
requirements.

AUTHORITATIVE SOURCES OF GAAP

Many of the accounting and reporting standards that apply to governments appear in:

e 2005 Governmental Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting (Blue Book). The Blue Book is
the most comprehensive and understandable reference for governmental GAAP reporting. To
obtain a copy of this or any other GFOA publication, call (312) 977-9700, visit GFOA website at

www.gfoa.org or write:

Government Finance Officers Association
203 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 2700
Chicago, IL 60601-1210

e Caodification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, GASB (current
edition for 2007-2008). To obtain a copy of the Codification or any GASB statement,
interpretation, or technical bulletin, call (800) 748-0659, visit GASB’s website at www.gasb.org or
write:

Governmental Accounting Standards Board
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401 Merritt 7
P.O. Box 5116
Norwalk, CT 06856-5116
e Internal Reviewer's Checklist, Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting,
GFOA (revised each year). To obtain a copy of this or any other GFOA publication, call (312)
977-9700, visit GFOA'’s website at www.gfoa.org or write:

Government Finance Officers Association
203 N. LaSalle Street, Suite 2700
Chicago, IL 60601-1210

The FASB sets accounting and reporting standards primarily for nongovernmental organizations. FASB
statements, interpretations, and technical bulletins, however, apply to governments if they do not conflict
with GASB standards. In addition, some GASB standards require that governments adopt certain FASB
standards. To obtain any FASB publication, call (800) 748-0569, visit FASB’s website at www.fasb.org or
write:

Order Department

Financial Accounting Standards Board
401 Merritt 7

P.O. Box 5116

Norwalk, CT 06856-5116
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PURPOSE OF A COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

GAAP requires that each government produce a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).
GAAP prescribes the format and content of the CAFR in detail. CAFR's are:

e Comprehensive. A CAFR reports on all of the government's:

-- Component units.

-- Funds.
e Annual reports.
e Financial reports -- not just financial statements.
e Independently audited.
CAFR's include both budgetary and GAAP data. Specifically, a CAFR includes:

e A'"budget and actual" statement that compares (on the budgetary basis of accounting):

-- Estimated revenues vs. actual revenues.
-- Adjustments to appropriations

-- Appropriations vs. expenditures.
o  GAAP-basis financial statements.

e A note that reconciles the budgetary-basis and GAAP-basis figures.

CONTENTS OF A COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

A CAFR includes three major sections:
e Introductory Section.
e Financial Section.

e  Statistical Section.

The Introductory Section includes:
e A letter of transmittal.
e An organization chart.

e Alist of principal government officials.
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The Financial Section includes:
e The Auditor's Report
e Management Discussion and Analysis

e Basic Financial Statements
-- Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets
-- Government-Wide Statement of Activities
-- Balance Sheet for Governmental Funds
-- Operating Statement for Governmental Funds
-- Statement of Net Assets for Proprietary Funds
-- Operating Statement Proprietary Funds
-- Statement of Cash Flows for Proprietary Funds
-- Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets for Fiduciary Funds
-- Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets for Fiduciary Funds
-- Combining Statement of Net Assets for Component Units

-- Combining Statement of Activities for Component Units
e Notes to the Financial Statements
e Budget and Actual Schedules for the General and Other Funds

e Combining financial statements for each detailed fund

The Statistical Section of the CAFR includes ten-year comparisons of certain financial and statistical data.
GAAP specifies the data that governments must include in this section.
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LEGISLATION REQUIRING GAAP

North Dakota has had legislation since 1981 requiring that the Office of Management and Budget work
toward preparing statewide GAAP-basis financial statements. The North Dakota Century Code, section
54-44-04(14.1) states "the Office of Management and Budget shall prepare on an annual basis
comprehensive financial statements of the State of North Dakota."

A HISTORICAL PERSPECTIVE

Accounting in the business sector has conformed with GAAP since shortly after the stock market crash in
the 1930's. Events of the 1970's and 1980's shook the confidence that the public and the financial
markets once had in the financial reporting practices of governments. Some of these events are
presented below:

e 1975--New York City came very close to defaulting on its bonds.

e 1984--The Washington Public Power Supply System (known as WPPSS-pronounced WHOOPS)
defaulted on its bonds.

e 1985--ESM Government Securities, Inc., collapsed. Some governments had invested heavily in
uncollateralized securities with ESM.

Today, the bond-buying public and the major bond-rating agencies want convincing, timely evidence of a

government's financial health. Good financial management practices and audited financial statements
are key factors in a government's financial health.

STANDARD & POOR'S POLICY STATEMENT

Standard & Poor's (S&P), one of the two major bond-rating agencies, issued a policy statement in 1980
urging all governments to move toward GAAP. Some excerpts are presented below:

All financial statements submitted to S&P, either in connection with a rating request for a bond sale
or for a review, are expected to be prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP).

These statements should be independently audited, either by a certified public accounting firm, or by
a qualified independent state or local agency, on a timely basis, (i.e., no later than six months after
the fiscal year-end).

The absence of financial reports prepared in accordance with GAAP will be considered a negative factor.

Where the report is not timely or is substantially deficient in terms of reporting, a rating will not be
provided.

OTHER ADVANTAGES OF PRODUCING STATEWIDE GAAP REPORTS

Governments must be responsive to their citizens. Publication of an audited Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report graphically demonstrates public accountability.
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A CAFR prepared in accordance with GAAP will also provide statewide data to our State's decision-
makers. Decision-makers need this information to make informed decisions concerning our State's future.
WHAT IS A CLOSING PACKAGE?

North Dakota's Plan for Conversion to GAAP Reporting has resulted in preparation of this manual. The
manual includes several "closing packages." Each closing package:

e Deals with a single area of accounting data.

e Requires that certain agencies complete forms to report year-end adjustments needed for GAAP.
At year-end, the Office of Management and Budget will post data from the completed forms to the State's
GAAP-basis accounting system. Only then can the Office of Management and Budget close the State's

GAAP-basis books. This is why we call the packages "closing packages."

Important features of closing packages include the following:

e Agencies complete closing packages for June 30 data only (including the effect of amounts
Applied Back to June). That is, they report GAAP data only once a year.

e Agencies complete only the closing packages that apply to them--not all packages. A Closing
Package Control Checklist makes it easy for agencies to determine which packages apply to
them.

o All closing packages have a similar format. Once you become familiar with the format, it is easy
to locate specific information quickly.

THE FORMAT OF A CLOSING PACKAGE

Each closing package includes most or all of the following sections in the following order:

e PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES.

-- Defines the scope of the package.

e AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED.

-- Names the forms included within the closing package.

-- Lists due dates.

-- Briefly describes any action that agencies must take before they begin to complete this
package.

e KEY TERMS

-- Lists technical accounting terms in alphabetical order with definitions.

-- Gives unusual or "local" definitions of words that apply only to the closing packages. (For this
reason, it is important to read the definition of each key term--even if you already know the
usual meaning of the term.)
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e ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES.

-- Lists references to authoritative GAAP sources.
-- Describes State accounting and reporting policies.
-- Gives reasons why the forms summarize data in a particular way.

-- Includes much data of interest only to "interested readers."

e  WORKING PAPERS

-- Suggests documents you should keep for audit purposes.

-- Suggests working papers you should prepare and keep to support information entered on
closing package forms.

The following sections appear for each type of form:

e GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS.

-- Gives overview instructions.
-- Tells what to do before completing the form.

-- Gives other instructions that apply to the form as a whole.

e SAMPLE COMPLETED FORM.

-- Includes numbered circles beside each detailed data element.
-- Shows completed data for a comprehensive, realistic case example ("Agency 999, Fund 888,
Sample Agency, Operating Fund").
e COMPLETING THE FORM.

-- Gives specific instructions for completing each data element on the form.

-- Includes a reference number to the left of each instruction which matches a numbered circle
on the sample completed form.
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THE FORMAT OF A CLOSING PACKAGE FORM

Like the closing packages themselves, the closing package forms all have a common format:
e Each form has a heading to identify:

-- Your agency.
-- The person who prepared the form.

-- The person who approved the form (the agency's Finance Director or Executive Director).

e Summary forms have columns for:

-- PeopleSoft Accounts

*  The Office of Management and Budget has preprinted as many of accounts as possible.
Agencies can ignore these preprinted accounts codes. They are for the use of the Office
of Management and Budget.

* Agencies will complete some blank parts of the accounts.
-- Description.

-- Dollar amount.

YOUR VALUABLE INPUT

The staff in the Office of Management and Budget have tried to make the closing packages easy to read
and consistent. The Office of Management and Budget has incorporated many agency suggestions into
the closing packages. To propose additional improvements, please call the Office of Management and
Budget.

CLOSING PACKAGE CONTROL CHECKLIST (CONTROL CHECKLIST)

Agencies complete only those closing packages that apply to their funds. No agency (except Sample
Agency, our comprehensive case example) will complete all closing packages. Every agency, however,
must complete the Closing Package Control Checklist for each fund (see Control Checklist section).

Completing the Closing Package Control Checklist will help each agency determine which closing
packages it must complete for each fund. The completed Control Checklist will also help the Office of
Management and Budget control the closing process.
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES OF THE TRAINING

The quality of the State's financial statements depends on the quality of the data that agencies submit on
closing package forms. A key component of the Office of Management and Budget's GAAP effort,
therefore, is training for agency staff. The Office of Management and Budget will offer training courses,
as needed, for most of the closing packages.

The objective of each course is to teach agency staff to accurately complete the closing package forms.
The courses emphasize practical know-how with a bare minimum of theory.
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THE IMPORTANCE OF TIMELINESS IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

In May 1987, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Concepts Statements No. 1
of the Governmental Standards Board titled "Objectives of Financial Reporting". Paragraph 66 states:

If financial reports are to be useful, they must be issued soon enough after the reported events to
affect decisions. Timeliness alone does not make information useful, but the passage of time
usually diminishes the usefulness that the information otherwise would have had. In some
instances, timeliness may be so essential that it may require sacrificing a certain amount of precision
or detail. Sometimes a timely estimate is more useful than precise information that takes a long time
to produce.

Timeliness is essential:

e Standard & Poor's policy statement encourages governments to issue audited financial
statements no later than six months after the end of the fiscal year.

e The Government Finance Officers' Association Certificate of Achievement Program likewise
emphasizes timeliness. Applications for the Certificate must be postmarked no later than six
months after the end of the fiscal year. A copy of the government's published audited CAFR
must accompany the application.

North Dakota's goal is to issue its published audited CAFR no later than December 31.

THE CLOSING PROCESS--AGENCIES

The annual GAAP closing process begins June 30 with the end of the fiscal year. The Office of
Management and Budget will send blank closing package forms or provide online capabilities to agencies
at that time. Agencies can begin to complete some of the closing packages soon after June 30. They
may not be able to complete others until August and September.

Due dates of the closing package forms vary. The following schedule summarizes these due dates. The
Office of Management and Budget suggests that agencies complete the packages in the order shown on
the schedule.

Remember that each agency should complete only the forms that apply to their funds. The closing
Package Control Checklist will help you determine which of the packages to read and complete.
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SCHEDULE OF CLOSING PACKAGE DUE DATES
NAME OF CLOSING PACKAGE DUE DATE

CLOSING PACKAGES

l. Closing Package Control Checklist July 17
1. Miscellaneous Closing Package July 24
2. Cash and Investments Closing Package July 31
3. Compensated Absences Closing Package July 31
4. Litigation Closing Package July 31
5. Miscellaneous Loss Liabilities Closing Package July 31
6. Inventory Closing Package August 7
7. Prepaid Assets Closing Package August 7
8. Loan and Refund Receivables Closing Package August 7
9. Fixed Assets Checklist Closing Package August 14
10. General Fixed Assets Closing Package August 14
11. Construction In Progress Closing Package August 14
12. Lease Closing Package August 14
13. Miscellaneous & Interest Receivables/Revenues Closing Package August 14
14. Insurance Claims Closing Package August 14
15. GASB 34 Reporting Closing Package August 21
16. Loans and Notes Payable Closing Package August 21
17. Accounts Payable Closing Package September 4
18. Tax Revenues Closing Package September 11
19. Grant Revenue Closing Package September 11



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL GAAP CLOSING PROCESS 6/1/2015 01
REVISED: PAGE:
14
NAME OF CLOSING PACKAGE DUE DATE
SPECIAL GOVERNMENT UNIT CLOSING PACKAGES
A. For funds submitting audited financial reports September 25
B. For the following Proprietary Funds:
- Central Services (Fund 790/927) September 4
- Fleet Services (Fund 700/918) September 4
- Information Technology Department (Fund 780/929) September 4
- ITD HIT Planning Loan Fund (Fund 987) September 4
- Roughrider Industries (Fund 926) September 4
- State Lottery Fund (Fund 292/966) September 4

- Risk Management (Fund 288 & 275/912)
- State Bonding (Fund 210/924)
- Fire and Tornado (Fund 211/923)
C. Other Special Government Units
- Cash Bonds - Industrial Commission (944)

- Commandants Fund (Fund 941)

- Developmental Center Residents Funds (Fund 986)

- Developmental Center Residents Welfare Fund (Fund 996)

- Donor Implied Trust - HSC (Fund 931)

- ITD Thordarson Scholarship Trust Fund (Fund 937)

- Home Quarter Purchase Fund (Fund 972)
- Industrial School Student Accounts (Fund 993)

- Insurance Company Deposits (Fund 945)

September 11
September 11

September 11

August 14
August 14
August 14
August 14
August 14
August 14
August 14
August 14

August 14
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NAME OF CLOSING PACKAGE DUE DATE
- Judges Retirement Fund (Fund 922) August 14
- District Court Collection Fund (Fund 946) August 14
- District Court Bond Fund (Fund 947) August 14
- Agriculture Cash and Investments (Fund 942) August 14
- Prisoner Accounts (Fund 992) August 14
- PSC Trustee Accounts (Fund 939) August 14
- School for the Blind - Federal Quota (Fund 948) August 14
- School for the Deaf Student Donation Trusts (Fund 988) August 14
- School for the Deaf Student Scholarship Trust (Fund 989) August 14
- School for the Deaf Students Personal Accts. (Fund 994) August 14
- Five State Judicial Conference (Fund 935) August 14
- State Hospital - Special Revenue Funds (Fund 938) August 14
- State Hospital - Patient Funds (Fund 991) August 14
- Veteran's Home - Custodial (Fund 990) August 14
- Water Commission Debt Service Fund (Fund 962) September 11

- Dept. of Transportation Debt Service Fund (Fund 949) September 11
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MASTER CLOSING PACKAGE MATRIX

The Master Closing Package Matrix, which follows, summarizes the requirements for each business
unit/fund. Determine which sections from the Non-Component Unit and/or Component Unit Closing
Manual that are applicable to your business unit/fund by reviewing this Master Closing Package Matrix.
Across the top of the matrix is a columnar list of requirements. On the left hand side, is a list of all funds
by business unit. Locate your business unit/fund(s) and move across the columns left to right. An "X"
indicates those sections that are applicable to your business unit. You must complete each section with
an "X".,
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THE CLOSING PROCESS--OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET

The Office of Management and Budget will use PeopleSoft to compile the statewide financial statements.
During July through mid-November, the Office of Management and Budget staff will prepare the financial
statements and the related notes. They will:

e Prepare PeopleSoft input forms for:
-- Agency closing package amounts.
--  Special government agency financial statement amounts.

--  Other adjusting journal entries.
e Key the input and post it to PeopleSoft

e Prepare and make adjustments to the fund financial statements for the government-wide
statements.

e Compile notes to the financial statements.
e Update CAFR statistical tables with current-year data.
e Compile other required information for the CAFR.

e Prepare the CAFR for printing.

AUDIT OF THE STATE'S CAFR

Meanwhile, the audit of the CAFR will be in progress. This audit will not replace the annual audit of
individual component unit financial statements. The auditors of the State's CAFR will review the data and
procedures within the Office of Management and Budget. They will also review closing package forms
and the supporting working papers. AGENCIES ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING WORKING
PAPERS TO SUPPORT DATA ON CLOSING PACKAGE FORMS. The State Auditor's Office will be
auditing the statewide financial statements.

THE FINISHED PRODUCT

The final CAFR should be ready to go to the printer in early December.
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GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Each agency's Executive Director and Finance Director are responsible for submitting to the Office of
Management and Budget closing package forms and/or financial statements that are:

e Accurate

e Complete

e Completed in accordance with instructions
e Timely

If your agency is unable to submit data by the required date, call the Office of Management and Budget
as soon as possible.

IMPORTANCE OF APPROVALS

It is important that the "approved" line on each closing package form bear the signature of the agency's
Finance Director or Executive Director. Auditors will expect these to be "live" signatures--not rubber
stamped or typewritten.

WORKING PAPERS

Preparation and maintenance of working papers is a primary responsibility of each agency.
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PURPOSE OF WORKING PAPERS

Agencies should keep working papers to support each amount they enter on each closing package form.
Auditors may review some or all of your working papers.

GENERAL SUGGESTIONS

e Working papers should be neat, legible, complete, accurate, logically organized, and self-
supporting.

e Each working paper should indicate the purpose for which it was prepared.

e Your working papers should clearly support the conclusion(s) you reached and the amounts you
entered on the closing package forms.

e Each working paper should bear the name or initials of the preparer and the preparation date.

e The agency's Finance Director is responsible for keeping all working papers until the audit of the
statewide financial statements is complete. Include a copy of each completed closing package
form with the working papers.
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NAMES AND NUMBERS

Contact the Financial Reporting/GAAP Compliance staff in the Office of Management and Budget on
comments relating to this manual.

Telephone: 328-2680

Mailing Address: CAFR Reporting
Office of Management and Budget
600 East Boulevard, Dept. 110
Bismarck, ND 58505-0400

Physical Location: Fourth Floor, State Capitol Building
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

The purpose of this closing package is to help each agency determine which of the other closing
packages it must complete by fund. It also tells the Office of Management and Budget what closing
packages to expect from each agency by fund. [Note: Fixed Asset Closing Packages (Checklist,
Summary, Construction In Progress), Miscellaneous Summary, GASB 34 Reporting, Loans and Notes
Payable, Litigation and Lease Closing Packages all should be completed on an agency level rather than
by fund].

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e Read this closing package before you begin work on any other closing package.

e Complete the Closing Package Control Checklist on or before the due date indicated in the
Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Cash. PeopleSoft includes much of the data the Office of Management and Budget needs regarding
cash. For purposes of this closing package, therefore:

e Cash excludes accounts shown on the PeopleSoft General Ledger Trial Balance by Dept/Fund,
as of June 30 (not including amounts processed in July and applied back to June).

e Cash includes:

-- Cash on hand (petty cash, for example)

--  Cash collected prior to July

--  Deposits with financial institutions (checking account balances, for example); and

--  Cash or deposits your agency holds in a trustee capacity or as an agent for others.
Fixed Assets. Fixed assets are significant assets the State plans to hold or use for a long time. Short-lived
assets costing a small amount are not fixed assets. Any asset costing $5,000 or more that will be used by
your agency for more than one year is a Fixed Asset. Examples of fixed assets include: Land and Land
Improvements, Building and Building Improvements, Infrastructure, Equipment, and Construction in
Progress.
Financing Agreement. Agreement, other than a lease agreement, to make future payments for money

received or work completed for your agency in lieu of money received (although funds are normally in an
escrow account for your agency).

Grant. A grant consists of cash or other assets that a grantor contributes to the State. The grantor usually
specifies that the State must use or expend the assets for particular programs, activities, or facilities.

Grantor. A grantor is an organization that provides grant funds to others. An example of a grantor who
provides funds to State agencies is the Federal government.
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Grant Revenues. Grant revenues are revenues your agency receives from a grantor as the primary
recipient. Do not report grant amounts you receive from other state funds or State agencies as grant
revenues. (These receipts are interfund transactions. Also see the definitions of Grant, Grantor, and
Revenues).

Insurance Claim. An insurance claim is an application for payment that an insured, reinsured, or other
covered party files with a State insurance claim-paying program. Some insurance claims are valid, some
are partially valid, and others are not valid.

Insurance Claim-Paying Program. State insurance claim-paying programs accept risks instead of paying
insurance companies to accept these risks. Insurance claim-paying programs do one of the following:

e Contract with private insurance carriers to process and/or pay insurance claims
e Pay insurance claims directly

The State Unemployment Compensation Program, however, is not an insurance claim-paying program for
closing package purposes.

Inventory. Inventory includes all materials, supplies, and other goods held for future use or sale.
Inventories are short-lived assets. Agencies normally use or sell inventory items within one year. Land,
buildings, construction in progress, and equipment (fixed assets) are not inventory. Any asset costing
more than $5,000 that will be used by your agency for more than one year is a fixed asset, not inventory.
Report the following as inventories:

e Materials and supplies your agency plans to issue to other sections within your agency. (For this
closing package, inventory includes only items in central storage areas. Once items are issued to
individual departments for use in operations, the items are no longer inventory).

e Merchandise for sale to the public, other agencies, or other governments.

e Manufacturing inventories of raw materials, work in progress, and finished goods.

e Harvested crops and livestock.

Funds are not required to complete the Inventory Closing Package unless they have an inventory greater
than $20,000 at June 30.

Investment. The Cash and Investments Closing Package addresses both investments on and off of
PeopleSoft. Such investments may include marketable securities, certificates of deposit, money market
certificates, or other financial instruments.

Liability. A liability is an obligation resulting from past transactions that will (or is likely to) result in future
payments and/or reductions in future revenues.

Litigation. Litigation includes disputes or legal contests carried out and resolved through the judicial

process. In everyday language, litigation and lawsuits mean nearly the same thing. The Litigation Closing
Package concentrates on:

e Only cases not being handled by the Attorney General
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e Litigation matters that at June 30 will or may result in claims against the State's current or future
resources. This includes lawsuits that at June 30 are:

--  Settled but not yet paid
-- In-progress
--  Threatened

e Settled and in-progress lawsuits of the State against others at June 30 that probably will result in
a gain to the State.

e Major changes in lawsuit status that occur in the six months after June 30 (July 1 through
December 31).

Loans and Notes Payable. Loan received from another entity or Bank of North Dakota to be repaid in the
future.

Miscellaneous Loss Contingency. Loss contingencies are situations involving uncertainty as to possible
loss. The uncertainty will be resolved when certain events occur or fail to occur. Loss contingencies may
result from litigation, claims, grant disallowances, threatened property loss, and uncollectible receivables.
Specific closing packages, however, cover these situations. An example of a miscellaneous loss
contingency is the potential loss resulting from guarantees of others' debts (loan guarantee programs).

Miscellaneous Loss Liability. Loss situations that represent known liabilities at June 30 are loss liabilities.
Loss liabilities may result from litigation and claims. Specific closing packages, however, cover these
situations. Also, some losses (such as property losses and uncollectible receivables) cause decreases in
assets rather than increases in liabilities. Do not report these situations as miscellaneous loss liabilities.
An example of a miscellaneous loss liability is a known loss resulting from guarantees of others' debts.

Miscellaneous Receivables/Revenues. Any receivables that are not tax receivables, grant receivables,
loan receivables, refund receivables, interest receivables, or due from other state Funds are
miscellaneous receivables for purposes of this closing package. This category includes receivables
generated from the following types of activity:

e Licenses and fees

e Charges for goods and services

e Fines and forfeitures

e Sales of fixed assets

e Agricultural commodities assessments

e Contributions, donations, and awards
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Prepaid Assets / Prepaid Expenditures. Prepaid assets are types of services that are commonly paid for
in advance. Prepaid assets are short-lived assets and may include such items as insurance premiums
and rent.

Funds are not required to complete the Prepaid Assets Closing Package unless they have prepaid assets
greater than $20,000 at June 30.

Primary Recipient. Agency who receives grant monies from the non-state grantor and who is accountable
to the grantor for those grant monies (i.e. agency receiving grant monies from the federal government and
accountable to the federal government).

Revenues. Revenues are increases in net assets. For purposes of this closing package, the following
items are not revenues:

e  State Appropriations.
e  Amounts you received from other state funds or agencies within State government.
e Bond or note proceeds.
(Also see definitions of Tax Revenues, Grant Revenues, and Miscellaneous Receivables/Revenues.)

Short-Term Debt. A debt instrument, such as a loan or note payable, that is due within one year from the
time of the issuance.

Tax Revenues. Tax revenues are revenues you collect from non-State parties and deposit using
PeopleSoft revenue accounts 41100 through 418010. Some examples of tax revenues include:

e Individual and corporate income taxes
e Sales and use taxes

e Business license taxes

e (Gasoline and motor vehicle taxes

e Alcoholic liquors, beer, and wine taxes

e |nsurance taxes
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WORKING PAPERS

All working papers are subject to audit. The agency should keep copies of the completed Closing
Package Control Checklist (Control Checklist). In addition, the agency should keep any working papers
that support answers to questions on the Control Checklist. Appropriate documentation and the level of
detail will vary according to the circumstances.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--CLOSING PACKAGE CONTROL CHECKLIST (CONTROL CHECKLIST)

e Every State agency must complete the Control Checklist by fund.
e Read and complete the Control Checklist before you begin work on any other closing package.

e Work through the questions and instructions on the Control Checklist one at a time, from top to
bottom. Agencies must carefully answer every question on the Control Checklist.

e Answer each question on the Control Checklist only after you read and understand the related
definitions of Key Terms. Careful reading of these definitions is essential.

e The Control Checklist should be completed on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of
Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section. The person who completes and signs the
Control Checklist should keep a copy. The Office of Management and Budget will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Checklist follows the
instructions.
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COMPLETING THE CLOSING PACKAGE CONTROL CHECKLIST

REF

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the

‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically populate.
Complete a Closing Package Control Checklist for each state fund. (Refer to the Master Closing

Package Matrix).

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Select Yes or No from the drop down list for questions 1a-19.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
CLOSING PACKAGE CONTROL CHECKLIST
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20XX

&)

Business Unit # 99900 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name: Operating Fund

Prepared: 7/9/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-5555
Date @ Name/Signature Title/Phone

Approved: 7/11/20XX By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

NOTES: The Closing Package Control Checklist must be completed for each State Fund unless your State
Fund, per the Master Closing Package Matrix (Introduction Section), is a special government unit.
For special government units refer to the Closing Manual for Special Government Units under a
separate cover.

la. Every Agency must complete the Miscellaneous Closing Package.
1b. Every Agency must complete the GASB 34 Closing Package.
2. Does your State Fund have any cash not included on Peoplesoft or any investments

on or off Peoplesoft as of June 30?

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Cash and Investments Closing Package.

3. Does your State Fund have payroll for any employees other than what is on
the Peoplesoft Payroll System at June 30? Yes

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Compensated Absences Closing Package.

4a. Has your State Fund been involved in any litigation, that has been
settled but not yet paid at June 30, that is not being handled by the
Attorney General's Office (See Key Terms)? Yes

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Litigation Closing Package
(Settled Litigation Form ).

4b. Has your State Fund been involved in any threatened, pending, or in progress
litigation during the fiscal year that is not being handled by the
Attorney General's Office (See Key Terms)? Yes

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Litigation Closing Package
(Litigation Contingency Form).

5a. Did your State Fund incur any miscellaneous loss liabilities during the fiscal
year (See Key Terms)? No

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Miscellaneous Loss Liabilities
Closing Package (Miscellaneous Loss Liability Form ).

Revised 3/2015
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Business Unit # 99900 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name: Operating Fund

5b.

6a.

6b.

7a.

7b.

Did your State Fund incur any miscellaneous loss contingencies during the
fiscal year (See Key Terms)?

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Miscellaneous Loss Liabilities
Closing Package (Miscellaneous Loss Contingency Form).

Did your State Fund have inventory greater than $20,000 at June 30 (See Key Terms)?
If YES: a. Your Agency must complete the Inventory Closing Package by fund.

Did your State Fund have prepaid expenditures greater than $20,000 at June 30
(See Key Terms)?

If YES: a. Your Agency must complete the Prepaid Assets Closing Package
by fund.

Do non-State parties owe your State Fund money at June 30 for loans or notes?

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Loan and Refund Receivables
Closing Package (Loan Receivables Summary Form.)

Did your State Fund have more than $25,000 of expenditure refunds
receivable at June 307

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Loan and Refund Receivables
Closing Package (Refund Receivables Summary Form).

8-11. Did your Agency have any fixed assets during the fiscal year that are not

12.

13.

recorded on PeopleSoft (See Key Terms)?

If YES: a. Your agency must complete the Fixed Asset Closing Packages.
That closing package will direct you to additional fixed asset
closing packages that your agency may complete.

Did your agency have Construction in Progress at June 307

If YES: a. Your agency must complete the Construction in Progress Closing Package.

Did your Agency lease land, building or equipment during the fiscal year?

IF YES: a. Your Agency must complete the Lease Closing Package.

I
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<
D
»

<
@
2]

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Revised 3/2015
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Business Unit # 99900 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name: Operating Fund
14a. Does your State Fund have any taxes receivable at June 30 (See Key Terms)?

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Tax Revenues Closing Package
(Taxes Receivable Summary Form).

14b. Does your State Fund have any tax refunds payable at June 30 (See Key Terms)? Yes

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Tax Revenues Closing Package
(Tax Refunds Payable Summary Form).

15a. Does your State Fund have more than $10,000 in miscellaneous receivables at
June 30 (See Key Terms)? Yes

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Miscellaneous Receivables/Revenues
Closing Package (Miscellaneous Receivables Summary Form).

15b. Does your State Fund have interest receivable at June 30? Yes
If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Miscellaneous Receivables/Revenues
Closing Package (Interest Receivable Summary Form).
16. Did your State Fund handle any claims-paying programs that are not
component units during the fiscal year (See Key Terms)? Yes
If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Insurance Claims Closing Package.
17. Did your State Fund have any Peoplesoft expenditures (other than salaries, wages,

fringe benefits) and/or contract retentions during the fiscal year? Yes

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Accounts Payable
and Journal Voucher Closing Packages.

18. Did your State Fund receive more than $100,000 of grant revenues as the primary
recipient during the fiscal year ? (See Key Terms) Yes

If YES: a. Your State Fund must complete the Grant Revenue Closing Package.

19. Did your Agency have any loans or notes payable or other other financing agreements,
other than leases, that require future payments or any short-term debt during Yes
the fiscal year, even if not outstanding at year end? (See Key Terms)

If YES: a. Your Agency must complete the Notes and Loans Payable,
including Other Financing Agreements, Closing Package.

You have now answered all questions that apply to your State Fund. Keep a copy for yourself
so you will know which closing packages your State Fund must complete this year.

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the financial statements contain certain footnote disclosures.

The purpose of this closing package is to gather the information needed for the required disclosures that
are not included in the other closing packages. Also, this closing package will be used to gather other
miscellaneous information.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e All agencies receiving the closing manual are required to complete the Miscellaneous Closing
Package Form. This Form contains a series of questions.

- If a question is not applicable to your agency, indicate this with a NO and proceed to the
next question.

- If a question is applicable to your agency, provide the required data in the space provided
and proceed to the next question.

e Forms should be completed on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing
Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Advance Refunding/Defeasance Bonds issued to refinance an outstanding bond issue before the date the
outstanding bond becomes due. Proceeds of the advance refunding bonds are deposited in a trust, or
with a fiscal agent and are used to redeem the underlying bonds at their maturity, or to pay interest on the
bonds.

Debt Issuance Cost All costs incurred to issue the bonds, including but not limited to insurance costs (net
of rebates from the old debt, if any), financing costs (such as rating agency fees), and other related costs
(such as printing legal, administrative, and trustee expenses).

Fiscal Agent. A fiduciary agent, usually a bank, who performs the function of paying debt principal and
interest when due.

Gain Contingency. Gain contingencies are situations involving uncertainty as to possible gain that will be
resolved when certain events occur or fail to occur.

Government-Mandated These transactions occur when a government at one level provides resources to
another government and requires that government to use the resources for a specific purpose. The
principal characteristics of these transactions are that the provider government requires the recipient
government to perform a program, or to pass the resources to another entity (subrecipient) to perform the
program, and requires the fulfillment of certain eligibility requirements. Eligibility requirements include time
requirements (when the resources are allowed to be used), reimbursements requirements (resources
provided after certain costs incurred), and contingencies (certain events must occur before resources are
provided)

Impaired Asset. An asset may be considered impaired due to physical damage; new laws, regulations or
environmental factors making the asset partially or totally unusable; technology or other circumstances
making the asset obsolete; construction stopping before fully complete, or using the asset in a different
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manner at less than full capacity or the estimated useful life of the asset decreased.

Imposed Non-Exchange Financial Transaction

This type of transaction occurs when a government imposes an assessment on a hon-governmental
entity without an exchange of services, benefits, or goods. Fines, penalties, and forfeitures are examples
of this type of transaction.

Nonexchange Financial Guarantee is a guarantee of an obligation of a legally separate entity or
individual, including a blended or discretely presented component unit, which requires the guarantor to
indemnify a third-party obligation holder under specified conditions.

Non-Exchange Financial Transactions In a non-exchange transaction, the government either gives value
or a benefit to a non-governmental entity without directly receiving equal value in exchange or receives
value or benefit from another party without directly giving equal value in exchange. The groups of non-
exchange transactions include Imposed Non-Exchange Financial Transaction, Voluntary Non-Exchange
Financial Transaction, and Government-Mandated.

Off-Balance-Sheet Risk. Financial instruments off-balance-sheet risk is the risk that an entity may incur an
accounting loss that exceeds the amount recognized in its financial statements.

Organizations _or Foundations that are Component Units: Certain legally separate, tax-exempt
organizations will be considered component units of the State and will need to be included in the CAFR if
the following criteria are met:

1. The resources received or held by the organization are entirely or almost entirely for the benefit of
the state agency or its constituents.

2. The state agency is entitled to or can access the majority of the economic resources of the
organization.

3. The economic resources of the organization are significant to the state.

Pollution Remediation Obligation. An obligation to address the detrimental effects of existing pollution by
participating in pollution remediation activities, such as obligations to clean up hazardous wastes or to
remove contamination such as asbestos.

Probable. A future event is probable if the event is likely to occur.

Questioned Costs. Those costs for which a governmental agency has previously been reimbursed or will
be reimbursed with federal monies and are subsequently disallowed. The disallowance results in a liability
for the reimbursed agency.

Reasonably Possible. A future event is reasonably possible if the chance of its occurrence is greater than
remote but less than probable.

Receivership Management by a receiver (such as a state agency with regulatory authority over certain
businesses) of a business or property that is involved in a legal process such as bankruptcy.

Related Parties. Entities outside of the State's reporting entity that are affiliated with the reporting entity.
Includes parties with which the reporting entity can influence or be influenced by the management or
operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be prevented from
fully pursuing its own separate interests.
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Remote. A future event is remote if the event has only a slight chance of occurring.

Sale or Pledge of Receivables or Future Revenues. Transactions in which an entity receives or is entitled
to proceeds in exchange for future cash flows from receivables or from specific future revenues. The
transferring entity’s continuing involvement with these receivables or revenues determines whether there
has been a sale or pledge.

Sale-Leaseback Transactions Sale-leaseback transactions involve the sale of property by the owner and
a lease of the property back to the seller. A sale of property by the owner and a lease of the property back
to the seller.

Service Concession Arrangements (SCA). An arrangement between a government (the transferor) and
an operator in which all of the following criteria are met:

e The transferor conveys to the operator the right and related obligation to provide public
services through the use and operation of a capital asset (referred to here as a “facility”) in
exchange for significant consideration, such as an up-front payment, installment payments,
a new facility, or improvements to an existing facility.

e The operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties.

e The transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve what services the operator
is required to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the
prices or rates that can be charged for the services.

Sinking Fund. A fund established to account for the accumulation of resources and the payment of,
general long-term debt principal and interest. Also referred to as a Debt Service Fund.

Termination Benefits. Termination benefits are benefits provided by employers to employees as an
inducement to hasten the termination of services or as a result of voluntary or involuntary early
termination. Benefits include early-retirement incentives, severance benefits, and other related benefits.

Unasserted Claims. Potential exposure to lawsuits for which a claim has yet to be filed by the complaining
party.

Voluntary Non-Exchange Financial Transaction These transactions result from legislative or contractual
agreements entered into willingly by two or more parties. The principal characteristics of these
transactions are they are not imposed or mandated by the provider of the fund and fulfillment of eligibility
requirements is essential. Examples of this type of transaction include certain grants and private
donations. Eligibility requirements include time requirements (when the resources are allowed to be
used), reimbursements requirements (resources provided after certain costs incurred), and contingencies
(certain events must occur before resources are provided)
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COMPLETING THE MISCELLANEOUS SUMMARY FORM QUESTIONNAIRE

REF EXPLANATION

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

(2) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The
Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
MISCELLANEOUS SUMMARY FORM QUESTIONNAIRE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 , XXXX

Page 1 of 5

1
Business Unit # 99000  Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
Prepared: 7/15/XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 7116/XX By: I.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

NOTE: COMPLETE ONE FORM PER AGENCY. (SEE KEY TERMS)

1.

Did your agency have any newly defeased debt as a result of advance
refunding (See Key Terms)?

If YES: Indicate the nature of the transaction, any economic gain/loss, and the
amount of defeased debt in-substance outstanding at June 30.

During the current year our agency issued $89 million in expansion bonds to advance r

$12 million of existing bonds. The new bonds bear an interest rate of 7.8%, while the

original bonds averaged 9.3%. Our agency advance refunded these bonds to reduce ol

total debt service payments over the next 36 years by approximately $10 million and to

obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service

payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $1.5 million.

Does your agency maintain any sinking or reserve funds (See Key Terms)?

If YES: Indicate the nature and amount of each sinking or reserve fund.

Does your agency have any guaranteed debt, moral obligation debt
or no-commitment debt?

If YES: Indicate the nature and amount for each debt.

private facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The State assumes no liability or

responsibility for this debt. Thus, no amounts are accrued for in the financial statemen

No-commitment debt amounts to $2,000,000 at June 30, 20XX.

Does your agency have any authorized, unissued debt?
If YES: Indicate the purpose and amount of any authorized, unissued debt.

Revenue bonds authorized and unissued at June 30, 20XX, total $15,150,000. The pu

of the bonds is for building improvements, but these bonds are not expected to be issu

Has your agency spent any federal monies that are considered
"questioned costs" as a result of recent audits (See Key Terms)?

If YES: Indicate the nature and amount in the space provided below.

Our agency currently faces disallowances of federal funds for Medicaid and Emergenc)

Management. The total amount in question is $6.5 million as a result of federal audits

state reviews. Additional audits and reviews are pending. All amounts are being or wil

contested by the State. We are unable to determine the effect on the State, if any, of &

resulting liabilities.

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Revised 3/2015
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
MISCELLANEOUS SUMMARY FORM QUESTIONNAIRE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 , XXXX

Business Unit # 99000  Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

6. Are you aware of any unasserted claims against your agency existing at
June 30 or up to the date this Form was completed (See Key Terms)?

If YES: Describe the situation below.

7. Are you aware of any violations of finance related legal or contractual
provisions affecting your agency?

If YES: Describe the situation below.

8. Was your agency involved in any related party transactions during
the fiscal year (See Key Terms)?

If YES: Describe the situation below.

9. Does your agency have any significant commitments at June 30
other than those reported on the Construction In Progress
Closing Package? Yes

If YES: Describe the situation (including amounts) below.
Our agency has committed to acquire various agricultural equipment under four long-te

contracts, with terms extending from three to fourteen years, beginning in 20XX. Base«
current prices, the purchase commitment approximates $1.1 billion.

10. Does your agency have any gain contingencies greater than $150,000 at June 30,
not being handled by the Attorney General's Office (See Key Terms)?
Yes
If YES: Describe the situation and any related information including:
A. The probability of the gain is best described as (check one):
X Probable Reasonably Possible Remote

B. Amount or range of amounts of estimated gains to the State:

$ 160,000 to  $ 200,000

Revised 3/2015
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
MISCELLANEOUS SUMMARY FORM QUESTIONNAIRE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 , XXXX

Business Unit # 99000  Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

11.

12.

13.

14.

Are you aware of any accounting activity/funds that are not on PeopleSoft
and are not included in a closing package?

If YES: Indicate the nature and amount of the activity/fund not included on
PeopleSoft or the closing packages.

Does your agency have any financial instruments that have off-balance-sheet
risk and financial instruments or concentrations of credit risk?

(Examples of financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk are commitments

to lend, financial guarantees, options, recourse obligations on receivables sold,
obligations to repurchase securities sold, commitments to purchase or sell other
financial instruments at predetermined prices, futures contracts, interest rate and
foreign currency swaps, and obligations arising from financial instruments sold short.)

If YES: Describe the situation below.

Does your agency have any affiliated tax-exempt organizations or foundations that
may be component units (See Key Terms) which have either annual revenues,
annual expenses, assets or liablitieis of $1 million or more?

If YES: Describe the situation below.

Is your agency obligated to provide termination benefits (see Key Terms), other than
normal retirement benefits, to any employees at fiscal year end June 30?

If YES: Explain the type of benefits to be provided.

Revised 3/2015
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
MISCELLANEOUS SUMMARY FORM QUESTIONNAIRE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 , XXXX

Business Unit # 99000  Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

15. Does your agency have any companies under receivership (see Key terms) or other trustee arrangement

at fiscal year end June 30?

If YES: Describe the situation below.

16. Does your agency have any individual assets with original costs of $1 million or more that are
impaired or potentially impaired (see Key Terms)?

Yes
If YES: Provide a brief description of each asset, the asset ID number if on Peoplesoft, and a brief
description of the circumstances surrounding each asset.
Our Administration building is structurally unsound and has been abandoned. Original
cost was $1.5 million. Peoplesoft ID is 1234.
17. Has your agency sold or pledged its receivables or future revenues to another agency or third party?
Yes

If YES: Describe the situation below.

Future fishing license revenues have been pledged to repay $2.8 million in revenue bond is
in August of 2003 to build new boat ramps on the Missouri River. The bonds are payable sc
from fishing license revenue. Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expe
to require less than 50 percent of revenues. Total principal and interest paid and total fishin
license revenue were 385,000 and 400,000, respectively.

18. Does your agency have any pollution remediation obligations? (see Key Terms)

If YES: Describe the situation below.

19. Does your agency have any Service Concession Arrangements (SCA's)? (see Key Terms)

If YES: Describe the situation below.

Revised 3/2015
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
MISCELLANEOUS SUMMARY FORM QUESTIONNAIRE
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 , XXXX

Business Unit # 99000  Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

20. Did your agency extend or receive a nonexchange financial guarantee to a legally separate

entity or individual, including a blended or discretely presented component unit, Yes
which requires the agency ( the guarantor) to indemnify a third-party obligation
holder under specified condition: (See Key Terms)

If YES: Describe the situation below.

Commerce guaranteed a 10 year, $5 million bonds issued by a discretely presented component unit, with a nonexche
financial guarantee. Annual principal payments are due November 1 each year; semiannual interest payments due
November 1 and May 1. The discretely presented component unit made all required payments through May 2014. In
2014, Commerce determined that the discretely presented component unit will be unable to make the required remail
principal and interest payments; . As June 30, 2014, Commerce calculated the discounted present value of the remai
$3,360,000 debt service payments (principal and interest) to be $3,060,000.

21. a.  Does your agency receive resources from an imposed non-exchange transaction prior to
the period when the use of the resources are either required or first permitted?

22. b.  Does your agency receive resources from a government-mandated or voluntary non-exchange

transaction where all eligibility requirements, except time requirements, have been met?
23. Does your agency, acting as a lender, receive any payments for points?

If YES: Describe the situation below.

24. Did your agency enter into a sales-leaseback transaction where a gain or loss is recorded?
(See Key Terms)

If YES: Describe the situation below.

Revised 3/2015




STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

(THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Most cash is on PeopleSoft and most investments are accounted for by the State Treasurer's Office.
There are, however, some exceptions. Examples of such exceptions include petty cash and some
investments held by agencies (see cash definition).

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State's balance sheet show the amount and credit risk
categorization of cash and investments under State control at midnight on June 30.

The Office of Management and Budget will obtain most of the needed cash data from PeopleSoft and

certain investment data specifically required by the North Dakota Century Code to be accounted for by
the State Treasurer's Office. This closing package will provide the remaining data.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

Complete the Cash and Investments Summary Form on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule
of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Bank Balance - Cash. The balance reported on your bank statement as of June 30. If your bank
statement cycle end date is other than June 30 use the statement ending in June closest to June 30.

Book Balance - Cash. The book balance of a bank account is the balance on your accounting records or
in your checkbook on June 30. Your agency should reconcile the book balance with the statement the
bank provides on a monthly basis.

Cash. PeopleSoft includes much of the data the Office of Management and Budget needs regarding
cash. For purposes of this closing package, therefore:

e Cash and cash equivalents excludes accounts shown on the PeopleSoft General Ledger Trial
Balance Report at June 30.

e Cash and cash equivalents includes:
-- Cash on hand (petty cash, for example).

-- Cash collected before July 1 that is posted to PeopleSoft or deposited in a financial
institution account after June 30.

--  Wire Transfers received by the Bank of North Dakota before July 1 but posted to PeopleSoft
after June 30. This cash is reported as cash at the Bank of North Dakota. Agencies may
need to check with the State Treasurer’s Office to verify the date received by the Bank.

-- Cash at the Bank of North Dakota at June 30 received from credit card sales.

-- Deposits with financial institutions (i.e. checking account balances, passbook savings for
example).
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-- Cash or deposits your agency holds in a trustee capacity or as an agent for others.

-- Petty cash balances and external bank accounts authorized by the State Auditor and the
State Treasurer under NDCC 54-06-08.1.

-- Other agency cash accounts not on PeopleSoft (authorized and unauthorized).
-- Certificates of Deposit and investments with an original maturity of 3 months or less.
Collateral. Security pledged by a financial institution to a governmental entity for its deposits.

Counterparty. Issuers of a security, a broker-dealer selling securities or a third party holding securities or
collateral.

Depository Insurance. Insurance on deposits with financial institutions. For our purposes, insurance
includes:

e Federal depository insurance funds, such as those maintained by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC currently insures up to $250,000 per deposit).

Investment. The Cash and Investment Closing Package addresses both investments on and off
PeopleSoft. Such investments may include marketable securities, U.S. Treasury Bonds, certificates of
deposit, money market certificates, or other financial instruments. Report your agency's investments as
well as any investments your agency holds as a trustee or agent for others.

Fair Value. The value assigned to an asset, based on the amount for which the asset could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, or as determined
by an accepted trading market. However, certificates of deposits are normally valued at cost, which is the
amount paid for the certificate.

Original Maturity Period. Original maturity period means the original maturity period to the agency holding
the investment. Original maturity period is the period from the original purchase of the investment by the
agency holding the investment to the date the investment matures.

Reqistered Security. A security that has the name of the owner written on its face.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

The Treasurer's Office will provide data to the Office of Management and Budget regarding balances
accounted for by the State Treasurer's Office. Agencies will provide data regarding cash NOT on
PeopleSoft at June 30 and investments BOTH on and off PeopleSoft at June 30.

GASB Statement 40, which was effective for fiscal years after June 15, 2004, requires that note
disclosures for certain investments include custodial credit risk, credit quality ratings, interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk. The majority of the state’s governmental funds’ investments are accounted for by
the Retirement and Investment Office (RIO) or the State Treasurer Office. The information needed for
these new disclosures will be provided by those offices. For agencies that handle their own investments,
OMB will contact the agencies that need to provide additional information on their investments.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
CASH AND INVESTMENTS CLOSING PACKAGE 6/1/2015 04
REVISED: PAGE:
3

WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep a copy of the completed Cash and
Investments Summary Form. In addition, the agency should keep any documents that support data on
that Form. For example:

June 30 bank and investment account statements from financial institutions and brokers.

Reconciliations between bank statements and book balances shown on the Cash and
Investments Summary Form for all bank accounts.

Listing of securities in investment portfolios.
Correspondence authorizing petty cash funds and clearing accounts.

Other related documents.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--CASH AND INVESTMENTS SUMMARY FORM

Carefully read the special definitions that apply to this closing package. (See the Key Terms
section).

Prepare two or more Forms if there is not enough space on one Form.
The Form(s) should show balances as of June 30.

Complete the Cash and Investments Summary Form on or before the due date indicated in the
Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

Call the Office of Management and Budget for guidance if needed. It is important to include all
cash and investments that meet the definitions of cash or investments in the Key Terms section.

The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

Round all dollar amounts on the form to the nearest whole dollar.
Prepare a separate closing package form for each fund.

Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Cash and Investments
Summary Form follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE CASH AND INVESTMENTS SUMMARY FORM -1

NOTE: See definitions to Key Terms contained in this section.

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)

(10)

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically
populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the book balance of cash not posted to PeopleSoft that applies to deposits held at the
Bank of North Dakota (BND), along with BND Certificates of Deposit with an original maturity
period of three months or less and BND Money Market Demand Accounts (MMDA). These
amounts must be as of the calendar month ended June 30.—This includes wire transfers
received by BND before July 1 but posted on PeopleSoft after June 30. State Treasurer’s
Office can provide the date received by BND.

Enter the book balance of cash not posted to PeopleSoft including non-BND deposits, along
with non-BND Certificates of Deposit with an original maturity period of three months or less and
non-BND/Money Market Demand Accounts and Daily Cash Accumulation Accounts (DCAA).
These amounts must be as of the calendar month ended June 30.

This represents Total Cash not posted to PeopleSoft along with Certificates of Deposit with an
original maturity period of three months or less and/or other instruments (i.e., MMDA, DCAA)
reclassed to cash for CAFR purposes.

Answer question [ B ] for all cash. See [ B ] on Summary Form-1.

Enter the amount of cash related to revenue entered in July (PeopleSoft) and applied back to
June. Report only the cash applied back using account 105251, Cash and Cash
Equivalants at BND. If you applied back funds using a different cash or investment
account, OMB will run a query of those apply back amounts and request further
information from you. The cash applied back to June, should be verified with the Query
for deposits recorded in July and applied back to June, NDSCAFR_DEP.

Enter the difference between the "Book Balance June 30" and the "Amount Applied Back To
June" here.

Enter the fair value of actual investments for your fund that are investments of the BND as of the
fiscal year ended June 30. Do not include any BND Certificates of Deposit with an original
maturity period of three months or less or BND MMDASs, as they are classified as cash.
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REF

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

Note:

EXPLANATION

Enter the fair value of actual investments for your fund excluding investments of the BND as of
the fiscal year ended June 30. Do not include any non-BND Certificated of Deposit with an
original maturity period of three months or less and MMDA or DCAAs, as they are classified as
cash.

This represents the Total Actual Investments for your fund at June 30, excluding any Certificates
of Deposit with an original maturity period of three months or less, and MMDAs or DCAAs that
have been classified as cash.

Total cash not applied back to June for cash deposits at the BND (9), provide the detail amounts
by account that were used to deposit the cash in PeopleSoft after June 30.

Total cash not applied back to June for cash and cash equivalents (9), provide the detail
amounts by account that were used to deposit the cash in PeopleSoft after June 30.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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COMPLETING THE CASH AND INVESTMENTS SUMMARY FORM - 2

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

The business unit number will automatically populate based on the information from Form —
1.

The state fund code will automatically populate based on the information from Form — 1.

The information regarding preparation of this Form will automatically populate based on the
information from Form — 1.

Enter the total investments for your fund as reported on PeopleSoft only at June 30, 20xx.
Include the sum of accounts 113000 and 115000.

Include the accounts to debit and credit for each amount that should be adjusted to reconcile
PeopleSoft to your June 30, 20xx Cash and Investments Summary Form-1. Include a
description for each reconciling amount. You will need to report any investments with original
maturities of less than 90 days as reconciling items as well as any investments off of
PeopleSoft. NOTE - Adjustments will be made by OMB. The agency is, however,
responsible for indicating which accounts are to be used in making the adjustments.

The total investments should equal your current year (June 30, 20xx) total investments reported
on Cash and Investment Summary Form-1 (item 12).

Enter amounts in whole dollars.
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COMPLETING THE CASH AND INVESTMENTS SUMMARY FORM - 3

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)
(5)
(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)
(10)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

The business unit number will automatically populate based on the information from Form —
1.

The state fund code will automatically populate based on the information from Form — 1.

The information regarding preparation of this Form will automatically populate based on the
information from Form — 1.

Enter the name of the financial institution. See [ A ] on this Summary Form.
Enter the bank account number or the Certificate of Deposit number.

Indicate if the Certificate of Deposit has a maturity date of more than 90 days (i.e. reported as
investments).

Briefly describe the purpose of the account.

Categorize the total bank balance according to the following three categories of custodial credit
risk:

Category Q) - Insured or collateralized by securities held by the State or by its
agent in the State's name.

2) - Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institution's trust department or agent in the State's name.

) - Uncollateralized. (This includes any bank balance that is
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution,
or by its trust department or agent but not in the State's name).

If the bank balance belongs in more than one category, indicate the dollar amount applicable to
each category on separate lines.

Enter the bank balance as of the fiscal year ended June 30 for the account.
Enter the book balance as of the fiscal year ended June 30 for the account.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.
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COMPLETING THE CASH AND INVESTMENTS SUMMARY FORM -4

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)
(7)

(8)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

The business unit number will automatically populate based on the information from Form —
1.

The state fund code will automatically populate based on the information from Form — 1.

The information regarding preparation of this Form will automatically populate based on the
information from Form — 1.

Enter the name of the Financial Institution where the investment was purchased. Amounts of the
Bank of North Dakota should not be included. Only the amount on the "Investments" line on
Summary Form-1 is subject to credit risking. See [ A ] on this Summary Form.

Enter the security number.

Briefly describe the type of security.

Categorize the investments by type according to the following three categories of custodial
credit risk:

Category Q) - Insured or registered, or securities held by the State or its agent in
the State's name.

) - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the
counterparty's trust department or agent in the State's name.

) - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty,
or by its trust department or agent but not in the State's name. (This
includes the portion of the carrying amount of any repurchase
agreement that exceeds the market value of the underlying
securities).

Enter the fair value of your investment as of the fiscal year ended June 30.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Compensated absences are employee absences, such as annual leave, sick leave, holidays, and
compensatory time off, for which the State expects to pay. The State plans to prepare its financial
statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that
the State show a liability on its financial statements at June 30 for the value of certain compensated
absences.

The purpose of this closing package is to gather information needed to record the liability for
compensated absences on the State's financial statements.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) will determine compensated absences amounts for those
agencies that are on the PeopleSoft Payroll system.

Agencies not on the PeopleSoft Payroll System, and/or not reporting compensated absences on the
PeopleSoft Payroll System, must complete the Compensated Absences Summary Form, and return it to
OMB on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the
Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Annual Leave. Employees may accumulate and carry forward up to 240 hours of annual leave from one
year to the next. Upon termination, employees receive payment for unused annual leave. To calculate the
value:

e Compute the value for each applicable employee. If you record vacation in hours, multiply
together the employee's:
--  Hourly pay rate at June 30. (Include any July 1 compensation increase).
--  Hours of accumulated annual leave (vacation) at June 30.
--  Plus employer's share of social security and Medicare taxes.

e Then add all employee amounts to obtain the total.

Compensated Absence. Compensated absences are employee absences, such as annual leave, sick
leave, holidays, and compensatory time off for which the State expects to pay.

FLSA Exempt and FLSA Nonexempt Employees. The Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) specifies
overtime rules for certain State employees. "FLSA nonexempt" employees are those covered by the Act.
"FLSA exempt" employees are those not covered by the Act. The employee's Personnel Action Form
(PAF Form) shows the present FLSA status in the block marked "E/N." An N means that the employee is
FLSA nonexempt; an E means that the employee is FLSA exempt.

Liability. A liability is an obligation resulting from past transactions that will (or is likely to) result in future
payments and/or reductions in future revenues.
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Overtime Compensatory Time. State agency policies vary regarding overtime work. Some agencies pay
employees for overtime worked while others give compensatory time off. FLSA nonexempt employees
who do not receive overtime pay receive 1-1/2 hours of compensatory time for each hour worked. Upon
termination, FLSA nonexempt employees must receive payment for any unused compensatory time. To
calculate the value:

Compute the value for each FLSA nonexempt. If you record compensatory time in hours, multiply
together the employee's:

-- Hourly pay rate at June 30. (Include any July 1 compensation increase).

-- Hours of accumulated unused compensatory overtime at June 30.

--  Plus employer's share of social security and Medicare taxes.

Then add all employee amounts to obtain the total.

Sick Leave. Employees may accumulate and carry forward sick leave indefinitely. Upon termination,
employees with at least 10 years of continuous service receive payments for 10% of their unused sick
leave. For reporting purposes we will assume that if someone works at least 5 years, then they will end
up meeting the 10 year requirement. To calculate the value:

First compute the value for each employee with at least 5 years of continuous service as of June 30.

If you record unused sick leave in hours, multiply together the employee's:

- Hourly pay rate at June 30. (Include any July 1 compensation increase.)

- Hours of accumulated unused sick leave at June 30.

- Plus employer's share of social security and Medicare taxes.

-- Total unused sick leave amount plus the employer's share of social security and
Medicare taxes times 10 percent.

Then add all employee amounts to obtain the total.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles relating to compensated absences are defined by:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Sections C60.103 through
C60.113, "Compensated Absences."

e GASB Statement No. 16, "Accounting for Compensated Absences."”

Based on these GAAP requirements, the State's policy is to record a liability on the Government-Wide
Financial Statements for the value at June 30 of:

e Accumulated unused annual leave.

e One-tenth of accumulated unused sick leave for employees with at least 5 years of continuous
service.

e Accumulated unused overtime compensatory time for FLSA nonexempt employees if the amount
is material.
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e The employer's share of social security and Medicare taxes related to the above compensated
absences.

In addition, the State records in a note disclosure the additions (value of leave earned) and deletions
(value of leave used) for compensated absences during the fiscal year.

It is the State's policy not to record a liability for the value of:
e Accumulated unused sick leave for employees with less than 5 years continuous service.
e Accumulated unused overtime compensatory time for FLSA exempt employees.

e Accumulated unused holiday compensatory time.
OMB will determine compensatory amounts for those agencies that are on the PeopleSoft Payroll system.

Agencies not on the PeopleSoft Payroll system, and/or are not reporting compensated absences on the
system, must complete the Compensated Absences Summary Form.

WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep a copy of the completed
Compensated Absences Summary Form. In addition, the agency should maintain working papers to
support each figure on that Form. For each employee, the working papers should show:

e Accumulated unused annual leave at June 30 and annual leave earned during the fiscal year.

e Accumulated unused sick leave at June 30 for employees with at least 5 years of continuous
service and sick leave earned during the fiscal year that could result in payment.

e Accumulated unused overtime compensatory time at June 30 (for FLSA nonexempt employees)
and compensatory time earned during the fiscal year (for FLSA nonexempt employees).

e Daily or hourly pay rate (dollars and cents) at June 30.

e \Whether the employee is FLSA exempt or nonexempt.

e Value of annual leave liability at June 30.

e Value of sick leave at June 30.

e Value of overtime compensatory time at June 30 for FLSA nonexempt employees.

e Employer's share of social security and Medicare taxes for the above compensated absences.

Working papers may show leave amounts in hours or in days.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--COMPENSATED ABSENCES SUMMARY FORM

e Carefully read the special definitions that apply to this closing package. (See the Key Terms
section).

e Every agency that is not on the PeopleSoft Payroll system and/or is not reporting compensated
absences on the system should complete the Compensated Absences Summary Form.

e Return the Form to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in
the Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e The Form will show the beginning compensated absences value, additions to the account,
deductions from the account and the ending compensated absences balance as of June 30.

e Round all dollar amounts on the Form to the nearest whole dollar.
e Call the Office of Management and Budget for guidance if needed.

e The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Compensated
Absences Summary Form follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE COMPENSATED ABSENCES SUMMARY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the beginning compensated absences amount as of July 1. This amount must agree to the
amount reported as the ending balance in the prior year

Enter the amount of compensated absences earned during the year. This should be determined
for each employee for each type of leave (all leave earned during the year times their June 30
pay rate), then added together for the total additions. (Be sure and include 10% of the
accumulated sick leave balance for any employees who first met the 5 year requirement for sick
leave during the year.) Include the employer's share of social security and Medicare taxes.

Enter the ending compensated absences amount as of June 30. This should include the value
of accumulated annual leave, one-tenth of the sick leave balance (for employees with at least 5
years of continuous service at June 30), and overtime compensatory time for employees of your
agency's funds at June 30.

Review the balance of the deletions. This should be the beginning balance plus additions, less
the ending balance.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
COMPENSATED ABSENCES SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

@

Business Unit #:__ 99900 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
Prepared: __ 8 /5 [/ XX_ By:__ J.P.Junior __Acct.l 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 8/ 6 | XX__ By:___ .M. Senior __ Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555_
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Adjustment Dollar
Code Description Amount

FOR OMB |AGENCY'S (GOVERNMENTAL) FUNDS

USE ONLY
Compensated Absences at July 1 @ $ 117,500
Additions to Compensated Absences @ 32,850
Deletions in Compensated Absences @ ( 29,720)
Compensated Absences at June 30 @ $ 120,630
A

FOR OMB USE ONLY

A DR  Amount to be provided for the retirement of long-term debt
CR 233002 Compensated Absences

NOTE: Include the employer's share of social security and medicare taxes related to the compensated absence
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

In everyday language, litigation and lawsuits mean nearly the same thing. This closing package
concentrates on:

e Litigation not being handled by the Attorney General's Office. Attorney General's Office refers to
Attorney General or any Attorney General staff.

e Litigation matters that at June 30 will or may result in claims against the State's current or future
resources. This includes lawsuits that at June 30 are:
-- Settled but not yet paid.
-- In-progress.
--  Threatened.

These lawsuits may be against the State, one or more of its agencies, or one or more of its
officials.

e Settled and in-progress lawsuits of the State against others at June 30 that probably will result in
a gain to the State.

e Major changes in lawsuit status that occur in the six months after June 30 (from July 1 through
December 31).

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires the State to record a liability for litigation that meets certain criteria. In
other cases, GAAP requires summary disclosures in the notes to the State's financial statements relating
to potential losses and gains.

This closing package will gather information from State agencies to identify all litigation, not being
handled by the Attorney General's Office, that may affect the State's financial statements and notes.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e For each settled (but not yet paid) lawsuit greater than $150,000 involving your agency at June
30 that is not being handled by the Attorney General's Office:

--  Complete a Settled Litigation Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in the
Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e For each in-progress or threatened lawsuit estimated to be greater than $150,000 at June 30 that
is not being handled by the Attorney General's Office:

-~ Complete a Litigation Contingency Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in the
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Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.
e To report major developments during the six months after June 30 (July 1 through December 31)
relating to settled, in-progress, or threatened lawsuits not being handled by the Attorney
General's Office:

--  Complete a Litigation Contingency Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget as soon as possible.

Such developments include:

-- Changes in previously reported cases.
--  New cases.

-- Settlement of a lawsuit.

KEY TERMS

Current Liability. In governmental funds, current liabilities are liabilities an agency expects to pay from
"expendable available financial resources.”

Gain Contingency. Gain contingencies are situations involving uncertainty as to possible gain that will be
resolved when certain events occur or fail to occur.

Liability. A liability is an obligation resulting from past transactions that will (or is likely to) result in future
payments and/or reductions in future revenues.

Litigation. Litigation includes disputes or legal contests carried out and resolved through the judicial
process. In everyday language, litigation and lawsuits mean nearly the same thing. This closing package
concentrates on:

e Litigation matters that at June 30 will or may result in claims against the State's current or future
resources. This includes lawsuits that at June 30 are:
--  Settled but not yet paid.
-- In-progress.
-- Threatened.

e Settled and in-progress lawsuits of the State against others at June 30 that probably will result in
a gain to the State.

e Major changes in lawsuit status that occur in the six months after June 30 (July 1 through
December 31).

Long-Term Liability. Long-term liabilities are liabilities other than current liabilities.

Loss Contingency. Loss contingencies are situations involving uncertainty as to possible loss that will be
resolved when certain events occur or fail to occur.
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Probable. A future event is probable if the event is likely to occur.

Reasonably Possible. A future event is reasonably possible if the chance of its occurrence is greater than
remote but less than probable.

Remote. A future event is remote if the event has only a slight chance of occurring.

Subsequent Event. Subsequent events are events or transactions that both:

e Occur after June 30 but before the State issues its financial statements.

e Have a material effect on the statements and/or the auditor's report.
Governments must disclose subsequent events in their financial statements.

Subsequent Period. The subsequent period is the time after June 30 but before the State issues its
financial statements. The State plans to issue its financial statements by December 31. For practical
purposes, therefore, the subsequent period is July 1 through December 31. Governments must disclose
on their financial statements any material events that occur during the subsequent period.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

Settled lawsuits that require the State to make future payments or suffer other future losses are liabilities.
GAAP requires the State to show liabilities existing at June 30 on its financial statements. In-progress and
threatened lawsuits at June 30 are contingent losses/gains. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) for contingencies are defined in:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Sections 1500.110 and C50.101
through .118.

e Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement 5, "Accounting For Contingencies" as
revised and interpreted.

Major liabilities and contingencies that arise after June 30 but before the State issues its financial
statements are subsequent events. GAAP relating to subsequent events includes:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section 2300.106.

e Various Statements on Auditing Standards (SAS's) and related interpretations (issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants).

Standards for professional relationships between auditors and attorneys appear in:

e Statements on Auditing Standards (Section AU 337) issued by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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e American Bar Association Statement of Policy Regarding Lawyers' Responses to Auditors'
Requests for Information (approved by the American Bar Association's Board of Governors in
December 1975).

Based on the above GAAP, the State will:

e Record a liability for settled lawsuits at June 30 that will result in future payments or losses to the
State.

e Record a liability for in-progress and threatened lawsuits at June 30 if, in the attorney's opinion:
-- Aloss to the State is probable.

-- Itis practical to estimate the loss amount.

e Disclose data on in-progress and threatened lawsuits at June 30 that do not meet the conditions
above, yet a loss to the State is reasonably possible or probable but the loss cannot be
estimated.

e Disclose data on settled and in-progress lawsuits at June 30 where a gain to the State is
probable.

e Disclose major changes in litigation that occur during the subsequent period.

The State will not:
e Disclose or record liabilities for lawsuits where the chance of loss to the State is remote.
e Record revenue in gain situations before the State actually receives the gain.

The State will record long-term liabilities related to litigation in the Government- Wide Statement of Net
Assets.
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WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep copies of the completed Settled
Litigation Forms and Litigation Contingency Forms. In addition, the agency should keep any documents
that support data reported on those Forms. Such documents may include:

e Copies of legal papers.
e Correspondence with attorneys.

e Internal agency memos.

Appropriate documentation and the level of detail will vary according to the circumstances.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--SETTLED LITIGATION FORM

o Carefully read the special definitions that apply to this closing package. (See the Key Terms
section).

e For each settled (but not yet paid) lawsuit greater than $150,000 at June 30:

--  Complete a Settled Litigation Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in the
Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e Round all dollar amounts on the Form to the nearest whole dollar.

e Use separate Settled Litigation Forms for separate lawsuits. Also use multiple Forms if multiple
funds are responsible for payment in a case.

e The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Settled Litigation Form
follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE SETTLED LITIGATION FORM

REF EXPLANATION

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit name will
automatically populate.

(2) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

GENERAL INFORMATION.

(3) Enter the case name.

(4) Enter in the Settlement Date.

(5) Enter the name, business address, and telephone number of the State's attorney.

(6) Describe:
e The nature of the lawsuit.

e Other information needed to understand the case and the nature of the settlement reached. If
the settlement resulted in a gain to the State, include the amount of the gain.

@) The agency's attorney should sign this Form before sending the original to the State Auditor’s
Office and scan in a copy and submit it to the Office of Management and Budget. The attorney's
signature acknowledges the existence of a liability and confirms that the general information
reported in (3), (4), and (6) are accurate.

FUND RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT. Complete this section only if:

e The settlement will result in a loss to the State.
e The Attorney General is not handling the case.

(8) Enter the state fund code.

(9) Enter the name of the state fund responsible for payment.

(10) Enter the total amount of Settled Litigation payable at June 30.

(11) Enter the amount your agency estimates it will pay by the end of the next fiscal year. (Include in
this total the amounts received in July and NOT applied back to June. The way you choose to
estimate it is left to your agency’s discretion, but should have some reasonable basis as your
auditors may review the calculation.)

(12) Enter the settlement amount payable at June 30, net of next fiscal year’s payments.

Note: Enter amounts in whole dollars.
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SETTLED LITIGATION FORM
At June 30, 20XX

@

Business Unit #: 999 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

Prepared: 8/5/20XX  By: J.P.Junior Acct. | 328-5555
@ Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Approved: 8/6/20XX By: I.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328-5555

Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

GENERAL INFORMATION

@)

Case name: City of Bismarck vs. State of North Dakota Settlement Date: 5-25-XX

Name, address, and phone of the attorney handling the case: I.B. Legal, Dank and Wilson, PO Box 234,

Bismarck, ND 58502-0234 222-5555

éase description: The City of Bismarck alleged that Sample Agency wrongfully denied their

application for a state grant. The State Supreme Court ordered Sample Agency to pay the city

$750,000 during fiscal year 20XX.
@)
Reviewed: 7 129 | XX By: I.B. Legal Title: Asst. Attorney
Date Attorney Name

Dollar
Description Amount

FUND RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT

State Fund Code 888 State Fund Name Operating Fund

Settled Litigation payable at June 30 $ 750,000.00

Less:

Settled Litigation payable after payments from FY 1901

Amount expected to be paid by June 30, 1901 @ ( 700,000.00 )

$  50,000.00

Revised 3/2015
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To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The
Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--LITIGATION CONTINGENCY FORM

e For each in-progress or threatened lawsuit estimated to be greater than $150,000 at June 30:
--  Complete a Litigation Contingency Form.

--  Submit it to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in
the Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e Carefully read the special definitions that apply to this closing package. (See the Key Terms
section).

e To report major developments between July 1 and December 31 relating to settled, in-
progress, or threatened lawsuits:

--  Complete a Litigation Contingency Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget as soon as possible.

Such developments include:

-- Major changes in previously reported cases.

-- Major new cases.

-- Settlement of a major lawsuit.
e Round all dollar amounts on the Form to the nearest whole dollar.
e Use a separate Litigation Contingency Form for each lawsuit.

e The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Settled Litigation
Form follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE LITIGATION CONTINGENCY FORM

REF EXPLANATION

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will automatically
populate.

(2) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

GENERAL INFORMATION.
3) Check one block to indicate whether the data is year-end data or subsequent period data. For

year-end data, fill in the year. If the Form describes major changes that occurred between July 1
and December 31, enter the date that the change occurred.

4) Enter the case name if you know it. Otherwise, describe the State's opponent as completely as
possible.
(5) If you have consulted an attorney, enter:

e The attorney's name.
e The attorney's business address.
e The attorney's telephone number.

Otherwise, indicate that you have not yet consulted an attorney.
(6) Describe:

e The facts of the case.

e The case status as of the date shown in (3).

e Other information needed to understand the case and any potential gain or loss to the State.
If a potential gain exists, enter the amount or range of the gain.

If the settlement date of the case was after June 30 but before the date shown in (3),
describe the settlement terms.

(7 Check the block that best describes the probability that the situation will result in a loss. Please
check one and only one block. (See Key Terms for definitions).

(8) The agency's attorney should sign this Form before sending the original to the State Auditors
Office submitting a scanned copy to the Office of Management and Budget. The attorney's
signature acknowledges awareness of the contingent litigation and confirms that the general
information reported in (3), (4), (6) and (7) is accurate.
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(9)

Answer this question only if settlement may result in a loss to the State. Enter the three-digit
state fund code and name of the State fund(s) responsible for payment. If multiple state funds
are responsible, list all funds and show the percentage split if possible. The total of the
percentages must equal 100%.

CASE IN PROGRESS. Complete this section only if the case is in progress at the date shown in (3).

(10)

(11)

Show the date your agency became aware of the lawsuit.

Answer this question only if settlement may result in a loss to the State. Show the estimated

loss. You may express this as a single amount or as a range of amounts (minimum and
maximum).

THREATENED CASE. Complete this section only if the case is:

(12)

(13)

Note:

e Against the State.
e Threatened (not yet filed) at the date shown in (3).
Estimate the date the complaining party will file a case.

Enter your best estimate of the amount of loss. You may wish to express this as a range of
amounts (minimum and maximum).

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
LITIGATION CONTINGENCY FORM

1
Business Unit #: 999 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
Prepared: 71 23/ XXXX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 71 25 [XXXX By: I.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

GENERAL INFORMATION

Information as of: |\/ |6/30/ | | ! (Between 7/1 and 12/31)

Case name: Harold Construction vs. State of North Dakota

Name, address, and phone of the attorney handling the case: @ R.S. Donaldson, Attorney, Smith, Barnes

& Co., PO Box 178, Bismarck, ND 58502-0178. (701) 222-5555.
6
Case description Harold is seeking the balance due of $3.8 million on a $10 million construction contract. Sample

refuses to pay because of lack of adherence to contract specifications. The case has been filed in the ND Supreme Cot

is scheduled to be in March 20XX.

7
The probability that this situation will result in a loss to the State is best described as (check one):

[ ] Probable

Reasonably Possible
[ ] Remote
Reviewed: 8 /13 /XX By: R.S. Donaldson Title: Asst. Attorney
Date Attorney Name

State Fund Code(s) responsible for payment if the State loses its case:

State

Funs (D ®
Code(s) State Fund Name Percent
888 Operating Fund 100%

CASE IN PROGRESS

Date initiated: 4[24 | XX @

Amount or range of amounts of estimated loss to the State: $ 1,000,000 to $3,800,000

THREATENED CASE

Estimated date case may be filed: @ I @

Amount or range of amounts of estimated loss to the State: $ to

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Loss liabilities are loss situations for which the State knows at June 30 that it must make future payments.
Loss contingencies are situations involving uncertainty as to possible loss. The uncertainty will be
resolved when certain events occur or fail to occur.

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires the State to record a liability for some known and potential losses. In
other cases, GAAP requires disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

This closing package will gather information from State agencies regarding miscellaneous loss liabilities

and loss contingencies that exist at June 30. For example, loss liabilities or loss contingencies may arise
from guarantees of others' debts (loan guarantee programs).

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e Complete the forms in this closing package only for situations not reported in other closing
packages.

e For each miscellaneous loss liability at June 30:
--  Complete a Miscellaneous Loss Liability Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in the
Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e For each miscellaneous loss contingency at June 30:
--  Complete a Miscellaneous Loss Contingency Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in the
Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e For each major miscellaneous loss situation that occurs during the six months after June 30 (July
1 through December 31) or changes to loss situations existing at June 30:

--  Complete a Miscellaneous Loss Contingency Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget as soon as possible.

KEY TERMS

Current Liability. Current liabilities are liabilities that an agency expects to pay from expendable available
financial resources in governmental funds.

Liability. A liability is an obligation resulting from past transactions that will (or is likely to) result in future
payments and/or reductions in revenue.
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Long-Term Liability. Long-term liabilities are liabilities other than current liabilities.

Miscellaneous Loss Contingency. Loss contingencies are situations involving uncertainty as to possible
loss. The uncertainty will be resolved when certain events occur or fail to occur. Loss contingencies may
result from litigation, claims, and uncollectible receivables. Other closing packages, however, cover these
situations. An example of a miscellaneous loss contingency is the potential loss resulting from guarantees
of others' debts (loan guarantee programs).

Miscellaneous Loss Liability. Loss situations that represent known liabilities at June 30 are loss liabilities.
Loss liabilities may result from litigation and claims. Other closing packages, however, cover these
situations. Also, some losses (such as property destruction and uncollectible receivables) cause
decreases in assets rather than increases in liabilities. Other closing packages address these losses. An
example of a miscellaneous loss liability is a known loss resulting from guarantees of others' debts. (Also
see the definition of Liability).

Probable. A future event is probable if the event is likely to occur.

Reasonably Possible. A future event is reasonably possible if the chance of its occurrence is greater than
remote but less than probable.

Remote. A future event is remote if the event has only a slight chance of occurring.

Subsequent Event. Subsequent events are events or transactions that both:

e Occur after June 30 but before the State issues its financial statements.

e Have a material effect on the financial statements and/or the auditor's report.
Governments must disclose subsequent events in their financial statements.

Subsequent Period. The subsequent period is the time after June 30 but before the State issues its
financial statements. The State plans to issue its financial statements by December 31. For practical
purposes, therefore, the subsequent period is the six months from July 1 through December 31.
Governments must disclose on their financial statements any material events that occur during the
subsequent period.
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

Loss situations that represent known liabilities at June 30 are loss liabilities. GAAP requires the State to
show all liabilities existing at June 30 on its financial statements.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for loss contingencies appear in:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Sections 1500.110 and C50.101
through .118.

e Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement 5, "Accounting For Contingencies" as
revised and interpreted.

Major loss contingencies that arise after June 30 but before the State issues its financial Statements are
subsequent events. GAAP for subsequent events is defined in:

e Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Codification Section 2300.106.

e Various Statements on Auditing Standards (SAS's) and related interpretations (issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants).

Based on the above, the State's policy is to:
e Record a liability for loss liabilities at June 30.

e Record a liability for loss contingencies that exist at June 30 if it appears that:
-- Aloss to the State is probable.

-- lItis practical to estimate the amount of the probable loss.

e Disclose loss contingencies at June 30 that do not meet the conditions above, yet a loss is
reasonably possible or probable and the amount cannot be determined.

o Disclose major loss situations that arise during the subsequent period.

Usually, the State will neither disclose nor record liabilities for situations where the chance of loss to the
State is remote. The State will disclose guarantees of others' debts, however, even if the probability of
loss is remote. This is a required disclosure.

For governmental funds, the State will record long-term liabilities related to known losses and loss
contingencies in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets.
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WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep copies of the completed
Miscellaneous Loss Liability Forms and Miscellaneous Loss Contingency Forms. In addition, the agency
should keep any documents that support data reported on those forms. Appropriate documentation and
the level of detail will vary according to circumstances.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--MISCELLANEOUS LOSS LIABILITY FORM

For each miscellaneous loss liability known at June 30:
--  Complete a Miscellaneous Loss Liability Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in the
Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

Do not complete Miscellaneous Loss Liability Forms for situations you report in other closing
packages.

Round all dollar amounts on the Form to the nearest whole dollar.

Use separate Miscellaneous Loss Liability Forms for separate loss situations. Also use multiple
Forms if multiple funds are responsible for payment in a loss situation.

The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Miscellaneous Loss
Liability Form follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE MISCELLANEQOUS LOSS LIABILITY REPORT FORM

REF EXPLANATION

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

(2) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

3) Describe:
e The nature of the loss.
e When the loss became known.
e Name, business address, and telephone number of the State's attorney(s) or other expert(s).

e Any other related information.

FUND RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT.

4) Enter the state fund code.

(5) Enter the state fund name.

(6) Enter the total amount of Miscellaneous Loss payable at June 30.

@) Enter the amount of the payable your agency estimates it will pay by the end of the next fiscal

year. (Include in this total the amounts received in July and NOT applied back to June. The way
you choose to estimate it is left to your agency’s discretion, but should have some reasonable
basis as your auditors may review the calculation.)

(8) Verify the amount of the miscellaneous loss payable at June 30, net of next fiscal year’s
payments.

Note: Enter amounts in whole dollars.
To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
MISCELLANEOUS LOSS LIABILITY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

@

Business Unit;__ 999 Business Unit Name:__Sample Agency

Prepared: 7 / 23 /| XX_  By:_J.P. Junior Title:_Acct. | Phone: 328-2345
Date Employee Name

Approved: 7 / 28 /| XX_ By:._I.M. Senior Title:_Dir. Of Acctg. Phone:_328-2345
Date Employee Name

Description of situatior@

Sample Agency guarantees loans made by other agencies to small businesses. At June 30, 20XX, loans

totaling $55,000 were in default and are considered uncollectible. Sample Agency will be required to

pay the $55,000 in future years.

Description Dollar
Amount

GOVERNMENTAL FUND RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT

@ ®

State Fund Code:__888__  State Fund Name:__Operating Fund

Miscellaneous Loss payable at June 30 @ $ 75,000

Less:
Amount expected to be paid by June 30, 20XX. @ | (50000 )

Miscellaneous Loss payable (after FYXX payments). $ 25,000
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--MISCELLANEOUS LOSS CONTINGENCY FORM

For each miscellaneous loss contingency as of June 30:
--  Complete a Miscellaneous Loss Contingency Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in
the Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

For each major miscellaneous loss situation that arises between July 1 and December 31:
--  Complete a Miscellaneous Loss Contingency Form.

-- Return it to the Office of Management and Budget as soon as possible.

Do not complete Miscellaneous Loss Contingency Forms for situations you report in other closing
packages.

Round all dollar amounts on the Forms to the nearest whole dollar.
Use a separate Miscellaneous Loss Contingency Form for each loss contingency.

The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Miscellaneous Loss
Contingency Form follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE MISCELLANEOUS LOSS CONTINGENCY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

()

3)

(4)

®)

(6)
(7)

(8)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Check one block to indicate whether this Form provides year-end or subsequent period data.
For year-end data, fill in the year. If the Form describes subsequent period data, enter the date
that the situation arose.

Describe:

e The nature of the loss contingency

e \When the potential loss became known

e Name, business address, and telephone number of the State’s attorney(s) or other expert(s)

e Any other related information

Check the block that best describes the probability that the situation will result in a loss. Please
check one and only one block. (See Key Terms for definitions).

Enter additional comments, if any, regarding the probability of loss.
Estimate the loss amount. Enter the estimated minimum and maximum dollar amounts. Note

that these are estimates based on the best information available to your agency's management.
If there is some reason why you cannot estimate the loss amount, please indicate the reason(s).

Enter the state fund code and the state fund name responsible for payment if the State suffers a
loss. If multiple state funds are responsible, list all funds and show the percentage split if
possible.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
MISCELLANEOUS LOSS CONTINGENCY FORM

@

Business Unit #: 999 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

Prepared: 7/23/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Approved: 7128/20XX By: I.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Information as of: [ Jsmo__ [ 1 / 1 (between7/1and 12/31)

Description of situation: @ Sample Agency guarantees construction loans made by private lenders.

The U.S. Dept. of Commerce reinsures all of the guarantees. If the default rate exceeds 5% of the

loans outstanding, however, they reinsure only 90%. The default rate has never exceeded 2%.

: 5 )The probability that this situation will result in a loss to the State is best described as (check one):

[ ]Probable [V ]Reasonably possible [ |Remote

: 6 )Comments (if any) on probability of loss:

@Estimated future loss (minimum to maximum): Approximately  $ 0 to $ 3,255,000

If you cannot estimate the loss amount, please describe why:

State Fund Code(s) responsible for payment if the State loses its case:
(8)

State Fund
Code State Fund Name Percent
888 Operating Fund 100%

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Inventory includes all materials, supplies, and other goods held for future use or for sale. Inventories are
short-lived assets. Agencies normally use or sell inventory items within one year. Land, buildings,
construction in progress and equipment (fixed assets) are not inventory. Any asset costing more than $5000
that will be used by your agency for more than one year is a Fixed Asset, not inventory.

YOU ONLY NEED TO COMPLETE THIS CLOSING PACKAGE IF YOUR STATE FUND HAD INVENTORY
GREATER THAN $20,000 AT JUNE 30.

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State record inventory on its financial statements at June 30.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e Take a physical count of inventories on hand at the end of the fiscal year. Do this as close to June
30 as possible. The date should not vary significantly from year to year. Notify the State Auditor's
Office at least two weeks in advance of the date of the physical count. They may wish to send
someone to observe the count.

e Compute the value of the inventory counted at the end of the fiscal year using an acceptable
valuation method. Acceptable methods include LIFO, specific identification, average cost, and FIFO.
The valuation method should be used consistently from year to year.

e Report the computed value of inventory on hand at the end of the fiscal year on the Inventory
Summary Form.

e The Inventory Summary Form should be completed on or before the due date indicated in the
Schedule of Closing Packages in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Average Cost. This is an acceptable method of valuing inventory items. Some computerized inventory
systems use this method. The average cost method prices items in the inventory on the basis of the average
cost of all similar goods available during the period.

First-In, First-Out (FIFO). FIFO is a method of valuing inventory items on hand. Most valuation methods
require that we make assumptions. This method assumes that agencies use inventory items in the order in
which they purchase them. That is, items on hand represent the most recent purchases.

Inventory. Inventory includes all materials, supplies, and other goods held for future use or sale. Inventories
are short-lived assets. Agencies normally use or sell inventory items within one year. Land, buildings,
construction in progress, and equipment (fixed assets) are not inventory. Any asset costing more than $5000
that will be used for more than a year is a fixed asset, not inventory. Report the following types of inventory:
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e Materials and supplies your agency plans to issue to other sections within your agency.
e Merchandise for sale to the public, other agencies, or other governments.
e Manufacturing inventories of raw materials, work in progress, and finished goods.

e Harvested crops and livestock.

Last In, First Out (LIFQ). LIFO is a method of valuing inventory based on the concept that the latest
acquisition cost should be matched with current sales revenue. The units remaining in the ending inventory
are costed at the oldest unit costs and the units in cost of goods sold, or issued, are costed at the newest
unit costs available (the opposite of FIFO).

Merchandise Inventory. This inventory category includes items you purchase for resale to others.

Periodic Inventory System. Under a periodic inventory system, an agency updates its inventory account only
periodically--perhaps just once each year. At that time, the agency would:

e Take a physical count of inventory on hand.
e Add the value of this inventory on hand to the Inventory account.

e Reverse the balance in the Inventory account at the end of the last fiscal year.

Perpetual Inventory System. Under a perpetual inventory system, an agency updates its record of inventory
guantities on hand whenever it purchases or issues inventory items. The agency may even update the value
of its Inventory account at the same time. Under a perpetual system, the agency would:

e Add quantities (and/or the associated dollar values) to its perpetual records whenever it purchases
inventory items.

e Subtract quantities (and/or the associated dollar values) from its perpetual records whenever it
issues or sells inventory items.

e Periodically take a physical count of inventory on hand at least annually at June 30.

e Adjust both its perpetual records and its Inventory account balance to reflect the results of the
physical count.

Physical Count. "Taking a physical count” means physically counting and writing down the quantities of all
inventory items actually on hand.

Specific Identification. Specific identification is an acceptable method of valuing inventory items on hand. To
use this method:

e Match specific units of inventory on hand to specific purchase invoices.

e Value the units on hand at the costs shown on the invoices.

Supply Inventory. This inventory category includes items that will be used by the state.
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

General

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) relating to inventory are defined by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section 1600.123.

GAAP requires the State to report on its financial statements the value of its inventories on hand at June 30.
Every agency should:

e Take a physical count of inventories on hand at the end of the fiscal year. Do this as close to June
30 as possible.

e Compute the value of the inventory on hand at the end of the fiscal year using an acceptable
method. Acceptable methods include LIFO, specific identification, average cost, and FIFO.

e Report the computed value of year-end inventories to the Office of Management and Budget on the
Inventory Summary Form.

Agencies may complete the Inventory Summary Form using either a periodic or a perpetual inventory
system. However, perpetual systems provide better control than periodic systems.

Methods for Valuing Inventories

Agencies should value the items using an acceptable valuation method. Acceptable methods include LIFO,
specific identification, average cost, and FIFO. Agencies may use different methods for different types of
items.

Value donated items and those costing nhominal amounts at fair market value on the date received. This is
the price the State would have to pay if it purchased similar items from regular sources. United States
Department of Agriculture food supplies are included in this category.

Identify obsolete and damaged inventory items. Value these items at $0 or otherwise mark them down
appropriately. (Valuation at $0 assumes that these items are not significant).

Call the Office of Management and Budget if you have questions about appropriate methods for valuing
manufacturing and other particular inventories.

Perpetual Inventory Systems

A perpetual inventory system can provide a list of items and quantities on hand at any date. It is very
important, however, to conduct periodic physical counts to:

e Be sure that the perpetual system is working properly.

e Correct the perpetual records for any errors discovered.

Allocation of Inventory Values Among Funds

To complete the Inventory Summary Form, you normally must enter dollar amounts for each state fund that
purchases inventory. You may need to distribute the total value of inventory on hand among two or more
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state funds if you purchased it using two or more state funds. To determine if such an allocation is
necessary, determine which state funds have recorded expenditures for inventory items.
WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency's finance department should keep a copy of the
completed Inventory Summary Form. In addition, the agency should maintain working papers to support
each figure on that Form. If the finance department does not maintain all supporting records, it should keep
a written list showing who has these records. Working papers should include:

Completed Inventory Count Control Log.
Completed Inventory Count Sheets.
All lists of items on hand after the physical count.
Description of the method(s) used to value inventory on hand.
A working paper showing the following for inventory on hand at the date of the physical count:
-- Description of each inventory item.
-- ldentifying code, if any, for each item.
-~ Quantity of each item.
- Value per unit of each item.
-- The total value of each item.
-- The total value of all inventory reported on the Inventory Summary Form.
Working papers fully describing the methods used to distribute inventory values among state funds.

Working papers fully describing any adjustments you have made to perpetual inventory records.

Appropriate documentation may vary somewhat depending on the valuation methods, count procedures,
and type of inventory system your agency maintains.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--INVENTORY SUMMARY FORM

e Complete the Inventory Summary Form. YOU ONLY NEED TO COMPLETE THIS CLOSING
PACKAGE IF YOUR STATE FUND HAD INVENTORY GREATER THAN $20,000 AT JUNE 30.

e |f you use a periodic inventory system, the Form will show values of inventories on hand at the date
of the physical count.

e |f you use a perpetual inventory system, the Form will show values of inventories on hand at June
30. You will obtain these values from your perpetual records at June 30 adjusted to the physical
count.

e Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.
e Complete more than one Form if your agency has inventory in several state funds.

e The person who prepares the Inventory Summary Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone
this person if there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Inventory Summary Form
follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE INVENTORY SUMMARY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)
(5)
(6)

(7)

(8)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the date that the physical count was taken, if applicable.
Enter the inventory valuation method used.

Indicate if your inventory valuation method changed from last year. If yes, indicate the method
used last year.

Enter the inventory value on hand at June 30 by account code. Complete only if total inventory is
greater than $20,000 per state fund.

The total will calculate. Please verify that the total is correct.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line. The
completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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INVENTORY SUMMARY FORM

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20XX

@

Business Unit #:

@

State Fund #:

999

888

Prepared: @ 8/6/XX

Approved:

8/7/XX

Date

Date

Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

State Fund Name: Operating Fund

By: J.P. Junior

Acct. | 328-5555

Name/Signature

By: |.M. Senior

Title/Phone

Dir of Acctg. 328-5555

Name/Signature

Title/Phone

Date of physical count: @

Inventory valuation methoc@

6/28/XX

Last In, First Out (LIFO)

Did your inventory valuation method change from last year?

If yes, indicate the method used last year

Adjustment Dollar
Code Account Description Amount
FOR OMB
USEONLY | @
A 533025 Inventory $ 16,000 @
A 533040 Inventory 16,000
Inventory
Inventory
Total $ 32,000 @

NOTE: Complete only if any of your state fund's inventory is greater than $20,000 at June 30.

FOR OMB USE ONLY

A

DR 141001 (Inventory)

CR (Expenditures)

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Prepaid assets include types of services that are commonly paid for in advance such as insurance

premiums, interest and rent. Prepaid assets are short-lived assets.

YOU ONLY NEED TO COMPLETE THIS CLOSING PACKAGE IF YOUR STATE FUND HAD PREPAID

ASSETS THAT ARE GREATER THAN $20,000 AT JUNE 30.

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State record prepaid assets on its financial statements at June

30.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e Review expenditures to determine if any are for charges or services that were paid for in

advance.

o Determine the time period that the expenditures are for.

e The Prepaid Assets Summary Form should be completed on or before the due date indicated in

the Schedule of Closing Packages in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Prepaid Assets. Prepaid assets include types of services that are commonly paid for in advance. Prepaid

assets are short-lived assets. Report the following types of prepaid assets:

e Insurance premiums that are paid for in advance that are for a period of time that extends into the

next fiscal year.

e Rent that is paid in advance to the public, other agencies, or other governments if the payment is

for a period of time extending past the end of the fiscal year.

e Interest that is paid but not due until after the end of the fiscal year.
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

General
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) relating to prepaid assets are defined by:
e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section 1600.127.

GAAP requires the State to report on its financial statements the value of its prepaid assets at June 30.
Every agency should:

e Compute the value of newly purchased prepaid assets at the end of the fiscal year.

e Report the computed value of year-end prepaid assets to the Office of Management and Budget
on the Prepaid Assets Summary Form. Report only new prepaids purchased during the fiscal
year.

WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency's finance department should keep a copy of the
completed Prepaid Assets Summary Form. In addition, the agency should maintain working papers to
support each figure on that form. If the finance department does not maintain all supporting records, it
should keep a written list showing who has these records.

Appropriate documentation may vary somewhat depending on the type of expenditure and the length of
time that it pertains to.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS—PREPAID ASSETS SUMMARY FORM

e Complete the Prepaid Assets Summary Form. YOU ONLY NEED TO COMPLETE THIS
CLOSING PACKAGE IF ANY OF YOUR STATE FUNDS HAVE PREPAID ASSETS
EXCEEDING $20,000 AT JUNE 30.

e Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.
e Complete more than one Form if your agency has prepaid assets in several state funds.

e The person who prepares the Prepaid Assets Summary Form should keep a copy. OMB will
telephone this person if there are any questions.

o Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Prepaid Assets
Summary Form follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE PREPAID ASSETS SUMMARY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

Note:

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter account.
Enter the date acquired.
Enter the total price that was paid.

Enter the beginning and end date for which the prepaid covers. Example: If the prepaid runs
from April 1, 2013 through January 31, 2014 you would enter 4-1-13 and 1-31-14.

Enter the total number of months the prepaid covers. Example: using the dates in the example
in (7) above you would enter 10 months.

Enter the number of months that the prepaid applies for all future fiscal years. Example: using
same information as above in (7) you would enter 7 in this column.

This column is calculated based on the information that was entered for (6), (8) and (9). This is
the amount that will be recorded as the prepaid asset.

Enter in a description of prepaid asset.

Please review this number. If it is different than expected, please verify that all amounts were
entered as a positive number.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

Report only new prepaid assets purchased during the current fiscal year.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

In this closing package, agencies should report receivables from non-State parties that do not relate to
revenues. For example, report the following receivables at June 30 from non-State parties:

e |oan/note receivables.

e Refund receivables (i.e. receivables that relate to PeopleSoft refunds of prior expenditures
account 473120 (prior expenditures).

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State report loans, notes, and refund receivables outstanding
at June 30.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e |f any non-State parties owe your agency money on loans or notes at June 30, complete one or
more Loan Receivables Summary Forms.

e Complete one or more Refund Receivables Summary Forms if your agency had $25,000 or more
in refunds (of expenditure) receivable at year end.

e Complete the forms on or before the due date in the Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in
the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables. GAAP requires that the State record an Allowance for
Uncollectible Receivables if you cannot reasonably expect to collect all of the receivable amount you
report. The financial statements show net receivables (i.e. gross receivables less the allowance). Your
agency must estimate the allowance amount. To do this:

e Gather historical data on revenue collectibility.

e Evaluate the collectibility of Receivables at June 30.

Loan Receivables. Outstanding principal balances at June 30 on loans that the State made to non-State
parties are loan receivables. Loan receivables include balances for which the State holds collateral or
security.
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Note Receivables. Note Receivables are a kind of Loan Receivables. In certain cases, the State may lend
money to a non-State party under a note. A note is a written document in which a borrower promises to
repay money:

e To the State or to a party that the State indicates.

e Ondemand or at a particular future time.
Principal amounts that borrowers have not yet repaid at June 30 on such notes are Note Receivables.
Refund Receivables. Refund receivables include amounts that non-State parties owe you at June 30

relating to past State overpayments. The State may have made overpayments during the current year or
during some prior year. Examples include:

e Refunds of Medicaid overpayments from non-State service providers.
e Refunds that local entities owe the State as a result of:
-- Cost disallowances.
-- Failure to spend State grant amounts within the grant award period.
e Refunds due from vendors or other non-State parties.
Refund Receivables include amounts:
e For which you have issued a bill or statement showing payments due.

e Amounts that you can reasonably estimate. You may wish to use historical data or other
reasonable means to make these estimates.

Eventually, you will deposit Refund Receivables amounts in PeopleSoft as a Deposit either:

e As refunds of expenditure (deposit using an expenditure account).

e Using a revenue account such as 473120, refund of prior biennium expenditures.
Reserve for Long-Term Loan/Note Receivables. The Reserve for Long-Term Loan/Note Receivables is a
fund balance account. GAAP requires that we use this account to report net long-term loan/note

receivables in governmental funds. This amount is reserved to indicate that it does not represent
available expendable resources at June 30.




STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
LOAN AND REFUND RECEIVABLES CLOSING PACKAGE 6/1/2015 10
REVISED: PAGE:
3

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

General

The State's policy is to report on its June 30 balance sheet, the following receivables by the State from
non-State parties:

e Loan/Note Receivables. (See Key Terms).

e Refund Receivables for all agencies that have $25,000 or more in refunds receivable at year end.
(See Key Terms).

e Areservation of fund balance for net long-term loan/note receivables in governmental funds. (See
Key Terms for the definition of Reserve for Long-Term Loan/Note Receivables.)

In addition, it is the State's policy to record in its GAAP-basis books both the gross receivable amounts
and the related Allowances for Uncollectible Receivables. (See Key Terms).

Loan/Note Receivables

See the Key Terms section for definitions of Loan Receivables, and Note Receivables.
GAAP requires the State to record:
e |oan/Note Receivables outstanding at June 30.
e A Reserve for Long-Term Loan/Note Receivables.
e An Allowance for Uncollectible Loan/Note Receivables in each fund where applicable.

e Interest Receivable for related interest due on or before June 30 but not yet received as of June
30.

e Note Disclosure on Significant Receivable Balance not due within one year.

None of this information is available in PeopleSoft. In PeopleSoft, agencies record an expenditure when
they lend money. Likewise agencies record revenue when borrowers repay loans. GAAP does not allow
the reporting of expenditures or revenues in these situations. The State, therefore, must reverse the
PeopleSoft revenue and expenditure amounts before it can properly record the related loan transaction in
accordance with GAAP. Agencies that have loan receivables at June 30, therefore, must complete a Loan
Receivable Summary Form to provide the Office of Management and Budget with data needed to record
these adjustments.
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Refund Receivables--General

Refund Receivables include amounts that non-State parties owe the State at June 30 relating to past
State overpayments. The State may have made overpayments during the current year or during some
prior year.

For example, Refund Receivables include refunds of Medicaid overpayments from non-State service

providers. These Refund Receivables result from cost settlements with non-State Medicaid providers
where:

e The State has overpaid the provider for services.

e At June 30, the provider still owes the State for these overpayments.

Refund Receivables also include amounts that non-State recipients of State grants owe the State at June
30 as a result of:

e Cost disallowances resulting from audits or reviews.

e Failure to spend State grant amounts within the grant period.
Refund Receivables also include amounts vendors or other payees owe your agency at June 30.
You should report amounts as Refund Receivables in this closing package if:

e A non-State or non-governmental party owes the amount to the State at June 30.

(NOTE: Intergovernmental receivables should be reported on the Miscellaneous Receivable
Summary Form).

e \When you receive payment, you will deposit it in PeopleSoft in the new fiscal year either:
-- As arefund of expenditure

-- As a revenue using a revenue account such as 473120, refund of prior biennium
expenditures

This applies only to amounts a non-state party owes to the State at June 30.

Refund Receivables--Medicaid

Medicaid services may be administered by the state or through local governments on behalf of the states.
In either event, health care providers are required to follow guidelines established by the state. Various
methods and formulas are used to reimburse providers for services rendered.
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e Hospitals and nursing homes may be reimbursed "costs" of rendering the services, with costs
based on retrospective cost reports filed by the provider.

e Hospitals and other providers may be paid a predetermined (prospective) amount for each
service rendered, based on the nature of the service, its complexity, or both.

e Non-hospital providers may be reimbursed based on the cost of the service (physician office visit,
prescription, and so forth) up to a maximum cost per service.

e  Other reimbursement methods may be used for various providers.
At times, the State may make interim payments to providers, particularly hospitals, during the year based
on interim reports. Settlements may be made at year-end, based on audited cost reports. Those
settlements can be either receivables from or payables to the providers.

Report amounts that represent payables to providers in the Accounts Payable Closing Package. Report
amounts that represent receivables from non-State providers in this closing package.

For example, suppose that:
e Your agency pays Medicaid claims to providers.

e At year-end, your cost settlement records show that you overpaid non-governmental providers
$1,000,000 and that they still owe this amount to you.

e Based on experience, you expect to collect only $950,000 of the $1,000,000.

Your agency would then report the following amounts on a Refund Receivables Summary Form.
e $1,000,000 as Refund Receivables under Expenditures.

e $50,000 as the corresponding Allowance for Uncollectible Refund Receivables.

Refunds of Expenditures--Other

Refund Receivables may arise in other situations. For example, State grant recipients may owe the State
money at June 30 as a result of:

e Cost disallowances.

e Failure to spend State grant amounts within the grant period.

Another example is where your agency has overpaid a vendor or other non-State party and is still
awaiting payment at June 30.
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WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep copies of the completed closing
package Forms. In addition, the agency should keep working papers to support each figure on the Forms.
For example, agencies should thoroughly document:

e How you computed each amount.
e The source(s) of data for each amount.

e Methods you used to estimate amounts.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--LOAN RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORMS

*  Complete a separate Form for each fund that administers a loan/note program.

* A sample completed Form and detailed instructions for completing this Form follow.
e Report only loans/notes to non-State parties.
e Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.

e The person who completes and signs the Form(s) should keep a copy. OMB will contact this
person if there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Form follows the
instructions.
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COMPLETING THE LOAN RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)
(10)
(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically
populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below

Enter a brief description of the loan program.

Review the start-of-year (July 1) balance of Loan Receivables for this state fund. This amount
must be the same as the Ending Balance (June 30) on last year's Form.

Enter the loan write offs for the fiscal year. This amount must agree to the allowance write off
amount below (see (13)).

Enter the PeopleSoft expenditure account where you recorded the loan expenditures.

Enter the total amount of additional money you lent to non-State parties under this particular

loan program during the fiscal year.

Enter the PeopleSoft revenue account where you recorded the receipt of loan payments.
Enter the total loan principal repayments that you deposited during the fiscal year.

Verify the sum of 5, 6, 8, and 10. This is the principal amount outstanding at June 30.

Verify the start-of-year (July 1) balance of Allowance for Uncollectible Loan Receivables. This
amount must agree to the total allowance for Uncollectible Loan Receivables placed on last
year's form at June 30.

Enter the allowance write offs for the fiscal year. This amount must agree to the loan write off
amount above (see (6)).

Enter the net additions (deletions) in the Allowance for Uncollectible Loan Receivables during

the fiscal year ended June 30.

Verify the sum of 12, 13, and 14. This represents the allowance for uncollectible Loan
Receivables at June 30.
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(16)

(17)

Note:

Note:

Verify the Subtraction of 15 from 11. This represents the Loan Receivables net of allowance for
uncollectible amounts.

Enter the amount of Net Loan Receivables (16 above) that is due by the end of the next fiscal
year.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

INCLUDE INTEREST RECEIVABLE RELATING TO LOANS RECEIVABLE ON THE
INTEREST RECEIVABLE FORM.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
LOAN RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

(&)
Business Unit #: 999 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name: Operating Fund
Prepared: 8/7/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 8/8/20XX By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Type of Loan:  Sewage Treatment Projects Loan Program @
Adjustment Dollar
Code Description Amount
Loan Receivables - Gross
Beginning balance - Gross (July 1) 21 5 2,800,000
A Write - Offs 6 ( 20,000 )
Increases (new loans this fiscal year) 150,000
B | Account "_ Amount
7 ) 591125 [C8) 150,000
( 150,000 )
C Decreases (loan repayments this fiscal year)
Account "_ Amount
9 )420115 & 10 ) 150,000
Ending balance - Gross (June 30) @ $ 2,780,000
Allowance For Uncollectible Loan Receivables
Beginning Balance - Allowance (July 1) @ $ 50,000
Write - Offs GO « 20,000 )
D Net Additions (Deletions) in Allowance 15,000
Ending Balance - Allowance (June 30) G s 45,000
Net Loan Receivables (June 30) $ 2,735,000
Amount of Loan Receivables due by June 30, @ $ 800,000

NOTE: Include interest receivable relating to Loans Receivable on the Interest Receivable Form.

FOR OMB USE ONLY

A DR 126202 (Allowance for Uncollectible Loan Receivable C DR (Revenue)

CR 126002 (Loan Receivables) CR 126002 (Loan Receivables)
B DR 126002 (Loan Receivables) D DR (Expenditures)
CR (Expenditures) CR 126202 (Allowance for Uncollectible

Loan Receivables)

Revised 3/2015
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--REFUND RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORM

Report only refunds due from non-State parties.

Do not report any amounts on these Forms that you entered in PeopleSoft during July and
applied back to June.

Complete a Form for each State fund that records either:

--  PeopleSoft refunds of expenditure.

--  Revenue under PeopleSoft revenue account 473120.

Complete as many Forms as necessary to cover all accounts which have a refund receivable.

The person who completes and signs the Form(s) should keep a copy. OMB will contact this
person if there are any questions.

Detailed instructions for completing this Form follow. A sample completed Form follows the
instructions.

COMPLETING THE REFUND RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)
(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the expenditure account where you recorded the original payment(s).
Enter the total Refund Receivables for each expenditure account (paid by June 30) that has
been or will be refunded after June 30. Do not report any amounts on this Form for refunds of
expenditures you deposited in July-in PeopleSoft and applied back to June.

Enter the amount of Refund Receivables you reported in (5) that you estimate are uncollectible.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line. The
completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
REFUND RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

Business Unit # 999 Business Unit Name Sample Agency
State Fund ;: 888 State Fund Name: Operating Fund
Prepared@ 8/6/20XX By: J.P.Junior Acct. Manager | 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 8/7/20XX By: I.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Adjustment Code/ Dollar
Account Description Amount***
@536035
Account
A Refund Receivables $ 180,000.00
Allowance for Uncollectible ( 6 )
B Refund Receivables $ 2,000.00
Account
A Refund Receivables $
Allowance for Uncollectible
B Refund Receivables $
Account
A Refund Receivables $
Allowance for Uncollectible
B Refund Receivables $

*** DO NOT INCLUDE AMOUNTS ENTERED IN JULY (Peoplesoft) AND APPLIED BACK TO JUNE.
NOTE: Complete only if refunds receivable is greater than $25,000 at June 30.

FOR OMB USE ONLY

A DR 124001 (Accounts Receivable)
CR (Expenditures)

B DR  (Expenditures)

CR 124201 (Allowance For Uncollectible Accounts Receivables)
Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires that the State record fixed assets on its
financial statements, and that those fixed assets be depreciated. GAAP also requires disclosure of certain
information about fixed assets in the notes to the financial statements.

In this closing package, you will also report construction commitments outstanding at June 30.

The Office of Management and Budget needs this information to prepare the notes to the State's financial
statements.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

If your agency’'s GAAP assets are not recorded on PeopleSoft:

e Read the Fixed Assets Checklist in this closing package before you begin work on any other fixed
assets closing package.

e Complete the Fixed Assets Checklist on or before the due date in the Schedule of Closing
Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

If your agency’'s GAAP assets are recorded on PeopleSoft, you do not need to complete the Fixed Asset
Checklist.

KEY TERMS

Capitalization Criteria. The state's policies regarding the minimum useful life and minimum dollar value of
fixed assets. Any asset costing $5,000 ($25,000 for intangibles other than computer software) or more
that your agency will use for more than one year should be capitalized.

Construction Commitments Qutstanding. Your agency may have construction projects that are only
partially complete at June 30. Further, there may be signed contracts that commit the State to pay for
completion of these projects.

The total amount of any such contract plus any change orders less payments made is the construction
commitment outstanding.

Fair Market Value. Fair market value is the price at which an asset would change hands if both buyer and
seller are willing parties and have knowledge of all related facts.

Fixed Assets. Fixed assets are assets the State plans to hold or use for a long time. Short-lived assets
and those costing a small amount are not fixed assets. Any asset costing $5,000 ($25,000 for intangibles
other than computer software) or more that your agency will use for more than one year is a fixed asset.
Examples of fixed assets include: Land and Land Improvements, Buildings and Building Improvements,
Infrastructure, Equipment, Intangibles, and Construction in Progress.

Net Gain/Loss on Disposal of Assets. The amount computed when an asset is disposed of — it's the result
of the capitalized amount of an asset, less accumulated depreciation, less any proceeds from the sale of
the asset or trade-in allowance received.
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Proceeds from the Sale of Assets. The amounts received from Surplus Property or any other sources that
were received in exchange for an asset that was disposed of.

Trade-In Allowance. The amount of the discount given on the purchase of a new asset due to exchanging
an existing asset.

WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep:
e A copy of the completed Fixed Assets Checklist.

e Working papers to support the amount of construction commitments outstanding at June 30.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--FIXED ASSETS CHECKLIST

Every agency with fixed assets should complete the Fixed Assets Checklist.

Read the Fixed Assets Checklist before you begin work on any other fixed assets closing
package.

Work through the questions and instructions on the Fixed Assets Checklist one at a time, from top
to bottom.

Complete the Fixed Assets Checklist on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of
Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

The person who completes and signs the Fixed Assets Checklist should keep a copy. OMB will
telephone this person if there are any questions.

Detailed instructions for completing this Form follow. A sample completed Fixed Assets Checklist
follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE FIXED ASSETS CHECKLIST

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)
(6)

(7)

(8)

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Report all expenditures made to purchase your asset additions. Include amounts that are
reported on PeopleSoft including applybacks plus any amounts that will be included on the
accounts payable closing package. Do not include any lease expenditures. Report a
breakdown of these expenditures by fund.

Report the value of all trade-ins of existing assets.
Report the fair market value of any donated items, as of the date of donation.

Report the total cash proceeds received on the sale/disposal of items disposed of in the current
year. (Do not include any proceeds from assets disposed of in a prior year).

Report the net gain or loss on the disposal of all assets. This is calculated as the capitalized
cost, less accumulated depreciation less proceeds from disposal or value of trade-in received. If
the result is a positive number, you record a loss. If the result is a negative number you report a
gain. Report whether you had a gain or loss and the total.

Explain any Net Corrections to Prior Year Balances. List the amount by asset class and briefly
explain the reason for the correction.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
FIXED ASSETS CHECKLIST
At June 30, 20XX

Business Unit #: : 999 Business Unit Name Sample Agency

Prepared:  8/3/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-2345

Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved:  gj9/50xx By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328

-2345

Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

1. Does your agency have any construction in progress?

If YES: Your agency must complete the Construction in Progress Summary Form.

2. Does your agency have any fixed asset additions?

If YES: Please indicate the amount of expenditures, by fund, incurred in purchasing the assets,

excluding any lease payments.
Fund Code Amount Fund Code Amount

001 220,508 @

Please indicate the trade-ins allowance on the purchases, if @

1,000

3. Did your agency have any fixed assets donated?

If YES: Please indicate the total capitalized cost of those assets (fair market value
at the date of donation).

15,000

4. Does your agency have any fixed asset deletions?

If YES: Please indicate the amount and fund of the initial expenditure.
Fund Code Amount Fund Code Amount

001 50,000

Please indicate the proceeds from the sale of the assets, and the net gain/loss
on the disposal of the assets.

Proceeds 17.000 Net Gain/Loss @

Yes

Net Gain - $5,700

5. Does your agency have any Net Corrections to Prior Year Balances? :

If YES: Please include the amounts by asset class and briefly expl
the reason for the correction(s) below (See Key Terms).

Equipment:One vehicle received in the prior year was not capitalized ($20,000 cost, $1,800 in accumulated depreciation at beginni

Building: A storage shed was destroyed by a windstorm in the prior year and not removed from our records ($6,000 cost, $5,400 ac

depreciation).

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires that the State record fixed assets and
depreciation in the government wide financial statements. GAAP also requires the State to include certain
information on general fixed assets in the notes to its financial statements.

This closing package will gather information from State agencies regarding fixed assets. The information
will allow the State to record fixed assets properly in its financial statements and notes.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

If your agency’s GAAP assets are not recorded on PeopleSoft:

e Read the Fixed Assets Checklist Closing Package before you read this closing package.
e Complete the General Fixed Assets Summary Form.
e Complete the Construction In Progress Summary Form, if necessary.

e Complete the Forms on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due
Dates in the Introduction Section.

If vour agency had Construction in Progress or construction commitments outstanding at June 30:

e Complete the Construction In Progress Summary Form.

e Complete the Form on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due
Dates in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Accumulated Depreciation. The total amount of depreciation allocated to an asset since the asset was
initially capitalized.

Book Value. Book value is the asset value that appears on the agency's (and the State's) financial
statements and ledgers. It is normally the cost including trade-in for the asset when it was acquired.

Buildings and Building Improvements. Buildings are permanent structures housing persons or personal
property. Building Improvements are long-lived attachments to buildings that significantly increase the
building's life, usefulness, or value. One cannot move or separate Building Improvements from the
building. Examples of Building Improvements include elevators, central air conditioners, and central
heating systems. The Buildings and Improvements category also includes costs of major renovations or
upgrades that significantly extend a building's life or usefulness. Ordinary repair and maintenance costs
are not Building Improvements even though they could cost significant amounts. It is the State’s policy to
depreciate Buildings and Building Improvements.

Capital Lease. A capital lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the benefits and risks of asset
ownership to the State. Agencies should report capital leased assets as fixed assets.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS CLOSING PACKAGE 6/1/2015 12
REVISED: PAGE:
2

Capitalization Criteria. Short-lived assets and those costing small amounts are not fixed assets. All state
departments, agencies, and institutions shall include all fixed assets under their control in their financial
statements, except those having a value of less than $5,000 ($25,000 for intangibles other than computer
software).

Construction Commitments Outstanding. Your agency may have construction projects that are only
partially complete at June 30. Further, there may be signed contracts that commit the State to pay for
completion of these projects. The total amount of any such contract plus any change orders less
payments made is the construction commitments outstanding.

Construction in Progress. Construction in Progress includes costs of constructing fixed assets before
construction is substantially complete. Fixed assets that are substantially complete and available for use
on June 30 are not Construction in Progress. Classify completed assets as:

e Land and Land Improvements;

e Buildings and Building Improvements;
e Infrastructure; or

e Intangibles

Construction in progress will relate to projects that are incomplete at year-end. It is the State’s policy to
not depreciate Construction in Progress.

Contract Retentions. On some construction contracts, your agency may withhold part of each payment
from the contractor until the project is complete. The amounts withheld are contract retentions.

Depreciation. The concept of allocating an asset’s cost over their estimated useful lives using a rational
systematic method.

Depreciation Expense. The amount of depreciation allocated to an asset during the current fiscal year.

Equipment. A fixed asset which reflects the acquisition of tangible property other than Land and Land
Improvements, Buildings and Building Improvements, Infrastructure, and Construction in Progress.
Equipment may be attached to a structure for purposes of securing the item, but unless it is permanently
attached to, or an integral part of, the building or structure, it will be classified as Equipment and not
Buildings and Building Improvements. It is the State’s policy to depreciate Equipment.

Fair Market Value. Fair market value is the price at which an asset would change hands if both buyer and
seller are willing parties and have knowledge of all related facts.

Fixed Asset Additions. State agencies purchase and construct new fixed assets and receive donated
fixed assets during the year. These are fixed asset additions. Assets purchased from OMB/Surplus
Property Division are additions, if your purchase price was $5,000 or more ($25,000 for intangibles other
than computer software).

Fixed Asset Deletions. Deleted fixed assets are fixed assets no longer actively used by the State. Sold,
scrapped, destroyed, and stolen fixed assets are examples of deletions. Assets transferred to
OMB/Surplus Property Division are deletions. If an asset with a book value of greater than $25,000 was
transferred to Surplus Property, contact OMB.
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Fixed Assets. Fixed assets are significant assets the State plans to hold or use for a long time. Short-lived
assets and those costing a small amount are not fixed assets. Any asset costing $5,000 ($25,000 for
intangibles other than computer software) or more that will be used by your agency for more than one
year is a Fixed Asset. Examples of fixed assets include: Land and Land Improvements, Buildings and
Building Improvements, Infrastructure, Equipment, Intangibles, and Construction in Progress.

General Fixed Assets. General fixed assets are fixed assets that governmental funds use in their
operations. Governmental funds include the general fund, special revenue funds, capital project funds
and debt service funds. General fixed assets include all fixed assets not accounted for in proprietary
funds, private purpose trust funds, or pension trust funds.

Infrastructure. Infrastructure is major State-wide public systems and items attached thereto such as
freeways, freeway lighting systems, freeway drainage systems, freeway signs, bridges, bridge lighting
systems, etc. Infrastructure is generally of value only to government and is immovable. It is the State's
policy to capitalize infrastructure. It is the State’s policy to depreciate Infrastructure.

Intangible Assets. Intangible assets are assets that lack physical substance, are nonfinancial in nature,
and their initial useful life extends beyond a single reporting period. Examples of intangible assets include
easements, water rights, patents, trademarks, and computer software.

Internally Developed Software. Internally developed software should be capitalized beginning with
software development completed after June 30, 2003. The internally developed software should be
capitalized if the capitalizable cost is $50,000 or greater. The software should be amortized (depreciated)
over the estimated useful life of the software. Many agencies use ITD to create software programs for
them. For those projects, it has been determined that approximately 65% of the total project cost is
capitalizable.

Land. Parcels of real estate owned by the State--either purchased or otherwise acquired. It is the State’s
policy to not depreciate Land.

Land Improvements. These improvements are long-lived attachments to land that increase the land's
usefulness or value. Ordinary land maintenance costs are not Land Improvements. Examples of Land
Improvements include trees and landscaping. It is the State's policy to capitalize Land Improvements for a
complete project such as a landscaping project, however Land Improvements are not depreciated.

Operating Lease. An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer the risk of ownership to the agency
or State. Operating leases are covered in the Lease Closing Package and should not be reported here.

Reclassifications of General Fixed Assets. Sometimes agencies move costs from one general fixed asset
category to another. For example, agencies should move Construction in Progress costs to other fixed
asset categories when construction projects are substantially complete.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for general fixed assets are defined in:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Sections 1100.105 through
1100.107, 1400.101 through 1400.143.

Accordingly, the State has adopted policies and procedures for recording general fixed assets on the
State's financial statements. The Fixed Asset Policies are Appendix A of the Fiscal and Administrative
Policy Manual. These policies can be found on the Internet at:
http://www.nd.gov/fiscal/docs/fiscaladmin2011.pdf
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WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep a copy of the completed General
Fixed Assets Summary Form and Construction in Progress Summary form (if applicable). In addition, the
agency should keep:

e Working papers to support each number on the General Fixed Assets Summary Form (and
Construction in Progress Summary Form, if necessary).

e Adetailed listing of all general fixed assets as of June 30.

Agencies should maintain full documentation for fixed asset corrections to prior year balances, additions,
deletions, and reclassifications.
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COMPLETING THE GENERAL FIXED ASSETS SUMMARY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)
(9)

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate. Complete one Form per agency.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Verify the Start-of-Year (July 1) balances. These balances must be the same as the "End-of-
Year (June 30) Balances" on last year's Form. This field should populate when you select the
Business Unit.

If there were any errors in the year-end balances on last year's Form, enter net corrections in
this column. The corrected start-of-year (July 1) balances for this year should be the sum of:

e Amounts in this column; and
e Amounts in the "Start-of-Year (July 1) Balances" column.

Increases to asset accounts should be entered as positive numbers with the corresponding
accumulated depreciation entered as a negative. Decreases to asset accounts should be
entered as negative numbers with the corresponding accumulated depreciation entered as
positive.

Enter general fixed asset additions for the current fiscal year. See Key Terms and the Fixed
Asset Policy Manual for information on computing these figures. Enter these amounts as
positive numbers.

Enter general fixed asset deletions for the current fiscal year. Also enter the accumulated
depreciation amounts for the deleted assets. Enter asset deletion amounts as negative and
accumulated depreciation amounts as positive numbers.

Enter general fixed asset reclassifications for the current fiscal year. Be sure to also reclassify
the corresponding accumulated depreciation. Show net reclassification asset additions as
positive numbers (and any corresponding accumulated depreciation as negative) and net asset
deletions as negative nhumbers (with any corresponding accumulated depreciation as positive).
Because these are reclassifications, the column total must be zero.

Enter the current year depreciation expense as negative amounts.

Add columns (3) through (8) for each row and verify the sum here. The resulting amounts
should be the end-of-year (June 30) balances.
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REF EXPLANATION

(10) Verify the summed amounts down each column. Note that fixed asset class amounts are
positive numbers, but accumulated depreciation amounts are negative numbers. It is also
indicated at the end of each line in the first column whether that balance is added or subtracted
when summing the column.

(11) Check to be sure that where the total from the bottom row and the far right row intersect agrees.
NOTE: Enter amounts in whole dollars.
To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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COMPLETING THE CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS SUMMARY FORM

REF EXPLANATION

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

(2) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

(3) Review your start of year Construction in Progress balance — this should be the same as the
end of year reported in the prior year. This field should populate when you select your Business
Unit.

(4) Enter any additions to Construction in Progress during the year.

(5) Enter any deletions to Construction in Progress during the year. Deletions must agree to newly

added asset addition.

(6) Review the calculated end of year Construction in Progress balance.
(7) Report the funds and expenditures per fund for additions.

(8) Report the funds and amounts per fund for deletions.

(9) Identify the name of the construction project.

(20) Enter the amount the project was authorized for as adjusted.

(11) Enter the amount that has been spent on the project from its inception through June 30. (NOTE:
The total amount spent on all projects must equal the balance for construction in progress on
the General Fixed Assets Summary Form or in section | above at June 30).

(12) Enter the remaining balance authorized.

(13) Enter the outstanding construction commitments at June 30 (see key terms).

Note: Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS SUMMARY FORM

At June 30, 20XX

Q

the balance for construction in progress on the General Fixed Asset Summary form and above.

Business Unit #: 99000  Business Unit Name Sample Agency
Prepared: @ 8/3/XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 325-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 8/4/XX By: I.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
3
Start of Year Balance - Construction in Progress $ 29,375
Additons- Current Year CIP Expenditures 208,685 e’
Deletions-Substantially Complete or Completed Assets being removed frc  ( 123,060 ) @ @
End of Year Balance - Construction in Progress 115,000
Please report the amount of expenditures per fund incurred for CIP additions this fiscal year:
Fund Code Amount Fund Code Amount
: 7) 001 100,000 002 108,685
Also report the funding source/sources for CIP deletions this fiscal year:
Fund Code Amount Fund Code Amount
@ 001 23,060 002 100,000
'©) > > >
1. CONSTRUCTION AMOUNT AMOUNT EXPENDED ® BALANCE
PROJECT NAME AUTHORIZED THROUGH JUNE 30 AUTHORIZED
Corrections --ABC $ 250,000 $ 95,000 $ 155,000
XYZ State Project 100,000 20,000 80,000
TOTAL $ 350,000 $ 115,000 $ 235,000
Ill.  Outstanding construction commitments at June 30 for the agency were @
(See Key Terms): $ 475,000

@ Amount of expenditures incurred and capitalized at June 30. Total of this column must equal

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State report leasing activities in its financial statements at
June 30. The Office of Management and Budget must report information for all operating and capital
leases with noncancellabe lease terms. Note that fiscal funding clauses are not considered cancellable
clauses.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e Complete the Lease Summary Form by agency not fund.

e Complete the Form on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due
Dates in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Accrued Interest. Interest on debt that has been incurred, but has not yet been paid. (Generally, this is the
interest that has been incurred since the date of the last payment.)

Capital Lease. A capital lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the benefits and risks of asset
ownership to the State. If a lease of an asset with a value over $5,000 meets any one of the following
classification criteria, it is a capital lease (Also see the Fixed Asset Policy Manual):

A. The lease transfers ownership of the asset to the State by the end of the lease term.

B. The lease contains an option to purchase the leased asset at a “bargain” price. A “bargain”
price represents a price that is sufficiently lower than the expected fair value of the asset at
the date of option becomes exercisable.

C. The lease term is equal to 75 percent or more of the estimated economic life of the asset.

D. The present value at the beginning of the lease term of the minimum lease payments equals
or exceeds 90 percent of the fair value of the asset to the lessor at the inception of the lease.

Capitalized Cost. The cost at which the asset is listed in your records. This amount should be the lesser
of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the asset.

Future Minimum Lease Payments. The payments that the lessee is obligated to make or can be required
to make in connection with the leased property.

Lease. Any contract that commits the State to make periodic rental payments.
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Operating Lease. Any lease that does not qualify as a capital lease.

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments. The lump-sum amount that a series of future lease
payments is worth right now.

Term. The length of the lease in months.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

e Every agency that has any leases should complete one Lease Summary Form.
e The Form should report all leases in effect at June 30.
e Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.

o Enter all negative numbers as positive numbers — the formulas will take care of the negative
numbers.

e Run query NDSCAFR_LEASE_PAYMENTS which will show you payments that have been coded to
these lease account codes;

('581000','581010','581050','581055','581065','581070','581075','582000','582015','582020",'582060',’
582065','582070")

e Complete the Lease Summary Form on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing
Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e The person who completes the Lease Summary Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Lease Summary Form
follows the instructions.
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COMPLETING THE LEASE SUMMARY FORM

REF

EXPLANATION

Optional- Run the PeopleSoft Query NDSCAFR_LEASE_PAYMENTS to see payments coded to the
following lease accounts codes;
'’581000','581010','581050",'581055','581065','581070','581075','582000','582015','582020','582060','582065','582070'

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)

(14)
(15)

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the total lease expenditures (including applybacks) for the fiscal year ended June 30 for all
operating leases, including leases terminated during the year.

Enter the total lease expenditures (including applybacks) by fund for the fiscal year ended June
30 for all capital leases, including leases terminated during the year. The amounts should be
reported separately for the amount representing principal payments, and the amount
representing interest payments.

Enter the total interest that has accrued on capital leases between the date of the last payment
and June 30.

Enter the future minimum rental payments (see key terms) as of June 30 for capital leases for
each of the five succeeding fiscal years, in five-year increments for subsequent years, and the
subtotal (total future minimum lease payments).

Enter the portion of the total future minimum lease payments that represents interest. A
calculation will then subtract that amount from the total future minimum lease payments to get
the present value of minimum lease payments.

Enter the future minimum rental payments (see key terms) as of June 30 for operating leases for
each of the five succeeding fiscal years, in five-year increments for subsequent years.

Enter the portion of the capital lease payments for the fiscal year ended June 30 (listed above in
step 6) that represents interest.

Enter a brief description of each newly leased (capital lease) asset.
Enter the present value of the minimum lease payments for each newly leased asset.
Enter the down payment made at the inception of the lease, if any.

Note if the down payment amount was included in the total capital lease expenditures above in #
1).

Enter the fund you expect to make the lease payments from.

Enter the number of months that your agency is obligated to lease the asset (i.e., 60 months).
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(16) Enter the total amount of assets currently being leased under capital lease, by major class of
assets. Report amounts at which the assets are capitalized in your records and the accumulated
depreciation.

(17)  Verify the beginning balance (prior year’'s ending amount for the Present Value of Minimum
Lease Payments), enter the additions for the current fiscal year from IV (C), the deletions for the
current fiscal year from 1 (A) , to arrive at the balance at the end of the current fiscal year, which
needs to agree with Il (B).

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The
Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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At June 30, 20XX

D

Business Unit #: 99000 Business Unit Name:  Sample Agency
epared: 8/8/XX By: J.P. Junior Accountant | 328.5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 8/9/XX By: I.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

$

1) Total operating lease expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015:

Total capital lease principal expenditures by fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015:

@

Fund Code Amount Fund Code Amount
001 5,300 002 4,400
288 4,050

Total capital lease interest expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30,2015:

Total capital lease interest accrued but not paid as of June 30, 2015:

$ 24,725 @

)
(A
()

S__ 8500 (@)
S___ 25 (D

11) Future minimum rental payments required under leases that have initial or remaining noncancellable

lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2015, are as follows:
Year Ending
June 30
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments
Less Amount Representing Interest
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments

111) Indicate the portion of the capital lease payments for FY16 that represents i

Capital Lease

@ Payments

Operating Lease

Payments
26,700 22,090
26,700 18,670
26,700 14,930
26,700 12,110
4,450 12,110
38,670
111,250 118,580
( 21,715 ) QD
89,535 (B)

nterest:

s__ 150D

1V) Please provide the following information for any new capital leases.
Present Value @ Amount @ Included @ Fund Lease @

Asset of Lease of Down in1)? Making Term
Payments (C) Payment YIN Payments (in months)
Dump Truck 40,000 10,000 N 888 60

V) Please report the total amount of assets currently under capital leases:

Capitalized Accumulated
Cost Depreciation (See the tips tab)
Land
Buildings
Equipment 105,000 7,875

VI) Please complete the following table for all capital leases:

Balance at ® Balance at

July 1, 2014 Additions Deletions June 30, 2015

63,285.00 40,000 ( 13,750 ) 89,535

NOTE: Additons should agree
to (C) above, deletion should agree

to (A) above, and ending balance
should agree to (B) above.
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State report Miscellaneous Revenues for the fiscal year ended
June 30. GAAP also requires that we record on the State's financial statements at June 30:

Miscellaneous Receivables.

Allowances for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable.
Unearned Revenue.

Interest Receivable.

Allowance for Uncollectible Interest Receivable.

For our purposes, miscellaneous accounts receivable include all receivables that have not been reported
in the Tax Revenue, Grant Revenue, and Loan and Refund Receivable and Interest Receivable Closing
Packages.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

If your fund had $10,000 or more in miscellaneous receivables at year-end, complete a
Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable Summary Form.

Complete the Interest Receivable Summary Form for each fund that has Interest Receivable at
year-end.

Complete the Forms on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due
Dates in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Accrual Basis. GAAP requires use of the accrual basis of accounting for Proprietary Funds. However,
Governmental Funds will record accounts receivable on the accrual basis of accounting also.

Record revenues in the fiscal year in which we earn them, regardless of when we receive the
payment. Revenues are considered earned depending upon the revenue type. Revenue
generally occurs from either exchange or non-exchange transactions. The following explains
these transaction types and when revenue is considered earned.

Exchange Transaction: In an exchange transaction, there is an exchange of services or goods for
an amount of equal value. If your agency receives payment for providing services or selling goods
to a third party, you have received revenue from an exchange transaction. Revenue from this
type of transaction is earned when:

-- An exchange transaction has occurred, or
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--  The earnings process is complete or almost complete.

Non-Exchange Transaction: In a non-exchange transaction, the government either gives value or
a benefit to a non-governmental entity without directly receiving equal value in exchange or
receives value or benefit from another party without directly giving equal value in exchange.
There are four groups of non-exchange transactions. Two of these transaction types are
explained below:

-- Imposed Non-Exchange Transaction: This type of transaction occurs when a government
imposes an assessment on a non-governmental entity without an exchange of services,
benefits, or goods. Fines, penalties, and forfeitures are examples of this type of transaction.
Revenue from these transactions is earned when:

(1) An enforceable legal claim has arisen, and
(2) The amount can be reasonably estimated, if the exact amount is not known.

-~ Voluntary Non-Exchange Transaction: These transactions result from legislative or
contractual agreements entered into willingly by two or more parties. The principal
characteristics of these transactions are they are not imposed or mandated by the provider of
the funds and fulfillment of eligibility requirements is essential. Examples of this type of
transaction include certain grants and private donations. Eligibility requirements include time
requirements (when the resources are allowed to be used), reimbursement requirements
(resources provided after certain costs incurred), and contingencies (certain events must
occur before resources are provided). Revenue from voluntary non-exchange transactions is
earned when:

(1) Resources have been promised or pledged, if verifiable, and

(2) All eligibility requirements have been met, and

(3) The amount can be reasonably estimated, if the exact amount is not known.
e Record Accounts Receivable if at June 30 we have:

-- Earned revenue (see above definitions of earned revenue for various types of transactions).

-- Not yet collected the related cash.

e Record Unearned Revenue if at June 30 we have:
-- Collected cash and not yet earned the related revenue.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable. GAAP requires that the State report an Allowance for
Uncollectible Accounts Receivable if applicable. The financial statements show gross Miscellaneous
Receivables less the allowance. Your agency must estimate the allowance. You may wish to base your
estimate on historical data. That is:

e Gather historical data on revenue collectibility.

e Evaluate the collectibility of Miscellaneous Receivables at June 30 based on the historical data.
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Basis of Accounting. The basis of accounting determines when to recognize revenues (and
expenditures/expenses) in the financial statements.

Unearned Revenue. Unearned revenue, a liability account, is recorded when cash has been collected
while the revenue recognition criteria have not been met or when receivables will not be collected within
the next 12 months. GAAP requires that we record Unearned Revenue for Miscellaneous Revenues if at
June 30 your agency:

e Has collected Miscellaneous Revenue in advance of the fiscal year to which it applies.
e Has Miscellaneous Receivables where revenue recognition has not occurred yet.

Measurable. A revenue is measurable if you either:

e Know the exact amount (because the transaction is complete).
e Have enough information to estimate the revenue that you will receive.
Miscellaneous Receivables. Miscellaneous Receivables are amounts that parties outside State

government owe your agency at June 30 that have not been included in other closing packages. As of
June 30 you:

e Have billed these non-State parties already, or know that these parties owe you money (even
though you have not yet billed them).

e Have earned the revenue on or before June 30. (See Accrual Basis under Key Terms for
definitions of earned revenue.). NOTE: This includes revenue from credit card sales for which
cash is not at the Bank of North Dakota at June 30.

Miscellaneous Revenues. Miscellaneous Revenues include all PeopleSoft revenues except:

e Taxrevenues.

e Grant revenues.

e Bond/note proceeds.

e Refund proceeds.

e Interest and other investment income.

° %tﬁ\ée.z Appropriations and other revenues you receive from another State agency or another state

Miscellaneous Revenues include, for example:

e Licenses, fees, and permits revenue.

e Charges for goods and services.

e Fine, penalty, and forfeiture revenue.

e Agricultural Commodities Assessments.

e Contributions, donations, and awards revenue.
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

General

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles relating to Miscellaneous Revenues appear in:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Sections 1600.101 through
1600.108 and 1600.113 through 1600.115.

Governmental and Agency Funds--General Information

Requirements for recognizing Miscellaneous Revenue and Miscellaneous Receivables:
e The modified accrual basis to report Miscellaneous Revenues that are susceptible to accrual.
e The accrual basis (see Key Terms) for reporting Miscellaneous Receivables.

The State collects five major classes of Miscellaneous Revenues from non-State parties:

e Licenses, Fees, and Permits
e Charges for Services

e Intergovernmental Revenue
e Fines and Forfeits

e Other Miscellaneous Revenues

Our State policy is to report all of these miscellaneous receivables/revenues in Governmental and Agency
Funds if receivables greater than $10,000 exist at June 30.

WORKING PAPERS

All working papers are subject to audit. The agency should keep copies of the completed summary
Forms. In addition, the agency should keep working papers to support each figure on those Forms. For
example, agencies should thoroughly document:

e How you obtained each amount.

e The source(s) of data for each amount.

e Methods used to arrive at estimated amounts.

In addition, retain all Treasurer's receipts with related documentation.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLES/REVENUES 6/1/2015 14
CLOSING PACKAGE
REVISED: PAGE:
5

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORM

e Complete a Miscellaneous Receivables Summary Form for each state fund that has
miscellaneous receivables at June 30 in excess of $10,000.

e Review the Accounting Principles and Policies section of this closing package carefully before
you attempt to complete the Forms. Do not enter amounts on the Forms for:

-- Resources you receive from other State agencies or other State funds.

e Summarize amounts on the Forms by:

-- PeopleSoft revenue account. Use a separate form for each account.
e Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.

e Complete the Form(s) on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package
Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e The person who completes and signs the Form(s) should keep a copy. OMB will contact this
person if there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Forms follow. A sample completed Form follows the
instructions.
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COMPLETING THE MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORM

REF EXPLANATION

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

(2) Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’'s name will automatically
populate.
(3) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing

package, please see instructions below.

(4) Select from the drop down list "AR" for Accounts Receivable (owed from non government
entities) or "IR" for Intergovernmental Receivable (owed from other governments).

(5) Enter the total miscellaneous receivables at June 30.

(6) Enter the amount received in July and applied back to June, using PeopleSoft account 105251,
Cash and Cash Equivalents at BND. Run the applicable apply back queries such as,
NDSCAFR_DEP, NDSCAFR_ONL, etc to verify apply back amounts. (Check the information
on your cash closing package for this fund, if any, to make sure you are not reporting the
same deposit as cash at June 30 and as a receivable at June 30).

(7) Enter the revenue account that will be used when payment is received.

(8) Enter the amount the fund estimates it will receive by the end of the next fiscal year. (Include in
this total the amounts received in July and NOT applied back to June. The way you choose to
estimate it is left to your agency’s discretion, but should have some reasonable basis as your
auditors may review the calculation.)

(9) Enter the miscellaneous receivables (after next year’'s receipts) which is equal to the sum of 5,
6,and 8

(10) Enter the portion of (9 ) that is estimated to be uncollectible.
Note: Enter amounts in whole dollars.
To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORM

At June 30, 20XX

@

Business Unit #

@)

State Fund #:

©)

999 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

888 State Fund Name:  Operating Fund

Prepared: 8/15/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 8/15/20XX By: |.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
FOR OMB Rec. Type/ Account /
USE ONLY Description Dollar Amount
Miscellaneous Receivables
Indicate if the receivable is an accounts receivable (AR) or an IR @
intergovernmental receivable (IR) FILL IN
"AR" or "IR"
Miscellaneous Receivables at June 30 $ 113,250
Less: Amount Received during July and applied back to June ( 22,500 )
AorE
Less: Amount expected to be collected by June 30, 20XX ( 85,500 )
BorF
Account Amount
D) 420270 (885,500.00
Miscellaneous Receivables after receipts from FY 20XX $ 5,250 @
CorG
Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables $ 3,000
D orH

NOTE: Complete only if miscellaneous receivables is greater than $10,000 at June 30.

FOR OMB USE ONLY

>

If Accounts Receivable

Not Applicable.

DR 124001 (Accounts Receivable)
CR (Revenue)

DR 124001 (Accounts Receivable)
CR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)

DR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)
CR 124201 (Allowance For

Uncollectible A/R)

If Intergovernmental Receivable

E DR 130001 (Intergov'tal Receivable)
CR 124001 (Accounts Receivable)

F DR 130001 (Intergov'tal Receivable)
CR (Revenue)

G DR 130001 (Intergov'tal Receivable)
CR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)

H DR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)
CR 130201 (Allowance for
Uncollectible I/R)

Revised 3/2015
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COMPLETING THE INTEREST RECEIVABLE SUMMARY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)
(10)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’'s name will automatically
populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the amount of interest collected during the fiscal year relating to outstanding loans
receivable. (Include any amount received in July and applied back.)

Enter the portion of the total interest receivable (reported in 6b) on cash and investments that
represents interest from cash and investments at the Bank of North Dakota.

Enter the amount of interest receivable at June 30 relating to loans your agency has made to
outside parties (a) and relating to cash and investments (b).

Enter the amount of interest receivable that was received during July and applied back to June.
Also report the cash or investment account used in PeopleSoft to record the interest. Note: If
you used an entry event for the deposit, account 105251 would have been the cash account
recorded. Run the applicable apply back queries such as, NDSCAFR_DEP, NDSCAFR_ONL,
etc to verify apply back amounts (Check the information on your cash closing package for
this fund, if any, to make sure you are not reporting the same deposit as cash at June 30
and as areceivable at June 30).

Enter the amount of interest estimated to be received during the next fiscal year for each
column.

Enter the amount of interest receivable after next year’s receipts.
Enter the portion of ( 9 ) estimated to be uncollectible.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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INTEREST RECEIVABLE SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

1
Business Unit #:

99900

Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name: Operating Fund

Prepared: 8/15/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Approved: 8/16/20XX By: 1.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

) s

Amount of Interest Receivable on Cash and Investments that is due from the Bank of ND. @ $

Amount of interest received on outstanding loans during the year ended June 30, 20XX 182,715 *

8,340

T
Adjustment Interest Receivable Interest Receivable
Code Description A)Relating to Loans on Cash & Investments
FOR OMB Interest Receivable
USE ONLY ® ®
Interest Receivable at June 30 $ 77,450 $ 17,020
A
Less: @ @
Amount Received during July and
applied back to June ( 14,720 ) | 105251 ( 1,642 )
BorC List Cash/Investment accounts used Cash/Investment
Account
103200 ( 1,000 )
Cash/Investment
Less: Account
Amount Expected to be collected by
June 30, 20XX ( 55,000 ) ( 14,378 )
DorE
476005 / 442025 ® ®
Interest Receivable after reciepts from FY 20XX| $ 7,730 $ -
ForG @
Allowance for Uncollectible Interest -
Receivable $ 4,500 $
H

FOR OMB USE ONLY

E DR 131100 (Interest Receivable from BND)

A Not Applicable - PeopleSoft Interest Allocation CR (Revenue)

B DR 127002 (Interest Receivable) F DR 127002 (Interest Receivable)
CR 124001 (Accounts Receivable) CR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)

C DR 131100 (Interest Receivable from BND) G DR 131100 (Interest Receivable from BND)
CR 124001 (Accounts Receivable) CR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)

D DR 127002 (Interest Receivable) H DR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)

CR 127202 (Allowance for
Uncollectible Interest)

! Compare to account 476005 in "Actuals Ledger." Reclass material differences

CR (Revenue)

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

The State is subject to many types of insurance claims. For this closing package, an insurance claim is an
application for payment that a party files with a State claim-paying program. The filing party may be an
insured, reinsured, or other covered party. Insurance claim-paying programs accept risks instead of
paying insurance companies to accept these risks. Insurance claim-paying programs either:

e Contract with private insurance carriers to process and/or pay insurance claims.
e Pay insurance claims directly.
Examples of insurance claim-paying programs in State government include:
e Unsatisfied Judgment Fund
e Petroleum Release Compensation Fund

This closing package is only applicable to insurance claim-paying programs that are not component units.
It does not apply to situations where the State pays insurance premiums to private insurers.

This closing package does not address lawsuits filed against the State. Agencies will report lawsuits in
the Litigation Closing Package. Similarly, this closing package does not address leases, which are
reported in the lease closing package.

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State report liabilities for the estimated future costs of all
events that occurred on or before June 30.

GAAP further requires the State to disclose events that may materially affect future claim costs.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e Complete an Insurance Claims Summary Form for each insurance claim-paying program that is
not a component unit. Return it to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due
date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e Complete the Additional Claims Information Form as of June 30 for each insurance claim-paying
program that is not a component unit. Return this Form to the Office of Management and Budget
on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the
Introduction Section.

e |f something happens during the six months after June 30 (July 1 through December 31) that may
materially change future insurance claim costs:

--  Complete an updated Additional Claims Information Form.

--  Submit it to the Office of Management and Budget as soon as possible.
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Examples of such events are:
--  New legislation.
--  New agency policies.

-- External events (such as natural or man-made disasters, epidemics, etc.). that will materially
change:

0 The dollar amount per valid insurance claim.
o0 The number of valid insurance claims.
KEY TERMS

Current Liability. In governmental funds, current liabilities are liabilities an agency expects to pay from
"expendable available financial resources.”

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR). Incurred But Not Reported is the estimated cost of covered events
that:

e Occurred on or before June 30.

e Wil result in valid insurance claims against the State.

e Are unknown to the State at June 30 (the covered party has not yet filed an insurance claim).
Actuaries and accountants refer to this estimated cost as IBNR.
Insurance Claim-Paying Program. State insurance claim-paying programs accept risks instead of paying

insurance companies to accept these risks. Insurance claim-paying programs do one or both of the
following:

e Contract with private insurance carriers to process and/or pay insurance claims.

e Payinsurance claims directly.

The State Unemployment Compensation Program, however, is not an insurance claim-paying program for
closing package purposes.

Insurance Claims Known But Not Paid. These are insurance claims that satisfy both of the following
conditions:

e The State is aware that a covered event occurred on or before June 30. Example: A covered
party filed an insurance claim on or before June 30.

e As of June 30, your agency either has made no payment or made only partial payment on the
insurance claim.
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The amount for Insurance Claims Known But Not Paid includes both:

e The known amount that the State must pay in the future for insurance claims settled on or before
June 30.

e An estimate of amounts the State will pay in the future for insurance claims in process at June 30.

Liability. A liability is an obligation resulting from past transactions that will (or is likely to) result in future
payments and/or reductions in future revenues.

Long-Term Liability. Long-term liabilities are liabilities other than current liabilities.

Subsequent Event. Subsequent events are events or transactions that:

e  Occur after June 30 but before the State issues its financial statements.

e Have a material effect on the financial statements and/or the auditor's report.
Governments must disclose subsequent events in their financial statements.

Subsequent Period. The subsequent period is the time after June 30 but before the State issues its
financial statements. The State plans to issue its financial statements by December 31. For practical
purposes, therefore, the subsequent period is July 1 through December 31. Governments must disclose
on their financial statements any material events that occur during the subsequent period.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

Accounting Standards

Settled insurance claims that require the State to make future payments or suffer other future losses are
liabilities. GAAP requires the State to record liabilities existing at June 30 on its financial statements.

Other GAAP requirements relating to claims appear in:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Sections 1500.108 and C50.101
through .118.

e Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement 5, "Accounting For Contingencies" as
revised and interpreted.

GAAP requires that the State report liabilities for the estimated future costs of insured events that

occurred on or before June 30. GAAP further requires the State to report two components of this
estimated cost:

e Cost of Claims Known But Not Paid at June 30.

e Estimate of Incurred But Not Reported Claims at June 30.
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GASB Caodification Section C50.101 states:

Liabilities may be estimated through, a case-by-case review of all insurance claims, the
application of historical experience to the outstanding insurance claims, or a combination
of these methods. Where historical experience is used, the outstanding insurance claims
should be stratified by amount and the strata should be sufficiently refined to assure that
the estimation is reasonable.

Events that will materially change future claims costs may occur after June 30 but before the State issues
its financial statements. Such events are subsequent events. GAAP for subsequent events appears in:

e GASB Codification Section 2300.104.

e Various Statements on Auditing Standards (SAS's) and related interpretations issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

State Policies--General

It is the State's policy to record insurance claim liabilities on its financial statements. These liabilities will
include the estimated future costs of all covered events that occurred on or before June 30. The State will
report this estimated cost in two components:

e |nsurance Claims Known But Not Paid.

e Incurred But Not Reported.
These liabilities are estimates. Agencies may estimate liabilities through:

e A case-by-case review of all insurance claims.

e The application of historical experience to the outstanding insurance claims.

e A combination of these methods.
Where agencies use historical experience, they should stratify the outstanding insurance claims by
amounts and type of insurance claim. Agencies should refine these strata enough to assure that the

estimation is reasonable.

The State will disclose events occurring during the subsequent period that will materially affect future
insurance claim costs.

State Policies--Insurance Claims Known But Not Paid

The amount for Insurance Claims Known But Not Paid includes both:
e Known amounts the State must pay in future years for insurance claims settled on or before June 30.

e An estimate of amounts the State will pay in future years for insurance claims in process at June 30.
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There are many ways to estimate the amount the State will pay in future years for insurance claims in
process at June 30. For example, the agency might compute:

e Total cost resulting from insurance claims filed during some previous fiscal year.
e Divided by the number of insurance claims filed during that year.
Times the total number of insurance claims in process at June 30 this year.
Or the agency may compute:
e Average cost per valid insurance claim over a recent period of time.
e Times the number of insurance claims in process at June 30 this year estimated to be valid.

The exact computation will depend on data available to the agency when it completes the Insurance
Claims Summary Form.

State Policies--Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)

The exact computation of IBNR will depend on data available. Computation of IBNR can be complex. The
Office of Management and Budget prefers to use estimates of IBNR prepared by independent consulting
actuaries. If this is not practical, the agency's staff should estimate IBNR.

The State will record:

e Long-term liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets for all insurance claims
liabilities. These include:

-- Insurance Claims Known But Not Paid that the agency expects to pay from future financial
resources.

-~ Incurred But Not Reported.

e Additions and deletions to the insurance claims liability in the notes to the financial statements
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WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep copies of the completed Insurance
Claims Summary Form. In addition, the agency should keep any documents that support data that
appears on that Form. Such documents may include:

e Actuarial reports.
e Computations supporting estimates with full description of:
-~ Any assumptions made.
-- Mathematical, actuarial, and/or statistical methods used.

-- Each component figure in the computation and any supporting source documents (such as
claim forms).

Appropriate documentation and the level of detail will vary according to the circumstances.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--INSURANCE CLAIMS SUMMARY FORM

e All agencies in the State that administer insurance claim-paying programs that are not component
units must complete the Insurance Claims Summary Form.

e Use separate Insurance Claims Summary Forms for separate insurance claim-paying programs.

e Return the Form to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date indicated in
the Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.

e The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

e A sample completed Insurance Claims Summary Form and detailed instructions for completing
the Form follow.
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COMPLETING THE INSURANCE CLAIMS SUMMARY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

(8)
(9)
(10)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund responsible for the payment of insurance claims from the drop down list, the
fund’s name will automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the name of the insurance claim-paying program.

Enter the Insurance Claims payable at June 30.

Enter the amount of insurance claims your agency paid during July and applied back to June.
Enter the amount your agency estimates it will pay by the end of the next fiscal year. (Include in
this total the amounts received in July and NOT applied back to June. The way you choose to
estimate it is left to your agency’s discretion, but should have some reasonable basis as your
auditors may review the calculation.)

Enter the claims liability amount payable at June 30, net of next fiscal year’s payments.

Enter the amount of claims that were added during the current fiscal year.

Enter the amount of claims that were paid during the current fiscal year.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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INSURANCE CLAIMS SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

©

Business Unit #: 99900 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name: Operating Fund
Prepared: 8/15/XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. |  328-5555
@ Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 8/16/XX By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Insurance Claim Paying Program Name:
Adjustment Dollar
Code Description Amount
FOR OMB GOVERNMENTAL FUND RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT
USE ONLY
(Complete only if the fund listed above is a governmental fund)
Insurance Claims payable at June 30 @ $ 80,000
Liability for claims that the agency paid in July and applied back. @ ( 10,000 )
Liability for Claims Known But Not Paid that the agency expects to pay
by June 30, 20XX ( 60,000 )
Insurance Claims payable after payments from FY XX $ 10,000
Amount of claims that were added during the fiscal year @ $ 210,000
Amount of claims that were paid during the fiscal year 140,000

®$

For OMB Use Only

A DR 201001 (Accounts Payable)
CR 215001 (Judgments Payable)

Revised 3/2015
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--ADDITIONAL CLAIMS INFORMATION FORM

Complete the Additional Claims Information Form as of June 30 for each insurance claim-paying
program that is not a component unit. Return this Form to the Office of Management and Budget
no later than August 20.

If anything happens during the six months after June 30 that could materially change future
insurance claims costs:

--  Complete an updated Additional Claims Information Form.

--  Submit it to the Office of Management and Budget as soon as possible.

Examples of such events are: That will materially change:
a. New legislation or a. The amount of future valid insurance claims or
b. New agency policies or b.  The number of insurance claims filed in the future.
c. An external event (such as a
natural or man-made disaster,
epidemic, etc.

Use separate Additional Claims Information Forms for separate insurance claim-paying
programs.

The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

A sample completed Additional Claims Information Form and detailed instructions for completing
the Form follow.
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COMPLETING THE ADDITIONAL CLAIMS INFORMATION FORM

REF

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

Note:

EXPLANATION

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically
populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the name of the insurance claim-paying program.

Check one block to indicate whether the data is year-end data or subsequent period data. For
year-end data, fill in the year. If the Form describes major changes that occurred between July 1
and December 31, enter the date that the change occurred.

Briefly describe the way you estimate the liability for insurance claims in process at June 30.

Briefly describe the way you estimate the liability for Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims at
June 30.

Sometimes things happen that materially change:

0 The cost per valid insurance claim in future periods.

0 The number of valid insurance claims filed in future periods.
For example, new legislation or new agency policies may affect the cost per valid insurance
claim. Likewise, the number of valid insurance claims filed in future periods may increase if
natural or man-made disasters or epidemics occur. State whether any such events occurred

since the last time you submitted an Additional Claims Information Form.

Describe the nature of event(s). Attach copies of new laws or policies if applicable. If possible,
please estimate the dollar effect of the event(s) on future insurance claims costs.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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ADDITIONAL CLAIMS INFORMATION FORM

D

Business Unit #: 999 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name: Operating Fund

Prepared: 8/13/XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Approved: 8/18/XX By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Name of Claim-Paying Program:  Example Claim Paying Program

Information as of: [ June 30 (Between 7/1 and 12/31)Date:  9/12/XX

©

Please briefly explain how you compute Claims Known But Not Paid for claims in process at June 30.
Estimated on a case-by-case basis.

(2

Please briefly explain how you compute Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Claims at June 30.

Independent consulting firm computes IBNR. Please see attached copy.

)

If an actuary computes the IBNR figure for you, please attach a copy of the actuary's report.

Since the last Additional Claims Information Form you submitted, has anything happened that may materially
change future claims costs?

) <] Yes [] No

If "Yes," please explain:

Due to Insurance Legislation passed recently, the total claims payable at June 30 increased

by $65,000.

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that government-wide financial statements be prepared and that the
financial statements contain certain footnote disclosures and supplementary information.

The purpose of this closing package is to gather the information needed for some of the required

adjustments for the government-wide statements and for other required disclosures that are not included
in the other closing packages.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e All agencies receiving the closing manual are required to complete the GASB 34 Reporting
Closing Package Form. This Form contains a series of questions.

- If a question is not applicable to your agency, indicate this with a NO and proceed to the
next question.

- If a question is applicable to your agency, provide the required data in the space provided
and proceed to the next question.

e Forms should be completed on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing
Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Advances To/From. Loans, either long-term or short-term, made by one fund to another fund.

Capital Grants and Contributions. Grants or contributions, including donated capital assets, restricted by
the grantor or donor solely for the acquisition or construction of a capital asset.

Extraordinary Items. Extraordinary items are transactions or other events that are both unusual in nature
and infrequent in occurrence.

Reimbursements. Reimbursements are payments from one state agency to another state agency for their
share of an expense that the other agency paid on their behalf. For example, one agency needs to repair
a road that goes to a boat ramp and a different agency needs to rebuild the boat ramp. They are using
the same contractor and the contractor wants to be paid by one agency. So the agency that pays will bills
the other one for their share of the bill. (The pass-through of federal funds between state agencies are
transfers not reimbursements.)

Special Iltems. Special items are significant transactions or other events within the control of management
that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence.

Unrestricted Grants and Contributions. Unrestricted grants and contributions are those that are not
restricted for specific use or for a specific program, such as a grant award that can be used for any
program in the state. Because the grant does not specify a use or a particular program, it is an
unrestricted grant.
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COMPLETING THE GASB 34 REPORTING CLOSING PACKAGE

REF EXPLANATION

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate. Complete one Form per agency.

(2) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The
Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GASB 34 REPORTING

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,XXXX

Business Unit #@ 999  Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
Prepared:@ 8/25/XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 325-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved@ 8/26/XX By: I.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

NOTE: COMPLETE ONE FORM PER AGENCY. (SEE KEY TERMS)

Does your agency have any amounts due to other state funds or due
from (including advances to/from) other state funds that are not expected
to be repaid within one year after June 307 (See Key Terms) Yes

If YES: Identify separately the amounts, and the fund each amount is due to
and due from. Also, provide a description of each interfund balance.

Due to (Fund#) Due from (Fund#) Amount
ABC XYZ 400,000

Purpose of each due to and due from:

A balance of $500,000 is due from fund XYZ because of a loan made to the fund to establish wi

capital when the fund was first created. $400,000 of this balance is not scheduled to be collecte

in the subsequent year

Did your agency receive any capital grants or contributions during
the fiscal year ended June 307 (See Key Terms) Yes

If YES: Describe below the purpose of the grant, the grantor, the amount
received and the account and fund used for deposit of the funds.

Our agency received a $200,000 grant from the federal government for the purchase of patrol ¢

Funds were received and deposited in fund 002, using account 430040.

Revised 3/2015
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GASB 34 REPORTING
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,XXXX

Business Unit #: 999  Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

Did your agency receive any unrestricted grants or contributions during
the fiscal year ended June 30? (See Key Terms) Yes

If YES: Describe below the purpose of the grant, the grantor, the amount
received and the account and fund used for deposit of the funds.

Received $800,000 from XYZ corporation for various state programs, to be allocated to state pr

at the discretion of the governor. Deposit was made into fund 123 using account code 443005.

Does your agency have a balance in any fund at June 30 that is restricted
by a non-state party or grantor for a specific use? Yes

If YES: Describe below the fund with the restriction, the amount of the balance
that is restricted, the third party invoking the restriction, and the purpose for the restriction.

We received $500,000 from a private foundation to be used only for agricultural research.

$200,000 of this amount remained in fund ABC at June 30.

Did your agency have any extraordinary or special items during the
fiscal year ended June 30? (See Key Terms) Yes

If YES: Describe the circumstances creating the items, the amounts,
and the funds involved in the transactions below.

Park land was sold for $5,000,000 to reduce the deficiency in the general fund. Proceeds were

deposited in the general fund.

Revised 3/2015
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GASB 34 REPORTING
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,XXXX

Business Unit #: 999  Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

6. Has your agency received from or paid to another state agency a
reimbursement payment in excess of $50,000 during the fiscal Yes
year ended June 30?7 (See Key Terms)

If YES: Please report below the amount received or paid, the other state
agency involved in the transaction, a description of the reimbursement,
the fund or funds your agency used for payment or receipt of the
reimbursement, and the PeopleSoft account used in the transaction.

We paid $75,000 to X agency for actual utility costs. X agency pays the utility costs for all the

buildings in the complex. Then, they bill our agency for the actual utility costs for the building

we occupy. We used general funds for this reimbursement, account 430040.

7. Has your agency entered into any operating lease agreements that
have scheduled rent increases, either as the lessee or lessor?

If YES: Explain the lease agreement below.

8. Did your agency have any significant changes in your programs or
increases or decrease in revenues or expenditures during the fiscal Yes

year ended June 30 that may have a significant impact on the state's
financial position or operations?

If YES: Describe the situation (including amounts and state funds) below.

1. We received $4 million from the federal government for a new program, Homeland Security. |

were deposited into and expended from fund 002. 2. Federal funding for our mental health proc

was reduced by $5 million. Therefore, our federal fund revenues and expenditures decreased

accordingly. This reduction significantly reduced the number of services we were able to provid

3. Oil and gas production tax collections were $6 million lower than the prior fiscal year due dec

production and lower oil prices.

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Tax revenues are revenues your agency collects from non-State parties and deposits under PeopleSoft
accounts:

e 411005 through 418010

Taxes that another State agency transfers to your agency are interfund transactions. These are not tax
revenues for purposes of this closing package.

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State report in its financial statements at June 30 certain:

e Tax Receivables.
e Tax Refunds Payable.

e Allowances for Uncollectible Taxes.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

YOU DO NOT HAVE TO COMPLETE THIS CLOSING PACKAGE IF THE TAX DEPARTMENT
COLLECTS ALL OF YOUR TAX REVENUE.

e |f your agency collects tax revenues, complete the following Forms:
-- Taxes Receivable Summary Form.

-- Tax Refunds Payable Summary Form.

e Complete the Forms on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due
Dates in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes Receivable. GAAP requires that the State report an Allowance for
Uncollectible Taxes Receivable if applicable. The financial statements show gross Taxes Receivable less
the allowance amount. Your agency must estimate the amount of the allowance. To do this:

e Gather historical data on revenue collectibility.

e Evaluate the collectability of Taxes Receivable at June 30. (See the definition of Taxes
Receivable).

Available. GAAP states that a revenue is available at June 30 if your agency will collect it either:
e On or before June 30.

e Soon enough after June 30 to pay liabilities that exist at June 30.
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Our State policy is that tax revenues are available only if the State receives the cash within two months of
the current fiscal year-end. Tax revenues, such as sales and income taxes, are available if the cash is
received (or expected to be received) by August 31.

Basis of Accounting. The basis of accounting determines when to recognize revenues (and
expenditures/expenses) in the financial statements. (Also see the definition of Modified Accrual Basis).

Unearned Revenue. Unearned Revenue is a liability account. GAAP requires that we record Unearned
Revenue (rather than Revenue) if at June 30 we either:

e Have collected material amounts before their normal time of receipt.

e Have Taxes Receivable that are measurable but not yet available. (Also see the definitions of
Measurable and Available).

Derived Tax Revenues. Derived tax revenues are assessments (taxes) imposed by the State on
exchange transactions. An exchange transaction occurs when income is earned, sales are transacted, or
resources are consumed. Examples include all sales and use taxes, personal and corporate income
taxes, oil and gas taxes, and taxes based on business activities. Most of the taxes collected by the State
are derived tax revenues.

Full Accrual Basis. The full accrual basis of accounting requires the State to report revenues in
proprietary fund statements and the government-wide statements when they are earned, regardless of
when the cash is received.

Imposed Non-Exchange Tax Revenue. Tax revenues are based on the valuation of property, such as
estate and property taxes.

Liability. A liability is an obligation resulting from past transactions that will (or is likely to) result in future
payments and/or reductions in future revenues.

Measurable. A revenue is measurable if your agency either:
e Knows the exact amount (because the transaction is complete).

e Has enough information to reasonably estimate the amount of revenue that you will receive.

Modified Accrual Basis. The modified accrual basis of accounting requires the State to report revenues in
the governmental fund statements in the fiscal year in which they become susceptible to accrual.
Amounts are susceptible to accrual only when they become both measurable and available (see above
definitions).

The modified accrual basis also requires the State to report:
e Taxes Receivable at June 30 for certain taxes that meet both of the following:
--  They are measurable at June 30.

-- At June 30, the State has not yet collected the related cash.
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e Unearned Revenue for taxes that:
--  We collect in advance of the fiscal year to which the taxes apply.
-- Are measurable but not available at June 30.

(Also see the definitions of Available, Basis of Accounting, Unearned Revenue, Liability, and
Measurable).

Taxes Receivable. Taxes Receivable are taxes that parties outside State government owe the State at
June 30 that meet the following criteria:

e The taxes are derived tax revenues that occurred June 30 or prior;
OR

e The taxes are imposed non-exchange revenues on which the State has an enforceable legal
claim on June 30;

AND

e They are measurable (reasonably estimable) at June 30, but the cash has not been received.

(See the definitions of Derived Tax Revenue, Imposed Non-exchange Tax Revenue, Measurable and
Available).

Tax Refunds Payable. Tax Refunds Payable is a liability account. Report Tax Refunds Payable if at June
30 your agency has collected more taxes than taxpayers owe and your agency will refund these amounts
to the taxpayers after June 30. (Also see the definition of Liability).

Tax Revenues. Tax revenues are revenues that your agency collects from non-State parties and deposits
under certain PeopleSoft revenue accounts. Some examples of tax revenues include:

e Individual and corporate income taxes.
e Sales and use taxes.

e Business license taxes.

e (Gasoline and motor vehicle taxes.

e Alcoholic liquors, beer, and wine taxes.

e |nsurance taxes.

For purposes of this closing package, amounts that other State agencies transfer to you are not tax
revenues.
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

General

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles relating to tax revenues appear in:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification, Sections 1600.106 through
1600.115.

In North Dakota, our governmental funds collect all tax revenues. For these funds, GAAP reports
revenues on the modified accrual basis of accounting in the governmental fund statements. GAAP
indicates, however, that application of the modified accrual basis requires "judgment, consideration of the
materiality of the item in question, and due regard for the practicality of accrual, as well as consistency in
application.” (See Section 1600.106 of the GASB Codification).

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles relating to tax receivables appear in:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification, N50.104 through N50.115.

GAAP requires the State to recognize receivables from derived tax revenue transactions in the period
when the exchange transaction on which the tax is imposed occurs. The State is required to recognize
receivables from imposed non-exchange tax revenue transactions in the period when an enforceable
legal claim to the receivable arises. Recognition in the financial statements is required unless the
transactions are not measurable (reasonably estimable) or are not probable of collection. Transactions
that are not recognizable because they are not measurable need to be disclosed.

An outline of accounting principles and State policies for different types of taxes appears below:

Individual and Corporate Income Taxes, Sales Taxes, Gaming Taxes, and Similar Taxes (All Derived Tax

Revenues)

General Rule for Receivables: The State’s policy is to report taxes receivable when the exchange
transaction being taxed occurs if the amount is known or can be reasonably estimated, as in the following
examples:

Receivable is reported for the taxes imposed on personal and corporate income received
or earned through June 30 if the tax has not been collected by June 30, the taxes are
measurable, and the collection of the tax is probable.

Receivable is reported for sales and use taxes that are imposed on goods or services
received on or prior to June 30 if the tax has not been collected by June 30, the taxes are
measurable, and the collection of the tax is probable.

(See Key Terms for Measurable.)

e Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes. Estimate and report an appropriate amount for an Allowance
for Uncollectible Taxes. Make your estimate based on past experience.

e Tax Refunds Payable. Taxes paid during the year to the State from employers, businesses, and
others based on withholding tables or estimated taxes may result in excess taxes paid. For
refunds not yet paid at June 30, the State’s policy is to estimate and report Tax Refunds Payable.
Estimates are to be based on historical data relating to refunds. In addition, there may be some
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tax refunds in process at June 30. The State’s policy is to report Tax Refunds Payable for these
amounts as well.

General Rule for Revenues: Taxes are reported on the modified accrual basis (see Key Terms).
The State will report:

-- Revenue for the amounts that are available at June 30.

-- Unearned Revenue for these amounts that are not available at June 30.
(See Key Terms for the definition of Available.)

Estate Taxes and Taxes Based on Value of Property (Imposed Non-Exchange Tax Revenues).

General Rule: The State’s policy is to report taxes receivable when an enforceable claim to the receivable
occurs if the amount is known or can be reasonably estimated as follows:

A receivable is reported for tax assessments on property made on or prior to June 30 if the tax has not
been collected by June 30, the taxes are measurable, and the collection of the tax is probable.

(See Key Terms for Measurable.)

e Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes. Estimate and report an appropriate amount for an Allowance
for Uncollectible Taxes. Make your estimate based on past experience.

e Tax Refunds Payable. The State’s policy is to estimate Tax Refunds Payable based on historical
data relating to refunds. In addition, Tax Refunds Payable will be reported for any tax refunds in
process at June 30.

WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep copies of the completed summary
Forms. In addition, the agency should keep working papers to support each figure on those Forms. For
example, agencies should thoroughly document:

e How you derived at each amount.
e The source(s) of data for each amount.

e Methods used to arrive at estimated amounts.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
TAX REVENUES CLOSING PACKAGE 6/1/2015 17
REVISED: PAGE:
6

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--TAXES RECEIVABLE AND DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE
SUMMARY FORM

e All funds in the State that collect tax revenues must complete the Taxes Receivable Summary
Form.

e Use a separate Form for each fund.

e Complete the Form on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due
Dates in the Introduction Section.

e Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.

e The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Form follows the
instructions.

COMPLETING THE TAXES RECEIVABLE SUMMARY FORM

REF EXPLANATION

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

(2) Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically
populate.

(3) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

(4) Enter the amount for Taxes Receivable that others owe you at June 30.

(5) Enter the amount of Taxes Receivable that others owe you at June 30 for which you received
payment
during July and applied it back to June. Run the applicable apply back queries such as,
NDSCAFR_DEP,NDSCAFR_ONL, etc to verify apply back amounts (Check the information on
your cash closing package for this fund, if any, to make sure you are not reporting the
same deposit as cash at June 30 and as a receivable at June 30).

(6) Enter the revenue account that will be used when payment is received.

(7) Enter the amount of Taxes Receivable that others owe you at June 30 for which you expect to
receive payment during the next two months. (Include in this total the amounts received in July
and NOT applied back to June. The way you choose to estimate it is left to your agency’'s
discretion, but should have some reasonable basis as your auditors may review the calculation.)



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
TAX REVENUES CLOSING PACKAGE 6/1/2015 17
REVISED: PAGE:
7

(8) Verify the amount of Taxes Receivable that others owe you at June 30 net of the next two

month’s receipts.

(9) Enter the portion of the amount in ( 8 ) that is estimated to be uncollectible.

Note: Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The
Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
TAXES RECEIVABLE SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

Business Unit

State Fund #:

Prepared@
Approved@

#: @99900
@ s

State Fund Name:

Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

Operating Fund

9/11/20XX By J.P.Junior Acct. | 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

9/12/20XX By I.M. Serior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Adjustment Dollar
Code Description Amount
FOR OMB Taxes Receivable
USE ONLY @
Taxes Receivable at June 30 $ 202,000
Less: Amount Received during July and applied back to June ( 18,000 )
A
Less: List by Account the amount expected to be received by August 3] ( 145,000 )
B u Account Amount Account Amount
(6)415015 | (7) 145,000
Taxes Receivable collected after August 31, 20XX $ 9,000
©
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes Receivable $ @8,500
D

FOR OMB USE ONLY

A

DR 123051 (Taxes Receivable)

CR 124001 (Accounts Receivable)

DR 123051 (Taxes Receivable)
CR (Revenue)

DR 123051 (Taxes Receivable)

CR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)

DR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)

CR 123151 (Allowance For Uncollectible Taxes Receivable)

Revised 3/2015
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--TAX REFUNDS PAYABLE SUMMARY FORM

All funds in the State that owe non-state parties tax refunds at June 30 must complete the Tax
Refunds Payable Summary Form.

Use a separate Form for each fund.

Complete the Form on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due
Dates in the Introduction Section.

Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.

The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Form follows the
instructions.

COMPLETING THE TAX REFUNDS PAYABLE SUMMARY FORM

REF

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)

(6)
(7)

Note:

EXPLANATION

Note:The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on
the ‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’'s name will automatically
populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the amount of Tax Refunds Payable at June 30.

Enter the amount of Tax Refunds Payable at June 30 that were paid in July and applied back to
June.

Enter the amount of Tax Refunds Payable after July applybacks by account.
Verify the total of Tax Refunds after July applybacks.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
TAX REFUNDS PAYABLE SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

Business Unit 4 S : !99900 Business Unit Name Sample Agency

State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name: Operating Fund
Prepared@ 9/11/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved@ 9/12/20XX By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Adjustment Dollar
Code Account Description Amount
FOR OMB Tax Refunds Payable
USE ONLY @
Tax Refunds Payable at June 30 $ 230,000
Less: @
A Amount paid in July and applied back to June| ( 21,000 )
B @ 415015 Tax Refunds Payable (after July applybacks) ©100,000
B 415020 Tax Refunds Payable (after July applybacks) 109,000
B Tax Refunds Payable (after July applybacks)
B Tax Refunds Payable (after July applybacks)
B Tax Refunds Payable (after July applybacks)
B Tax Refunds Payable (after July applybacks)
@)
Total $ 209,000

FOR OMB USE ONLY

A DR 201001 (Accounts Payable)
CR 202001 (Tax Refunds Payable)

B DR (Revenue)
CR 202001 (Tax Refunds Payable)

Revised 3/2015
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Payables at June 30 are amounts owed for:

e (Goods or services your agency received on or before June 30 and had not yet paid for as of
June 30; or

e Reimbursements to subrecipients paid after June 30, where subrecipient received the goods or
service on or before June 30.

This closing package does not concern itself with:
e Payroll and fringe benefits payable.

o Debt service payable.

This closing package focuses on Accounts Payable involving both State and non-State vendors.

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State record a liability for Accounts Payable on its financial
statements at June 30.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e Read and complete this closing package before you complete the Form in the Grant Revenue
closing package.

e Determine which items to report on the Accounts Payable Accrual Summary Form and the
Payments to Other State Agencies Form by:

-- Reviewing the decision tree which follows.

-- Reviewing expenditures/expenses paid in PeopleSoft for July and August.
-- Reviewing invoices your agency plans to pay in the new fiscal year.

-- Reviewing contract retentions (See Key Terms for definition).

--  Estimating amounts your agency owed vendors at June 30 for which the vendor has not yet
issued an invoice and the amount is material.

-- Review to see if your agency is holding any funds for a third party including another state
agency.

-- Reviewing computer printouts.

-- Reviewing supporting documentation for the items on the printouts.
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e Determine which items to report on the Journal Voucher Accrual Summary Form by:

-- Reviewing any journals that were done to determine if they were done to correct payments
made for June business.

e Determine whether the above review will identify almost all Accounts Payable. Do this by
reviewing your other agency accounting records. Expand the scope of your review as necessary.
For example, review a sample of September (and perhaps even October) vouchers from the last
fiscal year. If several of these were Accounts Payable at June 30 of the previous fiscal year, you
may need to estimate additional Accounts Payable.

e For each fund complete an Accounts Payable Accrual Summary Form.

e Complete only one Journal Voucher Accrual Summary Form and Payments Made to Other State
Agencies Form for each business unit

e For each fund report contract retentions separately from other accounts payable.

e Complete all Forms on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due
Dates in the Introduction Section.




STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACCRUAL DECISION TREE

NOTE: This decision tree is used to determine if vouchers paid in the new year represent Accounts
Payable from the prior year and need to be reported on the Accounts Payable Accrual
Summary Form, Journal Voucher Accrual Summary Form or the Payments to Other State
Agencies Form. Apply the logic in the decision tree to each item listed on the Accounts
Payable Query and the Journal Query (for the first two months of the new fiscal year) your
agency receives from the Office of Management and Budget.

Payment related Do not include on
to Payroll, Accounts Payable
Employer Yes > Accrual Summary

Contributions, or Form

IDB’s?
N\ .
Did subrecipient No Do not include on
Payment to Yes receive goods or Accounts Payable
subrecipient? services on or before Accrual Summary
June 307 Form
(N J
Yes

Gooo_ls or Do not include on
services N Accounts Payable

received on or —— No >

Accrual Summary

before June 30? Form

Yes

Indicate that expenditure
relates to prior year and
include on Accounts
Payable Accrual Summary
Form

A
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KEY TERMS

Accounts Payable. Payables at June 30 are amounts owed for:

e (Goods or services your agency received on or before June 30 and had not yet paid for as of
June 30; or

e Reimbursements to subrecipients paid after June 30, where subrecipient received the goods or
service on or before June 30.

Accounts Payable are Current Liabilities. For this closing package, Accounts Payable involve payments to
both State and non-State vendors. That is, Accounts Payable do not include amounts your agency owes:

e For payroll and employee fringe benefits (See the Compensated Absences Closing Package).

e On insurance claims (See the Insurance Claims Closing Package).

e For debt service.
Contract Retentions. On some construction contracts, your agency may withhold part of each payment
from the contractor until the project is complete. The amounts you withhold are contract retentions.

Determine contract retention amounts by reviewing Architect and Engineers Certificates of Payment.
Report contract retentions separately from other Accounts Payable.

Current Liability. In governmental fund statements, current liabilities are liabilities an agency expects to
pay from expendable available financial resources.

Encumbrance Accounting. Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods
or services. Encumbrances become Accounts Payable only when the State receives the related goods or
services. Some governments and agencies record encumbrances when they issue purchase orders, sign
contracts, or otherwise commit to future expenditures. Recording an encumbrance sets aside a portion of
the applicable appropriation. Encumbrance accounting helps to prevent expenditures from exceeding
appropriations. North Dakota State law does not require encumbrance accounting.

June 30. Whenever we say June 30, we mean the calendar date June 30 unless otherwise noted. June
30 is not necessarily the same as the end of PeopleSoft FM 12. (Some PeopleSoft FM 12 transactions
post in July and apply back to June).

Liability. A liability is an obligation resulting from past transactions that will (or is likely to) result in future
payments and/or reductions in future revenues.

Supporting Documentation. We use the term "supporting documentation” to describe the documents your
agency files whenever it processes a PeopleSoft voucher.
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The supporting documentation for a vendor payment should include:
e A copy of the completed PeopleSoft voucher.
e A vendor invoice.
e Areceiving report or other indication of when the agency received the goods or services.

e Any other related documents.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

The State will record Accounts Payable at June 30 as current liabilities in individual state funds.

GAAP requires that different fund types report their expenditures or expenses in different categories. (See
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Sections 1800.116-127). The
accounting entries to record Accounts Payable also affect expenditures or expenses.

See Sections 1600.117-1600.122 of the GASB Codification for further information on rules for
expenditure recognition. These rules require that agencies carefully document the date when they receive
goods or services. Invoices do not always indicate delivery dates. Agencies should complete a "Receiving
Report" or otherwise document the date they receive goods or services.

GASB Statement #33 requires liabilities and expenditures to be recognized when all applicable eligibility
requirements have been met. The subrecipient incurring the expenditure is a valid eligibility requirement.

WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep:
e Copies of the completed Closing Package Forms.
e Working papers that support each figure on the completed Forms.
The working papers also should include:
e A list of the miscellaneous claims/abstracts and other documents you reviewed. The list should
indicate whether you reported each miscellaneous claims/abstracts or invoice amount on an
Accounts Payable Summary Form.

e Copies of the vouchers or other documents.

e A description of the review steps you applied to each payment/abstract or other documents.
These steps should include a review of:

-- The date (or planned invoice payment date).

-- The date the agency received the goods or services.
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SUMMARY FORM AND PAYMENTS TO OTHER

STATE AGENCIES FORM

Determine which items to report on the Accounts Payable Summary Form by:

Reviewing the Accounts Payable decision tree.

Reviewing vouchers or other documents paid in July and August of the new fiscal year. You
will need to run the Queries NDSCAFR_PYMTS_OVER_ 1000 and NDSCAFR_STATE
PYMTS_OVER_1000 for each of your Accounts Payable Business Units to review these
amounts.

Reviewing invoices your agency plans to pay in the new fiscal year.

Consider reviewing vouchers paid in September and October of the last fiscal year.

Reviewing contract retentions (See Key Terms for definition). Contract retentions should be
reported separately from Accounts Payable.

Complete the Accounts Payable Summary Form and/or Payments to Other State Agencies Form.

Please complete an Accounts Payable Summary Form for each fund. If amounts are zero for the
fund, please submit the ‘No Accounts Payable Accrual Summary Form’, by doing this you certify
that your review for Accounts Payable includes all funds. The Office of Management and Budget
needs this certification for audit purposes.

Complete one Payments to Other State Agencies Form but list only each fund with payments on
the Form.

Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.

Complete the Accounts Payable Summary Form on or before the due date indicated in the
Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

The person who prepares the Form should keep a copy. OMB will call this person if there are
guestions.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--JOURNAL VOUCHER ACCRUAL SUMMARY FORM

Determine which items to report on the Journal Voucher Accrual Summary Form by:

Reviewing any journals that were done in July and August, or later, to determine if they are
correcting June business. You will need to run the Query
NDSCAFR_PYMTSADJ_OVER_1000 for each of your Accounts Payable Business Units to
review July and August amounts recorded on PeopleSoft.

Complete the Journal Voucher Accrual Summary Form.

Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.

The person who prepares the Form should keep a copy as OMB will call if there are questions.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CLOSING PACKAGE 6/1/2015 18
REVISED: PAGE:
6

COMPLETING THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACCRUAL SUMMARY FORM:

EF

EXPLANATION

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

(8)

NOTE:

Run the PeopleSoft Query NDSCAFR_PYMTS_OVER_1000 for each of your Accounts Payable
Business Unit.

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit’s name will
automatically populate.

Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically
populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the Account.
Enter the Operating Unit.
Enter the Class.

Enter the accounts payable accrual amount. Please include each accounts payable greater
than $1,000 where the expenditure was incurred by June 30 and payment has been or will
be made after June 30 and the expenditure was not applied back to June. You may need to
estimate any material amounts incurred by June 30 and paid subsequent to August.

Please review this number. If it is different than expected, please check the numbers
entered at (7). All amounts need to be entered as a positive number. (Amounts are to be
entered in whole dollars)

If significant payments are made after you submit this closing package that are for
expenditures that were incurred June 30 or prior, contact OMB to determine if another
closing package needs to be submitted for those payments.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACCRUAL SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

©

Business Unit #: 999 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name:  Sample Fund
Prepared: 9/7/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-5555
@ Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 9/8/20XX By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Adjustment @ Operating @ Dollar
Code Account Unit Class Amount*
561015 200 20030 $ 46,120
(OMB)
541015 901 90170 $ 10,000
(OMB)
561065 901 20030 $ 4,401
(OMB)
$
(OMB)
$
(OMB)
(©)
Total $ 60,521

*Please include each accounts payable greater than $1,000 where the expenditure was incurred by June 30 and
payment has been or will be made after June 30 and the expenditure was not applied back to June.

Adjustment Description

[A] DR (Expenditures) [C] DR (Expenditures)
CR 201001 (Accounts Payable) CR 210001 (Intergovernmental Payabl
[B] DR (Expenditures)

CR 208101 (Retained Percentages Payable)

Revised 3/2015
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COMPLETING THE NO ACCRUAL ACTIVITY SUMMARY FORM FOR ACCOUNTS PAYABLE,

JOURNAL VOUCHERS, AND PAYMENTS TO OTHER STATE AGENCIES

EF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

()

(6)

NOTE:

EXPLANATION

Report all funds that had no Accounts Payable Accrual Activity and Business Units with no
accrual Journal Vouchers or Payments to Other State Agencies greater than $1,000. Run
the following queries check if your agency has any accrual activity.

NDSCAFR_PYMTS_OVER_1000- For AP and Payments to Other State Agencies
NDSCAFR_PYMTSADJ_OVER_1000- For Journal Vouchers (Correcting Entries).

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, 20XX’ line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit nhame will
automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Use the check mark in the drop down box to certify that your agency has no vouchers paid
in the current fiscal year that represent accounts payable from the prior fiscal year for the
funds listed below in step (4).

Enter in the fund/funds that have no vouchers paid in the current fiscal year that represent
accounts payable from the prior fiscal year.

Use the check mark to certify that your agency has no journal vouchers in the current fiscal
year that represents corrections for the prior fiscal year.

Use the check mark to certify that your agency has no Payments to Other State Agencies in
the current fiscal year that represent accounts payable from the prior fiscal year.

When the box is not checked OMB will be expecting an Accounts Payable Accrual

Summary Form, a JV summary Accrual Form, and/or a payments to Other State

Agencies Accrual Summary Form.

If significant payments are made after you submit this closing package that are for
expenditures that were incurred June 30 or prior, contact OMB to determine if another
closing package needs to be submitted for those payments.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
NO ACCRUAL ACTIVITY SUMMARY FORM
FOR ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, JOURNAL VOUCHERS, AND PAYMENTS TO OTHER STATE AGENCIES
At June 30, 20XX

DO

Business Unit # 99900 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
Prepared; 8/25/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-2345
@ Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 8/26/20XX By: I.M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg. 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Accounts Payable Accrual Form

®.D 1) By checking the box you certify that your agency has no vouchers paid in the current fiscal
year that represent accounts payable from the prior fiscal year for the funds listed below.

@ Funds: Funds: Funds:
1. 200 11. 21.
2. 201 12. 22.
3. 001 13. 23.
4. 14. 24,
5. 15. 25.
6. 16. 26.
7. 17. 27.
8. 18. 28.
9. 19. 29.
10. 20. 30.

JV Summary Accrual Form

@. D 2) By checking the box you certify that your agency has no journal vouchers in the current fiscal

year that represent corrections for the prior fiscal year.

Payments to Other State Agencies

@QE 3) By checking the box you certify that your agency has no Payments to Other State Agencies in the current
fiscal year that represent accounts payable from the prior fiscal year.

® \When the box is not checked OMB will be expecting an Accounts Payable Accrual Summary Form, a JV Summary Accrual Form
Other State Agencies Accrual Summary Form.

Revised 3/2015
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COMPLETING THE JOURNAL VOUCHER ACCRUAL SUMMARY FORM

EF

EXPLANATION

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)
(10)

NOTE:

Run the PeopleSoft Query NDSCAFR_PYMTSADJ OVER_1000 for each of your Accounts
Payable Business Unit.

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, 20XX’ line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit’s name will
automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the Journal ID or Voucher #.

Enter the Fund Code.

Enter the Account.

Enter the Operating Unit.

Enter the Class.

Enter the journal/voucher line amount. Please include each journal/voucher line greater than
$1,000 where the expenditure was incurred by June 30 and the correction was made after
June 30 and was not applied back to June.

Enter an explanation of the reason for the journal on each line.

Verify the total amount for all journal/voucher accruals. (Enter all amounts in whole dollars.)
If journals with significant amounts are made after you submit this closing package that are

for revenues earned or expenditures that were incurred June 30 or prior, contact OMB to
determine if another closing package needs to be submitted for those journal amounts.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
JOURNAL VOUCHER ACCRUAL SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

1

Business Unit #: 99900

o

Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

Prepared: 9/7/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 9/6/20XX By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Journal ID/ Operatin Dollar
Voucher # Funo@ Account@ Unit(6 ) CIass@ Amount*
0000195931 790 552085 200 20030 (2,047)
©)

Explanation: Moving expenditures from fund 790 to fund 001

0000195931 001 552085 200 20030 2,047
Explanation: Moving expenditures from fund 790 to fund 001
0000196226 288 463021 288 N/A 4,500
Explanation: Correcting wrong fund used
0000196226 001 463021 001 N/A (4,500)
Explanation: Correcting wrong fund used
0000196236 288 623100 901 90170 (6,791)
Explanation: Record a refund of an expenditure

Explanation:

C10)
Total $ (6,791)

*Please include each journal greater than $1,000 that is correcting June business (revenues and/or expenditures)

and the journal was not applied back to June.

Revised 3/2015
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COMPLETING THE PAYMENTS TO OTHER STATE AGENCIES FORM

EF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

(10)

NOTE:

EXPLANATION

Run the PeopleSoft Query NDSCAFR_STATE PYMTS_OVER_1000 for each of your Accounts
Payable Business Unit.

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit’s name will
automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Enter the Voucher #.

Enter the Fund Code.

Enter the Account.

Enter the Operating Unit.

Enter the Class.

Enter the Business Unit # for the agency that was paid.

Enter the amount of the payment made to the state agency. Please include each accounts
payable greater than $1,000 where the expenditure was incurred by June 30 and payment
has been or will be made after June 30 and the expenditure was not applied back to June.
You may need to estimate any material amounts incurred by June 30 and paid subsequent

to August.

Verify the total amount for all accounts payable accruals. If it is different than expected,
please check the number entered at (9). (Enter amounts in whole dollars.)

If significant payments are made after you submit this closing package that are for
expenditures that were incurred June 30 or prior, contact OMB to determine if another
closing package needs to be submitted for those payments.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The

Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

PAYMENTS TO OTHER STATE AGENCIES FORM
At June 30, 20XX

1

Business Unit #: 99900

Business Unit Name: Sample Agency

Prepared: 9/7/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-2345
@ Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 9/8/20XX By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328-2345
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
@ @ @ Operating @ Business Dollar
Voucher # Fund Account @Unit Class Unit Pai Amount*
00003749 461 516100 901 90170 32500 $ 1,650
00003736 001 602065 200 20030 11200 $ 1,239
$
$
$
$
$
$
( 10 )
Total $ 2,889

*Please include each accounts payable greater than $1,000 where the expenditure was incurred by June 30 and
payment has been or will be made after June 30 and the expenditure was not applied back to June.

Revised 3/2015
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COMPLETING THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACCRUAL SUMMARY FORM- CONTRACT RETAINAGE
SUMMARY FORM:

EF EXPLANATION

Run the PeopleSoft Query NDSCAFR_PYMTS_OVER_1000 for each of your Accounts Payable
Business Unit.

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

(2) Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’s name will automatically
populate.
(3) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing

package, please see instructions below.
(4) Enter the Account.
(5) Enter the Operating Unit.
(6) Enter the Class.

(7) Enter the contract retainage payable accrual amount. Please include each contract
retainage payable greater than $1,000 where the expenditure was incurred by June 30 and
payment has been or will be made after June 30 and the expenditure was not applied back
to June. You may need to estimate any material amounts incurred by June 30 and paid
subsequent to August.

(8) Please review this number. If it is different than expected, please check the numbers
entered at (7). All amounts need to be entered as a positive number. (Amounts are to be
entered in whole dollars)

NOTE: If significant payments are made after you submit this closing package that are for
expenditures that were incurred June 30 or prior, contact OMB to determine if another
closing package needs to be submitted for those payments.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The
Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ACCRUAL SUMMARY FORM - CONTRACT RETAINAGE
At June 30, 20XX

©

Business Unit #: 999 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name:  Sample Fund
Prepared: 9/7/20XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. | 328-5555
@ Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 9/8/20XX By: .M. Senior Dir. Of Acctg 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Adjustment @ Operating @ Dollar
Code Account Unit Class Amount*
591050 999 20030 $ 59,765
(OMB)
682015 999 90170 $ 726,212
(OMB)
$
(OMB)
$
(OMB)
$
(OMB)
(©)
Total $ 785,977

*Please include each accounts payable greater than $1,000 where the expenditure was incurred by June 30 and
payment has been or will be made after June 30 and the expenditure was not applied back to June.

Adjustment Description

[A] DR (Expenditures) [C] DR (Expenditures)
CR 201001 (Accounts Payable) CR 210001 (Intergovernmental Payal
[B] DR (Expenditures)

CR 208101 (Retained Percentages Payable)

Revised 3/2015



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

(THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY)



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
GRANT REVENUE CLOSING PACKAGE 6/1/2015 19
REVISED: PAGE:
1

PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

Some State agencies receive assistance from the federal government, corporations, foundations, or
others. Such assistance includes grants and entitlements to support specific programs such as education
or Medicaid. Grantors may provide funds to agencies for:

e  Operating expenses (operating grants).

e Acquisition or construction of fixed assets (capital grants).

e Indirect costs associated with administering the programs.
These revenues are Grant Revenues. Amounts that your agency receives from the Grantor are Grant
Revenues. Only PRIMARY recipients (see definition of Primary Recipient in Key Terms Section) of grant
funds within State government will report Federal Revenue Accrual and Unearned Revenue Adjustment

amounts in this closing package.

Grantors fund State agency programs in different ways. For example:

e Some grants provide funds on a cost-reimbursement basis. That is, State agencies incur costs
then bill the grantor for reimbursement.

e Some programs provide for advance payments or permit State agencies to draw against letters of
credit as they incur eligible expenditures.

e Some grant programs provide for cost-sharing or matching funds or impose other requirements
on the State.

Individual State agencies may:
e Distribute funds to other State agencies.
e Distribute funds to non-State organizations such as municipalities and counties.

e Expend grant program funds directly for supplies, etc., or pay indirect cost to the State's General
Fund.

The State plans to use Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in preparing its financial
statements. GAAP requires that the State record on its financial statements:

e Grant Revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30.
e Grant Receivables at June 30.

e Unearned Revenue for certain grants.

e Contributed Capital for certain capital grants.

GAAP also requires that the State account for certain grant funds in certain state funds.
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This closing package relates only to revenue from grants. For information about tax revenues, see the
Tax Revenues Closing Package. For miscellaneous revenues see the Miscellaneous
Receivables/Revenues Closing Package. For additional information related to Medicaid refer to Loan
Refund Receivables.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e Complete all other Closing Package before you work on the Grant Revenue Closing Package
because other closing packages may have an effect on what is being reported on this closing
package, especially the Accounts Payable and Journal Voucher Accrual Summary closing
package forms.

e If your agency received $100,000 or more of grant funds last fiscal year as a primary recipient,
complete or had not billed another state agency as of June 30 for federal pass-through funds:

-- Grant Receivables and Unearned Revenue Summary Form.

e Complete the Form on or before the due date indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due
Dates in the Introduction Section.

KEY TERMS

Basis of Accounting for Grant Revenue. The basis of accounting determines when to recognize revenue,
receivables, and unearned revenue in the financial statements. Governmental funds use the modified
accrual basis of accounting. However, for Grant Receivables, the accrual basis of accounting will be
used.

For Grant Revenues, however, there is no practical difference between the accrual and modified accrual
basis. Specifically:

e Reimbursement Grants.
-- Recognize Grant Revenue when your agency and/or your subrecipient has:
* Incurred grant costs (including Accounts Payable).
*  Met all related grant requirements (such as matching requirements).
-- Record Grant Receivables at June 30 if, at that date, your agency has:
*  Met the revenue recognition criteria above.
*  Not yet received the related reimbursement from the grantor.
e Cash Advance and Letter-of-Credit Grants.

-- Recognize Grant Revenue when you both:

*  Have incurred grant costs (including Accounts Payable).
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*  Have met all related grant requirements (such as matching requirements).
-- Record Grant Receivables at June 30 if at that date you:
*  Have met the revenue recognition criteria above.

*  Have not yet received cash from the grantor to cover the related expenditures and/or
Accounts Payable.

-- Record Unearned Revenue at June 30 if:
*  You received cash on or before June 30.
*  This cash does not yet represent grant expenditures or Accounts Payable at June 30.

NOTE: If your agency has unearned revenue in a grant as of June 30, any revenue received
after year end MUST be applied to the next fiscal year.

NOTE: If the grantor (such as federal government) does not specify a time requirement (time period the
grant can be used) and there are no other grant requirements, you will need to recognize a grant
receivable and revenue for the entire amount of the award, beginning with the grantor’s fiscal year.

Capital Grant. Capital grants are grants that you must use to purchase or construct fixed assets for State
government use.

Unearned Revenue. GAAP requires that we record Unearned Revenue if, at June 30, we have grant
funds on hand that as yet represent neither grant expenditures nor Accounts Payable. Unearned
Revenue is a liability account.

Entitlement. An entitlement consists of cash or other assets that another government (usually the federal
government) contributes to the State. Entitlement programs are similar to grants. Entitlement programs,
however, base awards on allocation formulas contained in applicable laws. Entitlement programs award
specific amounts for particular accounting periods and impose few real restrictions. Once the State
receives an entitlement award, only the State's failure to follow prescribed regulations will cause loss of
the funds. In this closing package the term Grant includes Entitlements.

Grant. A grant consists of cash or other assets that a grantor contributes to the State. The State must
apply for grant funds. The grantor then decides whether or not to award a grant to the State. The grantor
usually specifies that the State must use the grant proceeds for particular programs, activities, or facilities.
The State earns grant funds by incurring eligible grant costs and by meeting all matching or other
requirements.

Operating grants and capital grants are particular types of grants. (Also see the definitions of Operating
Grant, Capital Grant, and Entitlement.)

Grantor. A grantor is an organization that provides grant or entitlement funds to others. Examples of
grantors that provide funds to State agencies include the federal government.

Grant Receivables. Grant Receivables at June 30 are amounts that grantors owe the State at June 30.
(Also see Accounting Principles and Policies Section.)
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Grant Revenue. Grant Revenues are amounts that the State receives from grantors. For this closing
package:

e Grant Revenue includes amounts your agency receives from the grantor.

e Amounts that your agency receives from other state funds or agencies are not Grant Revenues
for the purposes of this closing package.

Also see Accounting Principles and Policies Section.

Federal Fund Balance. Federal fund balance is the difference between your assets and liabilities in each
federal fund. In reimbursement type grants, the fund balance should be $0. Any amounts reported on
closing packages for receivables and payables in the fund should be included in determining the federal
fund balance.

Operating Grant. Operating grants include:

e Grants that you may use only to finance operations.
e Grants that you may use either to finance operations or to purchase/construct fixed assets.
(Also see the definitions of Grant and Capital Grant.)
"Passed-Through" Funds. To say that grant funds were "passed through” means that one State agency

(i.e. primary recipient) distributed them to other State or non-State organizations (i.e. end-recipient), such
as municipalities and counties.

Primary Recipient. The agency that initially receives funds from the grantor (i.e. federal government) and
who is accountable to the grantor for the funds.

Revenues. Revenues are increases in net assets. (Also see the definition of Grant Revenue.)
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles relating to recognition of grant revenue appear in:

e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Sections G60.505 and 1600.106
through 1600.115.

Theoretically, GAAP requirements for recognizing grant revenue differ for different GAAP fund categories.
Specifically: Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting, however, for grant
receivables, the accrual basis will be used.

For Grant Revenues, however, there is no practical difference between the accrual and modified accrual
basis. (See Key Terms for definition of Basis of Accounting for Grant Revenues.)

GAAP requires that we recognize capital grants as revenues in Governmental funds. (See Key Terms for
definition of Capital Grant.) Furthermore, GAAP requires that we recognize operating grants as Revenues
in the appropriate state fund. (See Key Terms for definition of Operating Grant.)

The sections below outline specific State accounting and reporting policies for grant funds.

Grant Receivables (Also see new section “GASB 33 REQUIREMENTS” on page 6.)

Only primary recipients of grant funds within State government should report receivable amounts on the
Grant Receivables and Unearned Revenue Summary Form.

Report Medicaid receivables in this closing package only if they represent revenue receivable from

grantors. Examples of Medicaid activity that is not to be included in this closing package are presented
below:

e Do not report Medicaid amounts receivable from or payable to other State agency service
providers in closing packages. (The Office of Management and Budget will record all interfund
receivables/payables based on data in PeopleSoft.)

e Report Medicaid amounts receivable from non-State service providers in the Refund Receivables
and Miscellaneous Receivables Closing Packages.

e Report Medicaid amounts payable to non-State service providers in the Accounts Payable
Closing Package.

The following information should help you determine amounts of Grant Receivables to report in this
closing package.

e Reimbursement-Type Grants. Report Grant Receivables at June 30 if your agency:
-- Incurred direct/indirect grant costs during the fiscal year. That is, your agency either:

* Recorded allowable grant expenditures during the PeopleSoft fiscal year.

* Reported Accounts Payable that relate to grants on the Accounts Payable Summary Forms.
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-- Has met all related grant requirements (such as matching requirements).

--  Will receive the related reimbursement from the grantor after June 30.

e Grants Using Cash Advances and Letters of Credit. Report Grant Receivables at June 30 if your
agency:

-- Incurred direct/indirect grant costs during the fiscal year. That is, your agency either:

*  Recorded allowable grant expenditures during the PeopleSoft fiscal year.

*  Reported Accounts Payable that relate to grants on the Accounts Payable Summary
Forms.

-- Has met all related grant requirements (such as matching requirements).
--  Will receive the related reimbursement from the grantor after June 30.

Unearned Revenue

Report Unearned Revenue if you have drawn down or received grant cash at June 30 that represents
neither PeopleSoft grant expenditures nor Accounts Payable.

Federal Fund Balance

The fund balance in a grant is the difference between the assets and liabilities in a grant, or the difference
between the lifetime revenue and expenditures in a grant. All closing package adjustments for the grant
should be included in determining the fund balance. For federal grants, the fund balance should always
be $0 once closing package adjustments are included (receivables and payables). In general, if your
liabilities (or lifetime expenditures) are greater than your assets (or lifetime revenue) you should be
reporting a larger receivable. If your assets (or lifetime revenues) are greater than your liabilities (or
lifetime expenditures) you should be reporting a larger unearned revenue amount.

GASB 33 REQUIREMENTS

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #33 is effective as of fiscal year 2001.
This statement addresses the reporting of receivables for non-exchange transactions. Those non-
exchange transactions that would be reported as grants receivable are explained below.

Government-Mandated Non-Exchange Transaction: These transactions occur when a government
at one level (i.e., federal government) provides resources to another government and requires that
government to use the resources for a specific purpose. The principal characteristics of these
transactions are that the provider government requires the recipient government to perform a
program, or to pass the resources to another entity (subrecipient) to perform the program, and
requires the fulfillment of certain eligibility requirements.
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Voluntary Non-Exchange Transaction: These transactions result from legislative or contractual
agreements entered into willingly by two or more parties. The principal characteristics of these
transactions are they are not imposed or mandated by the provider of the funds and fulfillment of
eligibility requirements is essential. Examples of this type of transaction include certain grants and
private donations. Eligibility requirements include time requirements (when the resources are
allowed to be used), reimbursement requirements (resources provided after certain costs incurred),
and contingencies (certain events must occur before resources are provided).

Eligibility requirements for both Government-Mandated and Voluntary Non-Exchange transactions
include:

e Required Characteristics: The recipient and/or subrecipient are those whom the grantor specified
should receive the grant award.

e Time Requirements: The provider requires the resources to be used during a specific time period.

e Reimbursement: Resources will only be provided on a reimbursement basis, and the recipient
has incurred allowable costs.

e Contingencies: The resources will only be provided upon a specified action of the recipient.

If there are no eligibility requirements, including no time requirements, a receivable and revenue
must be reported for the entire grant award, beginning with the first day of the provider’s fiscal year.

The reporting of grant revenues and receivables for the non-exchange transactions explained above
would not change the reporting for those grants that are awarded on a reimbursement basis. Follow the
instructions for reimbursement grants. GASB 33 basically will effect the reporting for federal grant
revenue and receivables if the award is not on a reimbursement basis, there are no contingency
requirements, and there are no time requirements. Then, the entire federal grant award must be reported
as revenue and receivable as of the first day of the federal fiscal year, for those awards where the federal
fiscal year began prior to June 30 and the cash has not been received at June 30. If some of the award
has been received in cash by June 30, only the portion not received at June 30 would be recorded as a
receivable.

GASB 33 does affect the reporting of voluntary grants from private foundations or other private sources.
Grant revenue from private grants must be reported at June 30 if your agency has received a pledge or
promise of a grant from the private source on or prior to June 30, the promise is verifiable, the grant
amount is measurable and probable of collection, and any grant requirements imposed by the grantor
have been met. A grant receivable at June 30 must be reported for the cash not received at June 30 if all
of the grant revenue requirements are met.
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WORKING PAPERS

All working papers are subject to possible audit. The agency should keep copies of the completed
summary Forms. In addition, the agency should keep working papers to support each figure on the
Forms. For example, agencies should thoroughly document:

e How you computed each amount.

e The source(s) of data for each amount.

In addition, you should retain:

e Copies of cost reports you file with grantors.
e Treasurer's receipts with related documentation.
e Correspondence or other documents relating to:
- Grant awards.
-- Cash advances on grants.

--  Letter of credit draws.

-- Receipt of grantor reimbursement payments.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--GRANT RECEIVABLE AND UNEARNED REVENUE SUMMARY FORM

e Complete the Grant Receivables and Unearned Revenue Summary Form if your fund received
$100,000 or more in grant revenue during the current fiscal year.

e Complete data on a Form for each state fund that receives $100,000 or more grant revenue. (See
the Master Closing Package Matrix for information about your agency's state funds.)

e Review the Accounting Principles and Policies section of this closing package carefully before
you attempt to complete the Form.

e  Only primary recipients of grant funds within State government should report amounts as Federal
Revenue Accrual or Unearned Revenue Adjustment on the Form.

e Report Medicaid receivables on the Form only if they represent revenue receivables from
grantors. (See Accounting Principles and Policies.)

e Report receivables for reimbursement grants if your agency met all of the following at June 30.

-- Recorded allowable grant expenditures during the fiscal year.
--You met all related grant requirements (such as matching requirements).

--You will receive the related reimbursement from the grantor after June 30.
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e Report receivables for cash advance and letter-of-credit grants if your agency meets all of the
following:

-- You recorded allowable grant expenditures during the fiscal year.
-- At June 30 you had met all related grant requirements (such as matching requirements).

-- At June 30 you had not yet received cash from the grantor to cover these grant costs.

e Report Unearned Revenues for cash advance and letter-of-credit grants if you have cash on hand
at June 30 that as yet represents neither PeopleSoft grant expenditures nor Accounts Payable.

e Report receivables from grant awards for which there are no time or other grant requirements for
the portion of the award for which cash has not been received at June 30, and if the grantor’s
fiscal year began prior to June 30.

e Report receivables from voluntary private grants if the promise of a grant is made on or prior to
June 30, the promise is verifiable, the grant is measurable and probable of collection, any specific
grant requirements have been met at June 30, and the cash has not yet been received at June
30.

e Round all dollar amounts on the Form to the nearest whole dollar.

e Return the completed Form to the Office of Management and Budget on or before the due date
indicated in the Schedule of Closing Package Due Dates in the Introduction Section.

e The person who completes and signs the Form should keep a copy. OMB will telephone this
person if there are any questions.

e A sample completed Form and detailed instructions for completing the Form follows.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GAAP CLOSING PROCEDURES MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: SECTION
GRANT REVENUE CLOSING PACKAGE 6/1/2015 19
REVISED: PAGE:
10

COMPLETING THE GRANT RECEIVABLES AND UNEARNED REVENUE SUMMARY FORM

REF EXPLANATION

Note: The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on the
‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX' line.

(1) Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit's name will
automatically populate.

(2) Select the state fund code from the drop down list, the fund’'s name will automatically
populate.
(3) Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing

package, please see instructions below.

(4) Enter the amount due from the federal government as of June 30 including amounts entered on
the Accounts Payable Accrual Summary Forms relating to the respective grants. (Also consider
the effect of amounts on the Journal Voucher Summary Form and other Closing Packages
relating to the respective grants).

(5) Enter the amount received in July and Applied Back to June. Run the applicable apply back
queries such as, NDSCAFR_DEP, NDSCAFR_ONL, etc to verify apply back amounts. Do not
include Cash received in June (this includes wire transfers that the Bank of ND received
in June) but were not recorded on PeopleSoft until July and were applied back. These
amounts are to be reported as Cash at BND on your cash closing package and not as a
receivable.

(6) Enter the amount you estimate your agency will receive in the next 12 months (Include in this
total the amounts received in July and NOT applied back to June. The way you choose to
estimate it is left to your agency’s discretion, but should have some reasonable basis as your
auditors may review the calculation.)

(7) The sum of (4), (5), and ( 6 ) will calculate. Please review this number. If it is different than
expected, please check the number entered at (4 ), (5 ), and ( 6 ). All amounts need to be
entered as a positive number.

(8) Enter the amount received from the federal government but not spent at June 30.

(9) Enter the amount spent during July and applied back to June including amounts entered on the
Accounts Payable Accrual Summary Forms relating to the respective grants. (Also consider the
effect of amounts on the Journal Voucher Summary Form and other Closing Packages relating
to the respective grants).

(10) The sum of ( 8 ) and ( 9 ) will calculate. Please review this number. If it is different than
expected, please check the number entered at (8 ) and (9 ). All amounts need to be entered as
a positive number.

Note: Enter amounts in whole dollars.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
GRANT RECEIVABLES AND UNEARNED REVENUE SUMMARY FORM
At June 30, 20XX

Business Unit #: 99900 Business Unit Name: __Sample Agency

State Fund #: 888 State Fund Name: __ Operating Fund

Prepared: 9 / 15/ XX_ By:  J.P.Junior ___Acct.l 328-5555

@ Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Approved: 9 / 16 / XX_ By:__ .M. Senior ___Dir. Of Acctg. 328-5555

Date Name/Signature Title/Phone

Adjustment Dollar

Code/Account Description Amount*

FOR OMB Grant Receivables

USE ONLY

Amount due from federal government as of June 30. @ $ 226,000
A Less: Amount received during July and applied back to June. @ ( 73,000 )
B Less: Amount estimated to be received by June 30, 20XX. @ ( 153,000 )
© Remaining Federal Revenue Accrual @ $ 0

Grant Unearned Revenue

Amount received from federal government but not

spent as of June 30. $ 95,000
Less: Amount spent during July and applied back to June. @ ( 37,500 )

(Include amounts entered on the Accounts Payable
Accrual Summary Form.)

D Unearned Revenue adjustment $ 57,500

*The Grant Receivables and Unearned Revenue sections should be completed on a grant by grant basis with
summary totals being placed on this form.

NOTE: Complete only if your State fund received more than $100,000 of grant revenues as the primary
recipient during the fiscal year.

FOR OMB USE ONLY

A DR 130001 (Intergov'tal Receivable) C DR 130001 (Intergov'tal Receivable)
CR 124001 (Accounts Receivable) CR 225002 (Unearned Revenue)
B DR 130001 (Intergov'tal Receivable) D DR 430040 (Revenue)

CR 430040 (Revenue) CR 225015 (Unearned Revenue)
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Note: The Grant Receivables and Unearned Revenue sections should be completed on a grant
by grant basis with summary totals being placed on this form.

To Submit:  After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The
Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line.
The completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



Grant Receivable/Deferred Revenue Closing Package Worksheet

This is meant to be for example only and not required to be completed in order to complete
the Grants Receivable and Dererred Revenue closing package.

NOTE: Use the NDSALLO1 project report, using the inception to date column for all amounts
If you did not covert your grant balances from SAMIS to Peoplesoft, you will
need to add in any inception to date balances from prior SAMIS grant reports.

DO NOT INCLUDE PASS-THROUGH GRANTS AS GRANTS RECEIVABLE. ONLY REPORT RECEIVABLES
FROM ANOTHER STATE AGENCY FORPASS THROUGH FUNDS NOT REQUESTED AS OF JUNE 30

Step 1
Grant Receivables/Deferred Revenue
B
Revenue C
A Expenditures Expenditures Received Other Other Remaining
6/30/20XX 6/30/200X Applied Back on Closing after 6/30 & Expenses-See Revenue-See Revenue/
Project # Revenue Expenditures on PSFT Packages Applied Back Note below Note below Receivable
Fed06-08 $100,000 $200,000 $75,000 $15,000 $18,000 $0 $50,000 -$122,000 GoTo Step2
Fed06-09 $150,000 $100,000 $80,000 $6,000 $5,000 $0 $0 -$31,000 GoTo Step2
Fed02-08 $120,000 $32,000 $6,000 $3,500 $0 $25,000 $0 $53,500 GoTo Step3
Fed02-09 $110,000 $103,000 $2,000 $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $4,000 GoTo Step3

A: Revenue at 6/30 includes all grant revenue at 6/30 plus any revenue JV'd in or out of a grant and applied back if revenue had been
received by 6/30.

For ex.: Revenue at 6/30 for fund Fed06-09 is 100,000. Revenue of 50,000 was transferred in July from general fund to federal
fund (Fed06-09) and applied back . The 50,000 revenue had been received prior to June 30th. The amount of Revenue then
would be a total of 100,000 (100 + 50,000).

B: Do notinclude Cash received in June (this includes wire transfers that the Bank of ND received in June) but were not recorded on
PeopleSoft until July and were applied back. These amounts are to be reported as Cash at BND on your cash closing package and
not as a receivable.

C: If you receive a negative amount here you have a receivable (expenses greater than your revenue), positive numbers reflect Deferred
Revenue and should be reported on the closing package accordingly.

NOTE:

Include any other transactions relating to your Federal grants that were not included in year end Reports nor in the Expenditures
on Closing Packages Columns above. These could include expenditures or revenue reported on your Journal Voucher

Accrual Summary Form, Miscellaeous Receivables, Refund Receivables, Prepaid Expenses or other closing packages.

Also, include any significant amounts from journals you may have done or plan to do in September or later that relate to federal
revenues or expenditures that relate to prior fiscal year business.

These steps are only to get the totals to input on the actual closing package. All numbers should come from

step one except for the total columns.

Step 2
Grants Receivable
Revenue
Expenditures Expenditures Difference Received
6/30/20XX 6/30/200X  Applied Back on Closing Other Grants after 6/30 & Other Remaining
Project # Revenue Expenditures on PSFT Packages Expenses Receivable Applied Back Revenue Receivable
Fed06-08 $100,000 $200,000 $75,000 $15,000 $0 $190,000 $18,000 $50,000 $122,000
Fed06-09 $150,000 $100,000 $80,000 $6,000 $0 $36,000 $5,000 $0 $31,000
$226,000 $73,000 $153,000
Step 3
Deferred Revenue
Expenditures
6/30/20XX 6/30/200X Deferred Applied Back Expenditures Other Remaining
Project # Revenue  Expenditures Revenue on PSFT on Closing Expenses Revenue
Fed02-08 $120,000 $32,000 $88,000 $6,000 $3,500 $25,000 $53,500
Fed02-09 $110,000 $103,000 $7,000 $2,000 $1,000 $0 $4,000

$95,000 $37,500 $57,500
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PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES

In this closing package, agencies should report long term debt payable to non-State parties and loans
payable to the Bank of North Dakota and any short-term debt activity during the fiscal year. This does not
include operating or capital leases, reported on the Lease Summary Closing Package form. Long term
debt to include on this form include:

e |oans and Notes Payable
e Other long term Financing Agreements, such as Energy Lease Agreements
e Loans payable to the Bank of North Dakota (BND), including borrowings on Lines of Credit

Short-term debt includes activity on borrowings (including BND loans) they had during the fiscal year that
was paid off prior to June 30.

The State plans to prepare its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). GAAP requires that the State report proceeds from loans and notes payable and
principal and interest payments in governmental fund statements and loans and notes payable
outstanding as of June 30 as long term debt in the Government-Wide Statements. GAAP also requires
that we report the effect of long-term debt related to the financing of Capital Assets in the Net Asset
category, Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt.

In addition, GAAP requires that all payables to other state agencies, which would includes loans payable
to the Bank of North Dakota be identified and reported.

GAAP requires that short-term debt needs to be disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements, even
if the debt is not outstanding at fiscal year end.

AGENCY ACTION REQUIRED

e |f you owe any non-State parties or the Bank of North Dakota money on loans or notes at June
30, complete a Loans and Notes Payable, Including other Financing Agreements, form.

e If you received a short-term loan or note during the year that was paid off by June 30, complete a
Loans and Notes Receivable, Including other Financing Agreements, form.

KEY TERMS

Cash Held in Escrow: Funds held in a trust account on behalf of a specified party that is intended for
future specific uses.

Financing Agreement: Agreement to repay a borrowed amount over a specific time period with interest.
Principal and interest payments are normally due at specific intervals during the time period. With some
agreements, cash is put in an escrow account to be used for expenditures incurred for the project the
agreement is financing.
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Line of Credit: An arrangement in which a bank or other vendor extends a specified amount of unsecured
credit to a specified borrower for a specified time period.

Loans or Notes Payable: Outstanding principal balances at June 30 on loans that the State owes to non-
State parties or the Bank of North Dakota.

Long-Term Debt: Borrowings that will be repaid in future years.

Short-Term Debt: Borrowings that were received and paid off within the same fiscal year.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES

General
The State's policy is to report on its June 30 financial statements, the following:
On the Government-Wide Statements of Net Assets:

e Loans/Notes Payable, which includes other Financing Agreements. (See Key Terms). Reported
on the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

e A reduction of Net Assets, Invested in Capital Assets, net of related Debt, for outstanding debt
related to Capital Assets.

On the Governmental Fund Statements:
o Due to other funds for loans payable to the Bank of North Dakota on the Balance Sheet.

e Proceeds from loans/notes, cash held in escrow, and principal and interest payments on long-
term debt on the operating statement.

Note disclosures on short-term and long-term debt.

Loans/Notes Payable

See the Key Terms section for definitions
GAAP requires the State to record:
e |oan/Note Payable outstanding at June 30.
e Net Assets, Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt
e |Interest Payable for related interest incurred to June 30 but not yet paid as of June 30.
e Proceeds from Loans/Notes Payable

e Principal and Interest Payments on Long-term debt
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e Due to other funds for loans/notes or interest payable to other state agencies.
e Note Disclosure on changes in Long-Term Debt

e Note Disclosure on Short-term debt activity for the fiscal year.

WORKING PAPERS

All working papers may be subject to audit. The agency should keep copies of the completed closing
package Forms. In addition, the agency should keep working papers to support each figure on the Forms.
For example, agencies should thoroughly document:

e How you computed each amount.
e The source(s) of data for each amount.

e Methods you used to estimate amounts.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS--LOAN AND NOTES FORMS

A sample completed Form and detailed instructions for completing this Form follow.
e Round all dollar amounts to the nearest whole dollar.

e The person who completes and signs the Form(s) should keep a copy. OMB will contact this person if
there are any questions.

e Detailed instructions for completing the Form follow. A sample completed Form follows the
instructions.
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COMPLETING THE LOAN RECEIVABLES SUMMARY FORM

REF

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3)
(4)

(5)

(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

(10)
(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

Note:

EXPLANATION

The last two digits of the fiscal year for which this Form applies will populate based on
the ‘Prepared’ date. Therefore, no entry is needed on the ‘At June 30, XXXX’ line.

Select the business unit number from the drop down list, the business unit’s name will
automatically populate.

Complete all information regarding preparation of this Form. To submit the completed closing
package, please see instructions below.

Verify the loan/note balance at the beginning of the fiscal year (prior fiscal year ending balance).

Enter the amount of new loan/note borrowings during the current fiscal year, including short-
term debt (loans/notes you borrowed and repaid within the current year).

Enter the principal payments made on the loan/note during the current fiscal year, including
short-term debt (loans/notes you borrowed and repaid within the current year).

verify the sum of (3), (4), less (5).
Enter the amount of the year-end balance, (6), that is due by the end of the next fiscal year.
Enter the amount of interest payments you made on the loan/note during the current fiscal year.

Report the account and fund used to pay the principal and interest payments during the current
fiscal year and the amount of each. (Include amounts paid on short-term debt.)

Report the amount of interest accrued through June 30 since your last interest payment.
Indicate if the loan/note was/or is from the Bank of North Dakota.

Enter the amount of cash held for your agency in an escrow account in accordance with your
financing agreement. If none, enter a Zero.

If your agency has funds held in escrow for your project, report the name of the bank where the
funds are held and the credit risk category. Credit Risk Categories can be found on page 8 of
the Cash and Investments Closing Package section of this manual.

If the loan/note or other agreement financed capital assets, report the type of asset, original
cost, accumulated depreciation amount, and net asset value.

Report if the Capital Asset has been recorded in the PeopleSoft Asset Module or reported on
the Construction in Progress Closing Package.

Enter amounts in whole dollars.



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA
Loans and Notes Payable, including other Financing Agreements, Form
At June 30, 20XX

()
Business Unit #: 99900 Business Unit Name: Sample Agency
Prepared: : 08/10/XX By: J.P. Junior Acct. 328-5555
@ Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Approved: 08/11/XX By: |.M. Serior Dir. Of Acct. 328-5555
Date Name/Signature Title/Phone
Start of Year Balance - Loan or Note Payable @ $ 4,300,000
(@ Additions 200,000
@ Deletions (principal payments  ( 140,000 )
Include additions and deletions for short-term debt activity during the year
End of Year Balance - Loan or Note Payable @ $ 4,360,000
Amount of year end balance due within one year @ $ 160,000
Interest payments made during the current fiscal year ended June 30. $ 200,000

Report the Fund or Funds used to make the principal and interest payments and the
accounts used for those payments. (Include payments on short-term debt)

621295 001 140,000 @
Account Fund Amount

621465 001 200,000
Account Fund Amount

Report the amount of interest due at June 30, 50,000
(Interest not yet paid but accrued to June 30 since the last interest payment made.)

Was or is this a loan from the Bank of North Dakota (included short-tern@ | No |
Cash held in Escrow for the Project @ $ 200,000

Report the name of the Bank where the escrow is being held and credit risk this account. Refer to
page 8 of the Cash and Investment Section of the Closing Package Manual for Credit Risk Categories.

OMB Escrow Account @ 3

Bank Credit Risk (1,2 or 3)

Report the type and net value of the asset that is being financed with thi

Bldg Impovement 4,500,000 400,000 4,100,000
Asset Type Cost Accumulated Depreciation Net Asset Value

Has this asset been reported on the Construction in Progress or Fixed Asset closing
package or is it recorded in the PeopleSoft Asset Management Module? @| Yes |

If you are reporting a new financing agreement, send us a copy of your amortization schedule. If you are reporting
an agreement that has been reported in the past, we either have or have developed an amortization schedule

for your payable. However, if you have been making principal payments that differ from the amortization
schedules, the balance of your notes payable could change . If the beginning balance of your payable does not
agree to the amount sent to you by OMB, you will need to submit a current amortizatin schedule to our office.

Ravicad ’2,/’){'\1 I~
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Note: Submit a copy of your amortization schedule if the loan/note is new this fiscal year, or if
the beginning balance of your loan/note does not agree to the amount sent to by OMB,
submit your new amortization schedule.

To Submit:After the closing package is completed, the Preparer will forward on to the Approver. The
Approver needs to review and approve the form by typing their name on the Approver line. The
completed closing package needs to be e-mailed by the Approver to cafr@nd.gov.



